VENDOR NO: _		CONTRACT (PO) NO:	
		SPECIFICATION NO.: 89430A	
		RUNWAY DEICER TRUCKS	
		CONTRACT PERIOD: SIXTY (60) MONTHS	
	STARTING:	THROUGH:	

## **REQUIRED FOR USE BY CITY OF CHICAGO**



#### **DEPARTMENT OF FLEET MANAGEMENT**

Fund Number: 011.0740.0402035.0450.220450 and Various

Bid Submittal Fee: None, Bid Deposit: None, Performance Bond: None, Drawings: None, Exhibits: None

Information: Ahmad N. Nayamuth, Contract Administrator

Phone: (312) 744-9761, Fax: (312) 744-7679, E-mail: anayamuth@cityofchicago.org

## **EXECUTE AND SUBMIT ONE (1) COMPLETE ORIGINAL BID PACKAGE**

All signatures to be sworn to before a Notary Public

Bid must be sealed, delivered and received in the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, Bid and Bond Room, City Hall, Room 301, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois, 60602 NO LATER than 11:00 a.m., Chicago Time on Friday, April 29, 2011. Bids will be read publicly. Bid package must be complete and returned in its entirety.

Issued by:

# City of Chicago Department of Procurement Services

Vehicles and Heavy Equipment Unit Room 403, City Hall 121 North LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60602

Bid must be submitted in sealed envelope(s) or packages(s). The outside of the envelope or package must clearly indicate the name of the project, "Runway Deicer Trucks" the specification number "89430A" and the time and the date specified for receipt. The name and the address of the Bidder must also be clearly printed on the outside of the envelope(s) or package(s). Respondent must NOT scan or otherwise reproduce this document in any way.

Richard M. Daley Mayor

Jamie L. Rhee Chief Procurement Officer

# Table of Contents

1.	DEFIN	NITIONS	1
2.	GENE	RAL CONDITIONS	3
	21	Downloadable Document	વ
		Interpretation of Contract Documents	
		Preparation Of Proposal	
		Submission of Proposals	
		Withdrawal of Proposals	
		Competency of Bidder	
		Consideration Of Proposals	
		Acceptance of Proposals	
		Taxes	
		Contractor's Financial Statement	
	2.11.	Order Of Precedence of Component Contract Parts	5
		Notices	
		Non-Discrimination	
		Indemnity	
		Safety and Loss Control	
		Living Wage Ordinance	
		Prevailing Wage Rates	
		Payment To Contractor	
		Cooperation Between Contractors	
		Subcontractors	
	2.21.	Subcontractors With Disabilities	10 10
		Subcontractor Payments	
		Materials Inspection and Responsibility	
		Cash Billing Discount	
		Supervision	
		Audits	
		Price Reduction	
		Prohibition on Certain Contributions – Mayoral Executive Order No. 05-1	
	2.30.	Conflicts of Interest	13
	2.31.	Governmental Ethics Ordinance	14
		Disclosure of Ownership	
		Disclosure of Retained Parties - Executive Order 97-1	
		Inspector General and Legislative Inspector General	
		Chapter 2-26 of The Municipal Code of Chicago, Office of Compliance	
		Section 2-92-380 of The Municipal Code of Chicago	
		Section 11-4-1600(E) of The Municipal Code of Chicago	
		Business Relationships With Elected Officials	
		Macbride Principles Ordinance	
		Contractor Certification	
		Compliance With Child Support Orders Ordinance	
		Non-Collusion, Bribery of a Public Officer or Employee	
		Federal Terrorist (No-Business) List	
		Compliance With Environment Laws	
		Severability	
		Force Majeure Event	
		False Statements	
		Business Enterprises Owned By People With Disabilities Commitment	
		Shakman Accord	
		Default	
		Disputes	
2		·	
3.	SPEC	IAL CONDITIONS	23
	2.1	Porformance Rond	23

	3.2.	Bid Deposit	23
		Bid Submittal Fee	
		Questions And Clarifications	
		Quantities	
		Basis of Award	
		Chicago Business Preference	
		Calculation of MBE/WBE Commitment	
		Contract Documents To Be Completed By Bidder	
	3.10.	. Contract Period	25
		. Contract ExtenSion Option	
		. Modifications And Amendments	
		. Unspecified Items	
	3.14	. Participation By Other Local Government Agencies	26
	3.15	. Purchase Order Blanket Releases	26
	3.16	. Invoices	26
	3.17	. Electronic Ordering And Invoices	27
	3.18	Payment	27
	3.19	Pre-Delivery, Servicing And Adjustments	27
		. Delivery	
	3 21	. DELIVERY OF PARTS AND PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES	28
		Inspection Upon Delivery	
		Price Adjustment (Lines 1 Through 9 Only)	
		PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR PARTS (line 10)	
	3.25	. Labor Rate Adjustment (Lines 11 AND 12 Only)	29
		. PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR TOWING SERVICES (line 13)	
		. Acceptance	
		Non-Appropriation	
		. Termination	
	3.30	. Contractor's Insurance Requirements	31
	2 21	Comple Incurance Cartificate of Coverage	22
	3.31	. Sample Insurance Certificate of Coverage	33
4.	SPEC	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS  ERPRISE	
4.	SPEC ENTE	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE	34
4.	SPECENTE 4.1.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE Policy And Terms	34
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE Policy And Terms Definitions	34 34 34
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3.	Policy And Terms Definitions	34 34 34 35
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals	34 34 35 36
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39 39
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39 39
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39 39 39
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10.	Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39 39 39 40
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 38 39 39 40 40 41
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reduction Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals	34 34 35 36 39 39 40 40 41 42 41
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	34 34 35 36 39 39 40 40 41 42 41
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reduction Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals Schedule B: Affidavit Of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE)	343435363839404041424142
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.	Policy And Terms	34343536383940404142414241
4.	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 4.16.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	34343536393940404142414242
	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 4.16. 4.17.	Policy And Terms	343435363939404041424142454545
	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 4.16. 4.17.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals.  Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reductor Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals Schedule B: Affidavit Of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE). Schedule C-1: Letter Of Intent From MBE/WBE To Perform As Subcontractor, Supplier And/Or Consultant Schedule D-1: Affidavit Of MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan DBE/MBE/WBE Utilization Report  ALLED SPECIFICATIONS	34343536383940404142424545455056
	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 4.16. 4.17. DETA	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	343435363939404142414545455658
	SPEC ENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 4.16. 4.17. DETA	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	3434353639394041424145455658
	SPECENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.  DETA 5.1. 5.2. 5.3.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms	343435363939404041424545565858
	SPECENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.  DETA 5.1. 5.2. 5.3. 5.4.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms.  Definitions	34343536393940404142454556585858
	SPECENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 5.1. 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reduc or Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals Schedule B: Affidavit Of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE) Schedule C-1: Letter Of Intent From MBE/WBE To Perform As Subcontractor, Supplier And/Or Consultan Schedule D-1: Affidavit Of MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan DBE/MBE/WBE Utilization Report  ALLED SPECIFICATIONS  Scope Licensed New Vehicle Dealer Manufacturer, Manufacturer's Authorized Dealer / Distributor Substitutions and Exceptions Training/Technical Assistance	34343536393940404142454556585858
4.	SPECENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13.  DETA 5.1. 5.2. 5.3. 5.4.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reductor Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals Schedule B: Afficiavit Of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE) Schedule C-1: Letter Of Intent From MBE/WBE To Perform As Subcontractor, Supplier And/Or Consultant Schedule D-1: Afficiavit Of MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan DBE/MBE/WBE Utilization Report  ALLED SPECIFICATIONS  Scope Licensed New Vehicle Dealer Manufacturer, Manufacturer's Authorized Dealer / Distributor Substitutions and Exceptions Training/Technical Assistance NON-EXPERIMENTAL Standard Product	3434353639404041424550565858595960
	SPECENTE 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 4.5. 4.6. 4.7. 4.8. 4.9. 4.10. 4.11. 4.12. 4.13. 4.14. 4.15. 5.1. 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5.	CIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ERPRISE  Policy And Terms Definitions Counting MBE/WBE Participation Toward The Contract Goals Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals Procedure To Determine Bid Compliance Reporting Requirements During The Term of The Contract MBE/WBE Substitutions Non-Compliance And Damages Arbitration Record Keeping Information Sources Attachment A - Assist Agencies Attachment B - Sample Format For Requesting Assist Agency Comments on Bidder's Request For Reduc or Waiver Of MBE/WBE Goals Schedule B: Affidavit Of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE) Schedule C-1: Letter Of Intent From MBE/WBE To Perform As Subcontractor, Supplier And/Or Consultan Schedule D-1: Affidavit Of MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan DBE/MBE/WBE Utilization Report  ALLED SPECIFICATIONS  Scope Licensed New Vehicle Dealer Manufacturer, Manufacturer's Authorized Dealer / Distributor Substitutions and Exceptions Training/Technical Assistance	3434353639404041424550565858595960

	Clean Air Act	
5.10.	Warranty	61
	Public Convenience	
	Clean Up	
	Protection Of Work, Damages And Repairs	
5.14.	Quality Of Workmanship And Materials	62
	Work Performed At City Facility	
	USE OF CITY FACILITIES	
	Work In Progress	
5.18.	Quality Control	64
5 19	Design And Construction Practices	64
	Special Requirements For Auxiliary Electrical Equipment	
	Manuals, Certificates, Applications, Etc.	
5.22.	Literature / Data	65
5 23	Meetings And Inspections	66
5.24	Bid Line #1: 6 x 6 CAB / CHASSIS RUNWAY DE-ICER TRUCK- Base Unit	66
	OVERALL DESIGN	
5.26.	Chassis/ FRAME	67
5 27	PROPULSION ENGINE	67
	COOLING SYSTEM PROPULSION ENGINE	
	EXHAUST SYSTEM PROPULSION ENGINE	
5.30.	FUEL SYSTEM	68
5.31	ELECTRICAL SYSTEM	69
	LIGHTING.	
	DRIVE LINE SYSTEM	
5.34.	BRAKE SYSTEM	71
5.35	STEERING AND SUSPENSION	71
E 26	TIRES AND WHEELS	71
	CAB	
5.38.	ANTI-ICING / DE-ICING SYSTEM - GENERAL	73
5 39	CONTROLS	73
	LIGHTS	
	SPRAY BOOM	
5.42.	SPRAY SELECTION SYSTEM	74
	HYDRAULIC SYSTEM	
E 11	PRODUCT PUMP	71
	TANK CONFIGURATION AND MOUNTING	
5.46.	CHASSIS DECALS	76
	PAINTING, RUSTPROOFING AND MARKINGS	
	CHASSIS RELATED EQUIPMENT	
5.40.	CHASSIS RELATED EQUIPMENT	76
5.49.	EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES	76
5.50.	BID LINE #2: 75' FOLDING SPRAY BOOMS	77
	BID LINE #3: SIDE PLATE SNOW PLOW HITCH	
	BID LINE #4: ELECTRIC REWIND HOSE REEL	
	BID LINE #5: FLUSHER SYSTEM	
5.54.	BID LINE #6: RADIO EQUIPMENT	77
	BID LINE #7: LAPTOP COMPUTER DIAGNOSTIC SYSTEM, SOFTWARE, CABLES AND CONNECTORS	
	Bid Line #8: AUXILIARY POWER UNIT	
	Bid Line #9: SAFE LIGHT PACKAGE	
5.58.	PARTS AND REPAIR SERVICES	78
	REPAIR AND SERVICE CENTER QUALIFICATIONS	
	SERVICE AND REPAIRS OF MAJOR COMPONENTS AND SUBSYSTEMS	
5.61.	INVENTORY/LEAD TIME	79
5.62.	TURN AROUND TIME	79
	IRREPARABLE EQUIPMENT	
	WORK ITEMS	
	BID LINE #10: PARTS	
5.66.	REPAIR ESTIMATE	80
	DIAGNOSTIC TESTING FEES	
E 60	ACCEPTANCE OF PARTS AND REPAIRED EQUIPMENT	01
5.69.	PRIORITY SERVICE	81

	5.70. BID LINE #11: LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, DURING REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS (SERVICE HOURS)	81
	5.71. BID LINE #12: LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN	0.4
	CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, DURING NON-REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS (EMERGENCY REPAIR) 5.72. BID LINE #13: TRANSPORTATION OF EQUIPMENT FOR SERVICE	81 82
	5.73. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	
	5.74. RISK OF LOSS FOR EQUIPMENT	82
	5.75. STATEMENT OF LIABILITIES	
	5.76. WORK IN PROGRESS	
6.	PROPOSAL PAGES	
7.	BID DATA PAGES	84
	7.1. Person To Contact Regarding This Bid	
	7.2. Makes And Models Proposed:	
	7.3. Manufacturer, ManufactuRer's Distributor/Service Representative	
	7.5. Warranty	
	7.6. Training Offered:	85
	7.7. Location of Repair and Maintenance Shop(s)	85
	7.8. References:	
	7.10. COMMENTS, If Any, To Provision(S) Of The Special Conditions:	
	7.11. COMMENTs, If Any, To Provision(S) Of The Detailed Specifications:	88
	7.12. Frame	
	7.13. Engine	
	7.14. Transmission	
	7.16. AXLES	89
	7.17. Brakes	
	7.18. Springs/Suspension	
	7.20. Electrical	
	7.21. Equipment/Accessories	91
	7.22. Body And Mounted Equipment	
	7.23. Performance Data	
	AFFIDAVIT OF CHICAGO BUSINESS	
9.	AFFIDAVIT CONCERNING SECTION 1-23-010 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO	95
10.	CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT (EDS)	96
	10.1. Online EDS Filing Required Prior To Bid Opening	96
	10.2. Online EDS Web Link	
	10.3. Online EDS Number	
	10.4. Online EDS Certification of Filing	
	10.6. Preparation Checklist For EDS Submission	97 97
	10.7. EDS Frequently Asked Questions	
11.	PREVAILING WAGE RATES FOR COOK COUNTY	102
12.	CITY OF CHICAGO TRAVEL GUIDELINES	103
	12.1. Travel Reimbursement Rates	
13.	PROPOSAL EXECUTION PAGES	
	13.1. Proposal to be Executed by a Corporation	
	13.2. Proposal to be Executed by a Partnership	
	13.3. Proposal to be Executed by a Sole Proprietor	110
	13.4. Proposal Acceptance by City	111

# 1. **DEFINITIONS**

Wherever applicable in the Contract Documents, the following terms, or pronouns in place of them, or abbreviations, are used; the interpretation and meaning will be interpreted as follows:

"Attachments"	means all exhibits attached hereto and/or incorporated by reference herein;
"Business Day"	means business days (Monday through Friday, excluding Holidays) in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar;
"Calendar Day"	means calendar days (Sunday through Saturday) in accordance with the worldwide accepted calendar
"Chief Procurement Officer"	refers to the chief executive officer of the Department of Procurement Services, for the City of Chicago, and any representative duly authorized in writing to act on the Chief Procurement Officer's behalf;
"City"	refers to the City of Chicago, a municipal corporation and home rule government under Sections 1 and 6(a), Article VII, of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois;
"Commissioner"	refers to the chief executive officer of the Department of Fleet Management for the City of Chicago, and any representative duly authorized in writing to act on the Commissioner's behalf;
"Contact Person"	refers to Contractor's management level personnel who will work as liaison between the City and the Contractor and be available to respond to any problems that may arise at a work site;
"Contract Documents"	are herein as incorporated into the Contract before its execution, and all as may be amended, modified, revised in accordance with the terms hereof;
"Contract"	means this contract for Runway Deicer Trucks, including all exhibits attached hereto and/or incorporated by reference herein, and all amendments, modifications, or revisions made from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof;
"Contractor"	refers to the person, firm, entity or corporation who is awarded this contract;
"Deliverables"	means any Runway Deicer Trucks, documents, reports, information, etc. to be provided by the Contractor to the City;
"Delivery Location"	refers to the location where the product or service is to be provided by the Contractor;
"Department"	means the Department of Fleet Management, City of Chicago;
"Force Majeure Event"	means events beyond the reasonable control of a party to this Contract, which is limited to acts of God, explosion, acts of the public enemy, fires, floods, earthquakes, tornadoes, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, work stoppages (except for work stoppages resulting from practices of the Contractor which are the subject of a finding of unfair labor practices by an administrative law judge of the National Labor Relations Board and except further for foreseeable work stoppages for which the Contractor has not reasonably prepared to minimize the harm or loss that is occasioned by such work stoppage);

means the following days in accordance with the City of Chicago New Year's Day, Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday, Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Pulaski "Holidavs" Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day; as used herein refers to the Contractor prepared document quoting a firm fixed price or unit price for performance of the Work, including all Contractor schedules and "Proposal" signatory documents required to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents: "Reporting Formats" means the appearance in which a report is submitted by the Contractor to the City; means all work to be performed by the Contractor hereunder, including provision of "Services" all labor materials, equipment, supplies and other incidentals necessary or convenient to the successful completion of the work; means any person or entity with whom the Contractor contracts to provide any part of the work, including subcontractors of any tier, suppliers and material men, whether or "Subcontractor" not in privity with the Contractor;

Unless a contrary meaning is specifically noted elsewhere, words as required, as directed, as permitted, and similar words mean that requirements, directions of, and permission of the Commissioner or Chief Procurement Officer are intended; similarly the words approved, acceptable, satisfactory, or words of like imports, will mean approved by, acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Commissioner or Chief Procurement Officer. The words necessary, proper, or words of like import as used with respect to extent of Work specified will mean that Work must be conducted in a manner, or be of character which is necessary or proper in the opinion of the Commissioner. The Commissioner's judgment in such matters will be considered final and incontestable by the Contractor.

refers to the location where the work is to be performed by the Contractor.

"Work Site"

Wherever the imperative form of address is used, such as provide equipment required it will be understood and agreed that such address is directed to the Contractor.

## 2. GENERAL CONDITIONS

Sealed bids will be received by the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Chicago in accordance with Contract Documents as set forth herein.

#### 2.1. DOWNLOADABLE DOCUMENT

**Bidders** download solicitation from Citv that а bid the of Chicago's website: http://egov.cityofchicago.org/procurement, instead of obtaining the hard copy paper bid solicitation from the City of Chicago's Bid and Bond Room, are responsible for checking the City of Chicago's website for clarifications and/or addenda. Failure to obtain clarifications and/or addenda from the City's website will not relieve the bidder from being bound by any additional terms and/or conditions in the clarification and/or addenda. The City will not be responsible for a bidder's failure to consider additional information contained therein in preparing the bid.

NOTE: Multiple clarifications and/or addenda may be issued in which the bidder is responsible for obtaining.

If the bid solicitation was downloaded from the City of Chicago's website instead of picking it up in a hard copy paper form from the City of Chicago's Bid and Bond Room, the bidder MUST contact the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, Bid and Bond Room at 312-744-9773 or by faxing a copy of a business card (include e-mail address, Specification Number and RFQ Number) to 312-744-5611 to register your company as a document holder for this bid solicitation.

Any harm to the bidder resulting from such failure to obtain all necessary documents will not be valid grounds for a protest against award(s) made under this bid solicitation.

## 2.2. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

If any person contemplating submitting a proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the specifications or other contract documents, a written request for an interpretation thereof, may be submitted to the Chief Procurement Officer. The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery. Any interpretation of the proposed documents will be made only by an addendum duly issued by the Chief Procurement Officer. A copy of such addendum will be faxed, electronically mailed, mailed or delivered to each person receiving a set of such contract documents and to such other prospective bidders as shall have requested that they be furnished with a copy of each addendum. Failure on the part of the prospective bidder to receive a written interpretation prior to the time of the opening of bids will not be grounds for withdrawal of proposal. Oral explanations will not be binding.

Bidder must acknowledge receipt of each addendum issued in the space provided on proposal page. Proposals that do not acknowledge receipt of any addenda will be rejected for being non-responsive to this requirement.

## 2.3. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL

Bidder must prepare its proposal on the attached Proposal Page(s). Unless otherwise stated, all blank spaces on the proposal page or pages, applicable to the subject specification, must be correctly filled in. Either a unit price or a lump sum price, as the case may be, must be stated for each and every item, either typed in or written in ink, in figures, and, if required, in words.

If bidder is a corporation, the President and Secretary must execute the bid and the corporate seal must be affixed. In the event that this bid is executed by other than the President, attach hereto a certified copy of that section of Corporate By-Laws or other authorization by the Corporation that permits the person to execute the offer for the corporation.

If bidder is a partnership, all partners must execute the bid, unless one partner has been authorized to sign for the partnership, in which case, evidence of such authority satisfactory to the Chief Procurement Officer must be submitted.

If bidder is a sole proprietorship, the sole proprietorship must execute the bid.

A "Partnership", "Joint Venture" or "Sole Proprietorship" operating under an Assumed Name must be registered with the Illinois county in which located, as provided in 805 ILCS 405 (1992).

Bidder/Proposer must acknowledge receipt of a full set of contract documents and any addenda at the top of the proposal execution page (i.e. to be executed by a corporation, partnership or sole proprietor as applicable). Proposals that do not acknowledge receipt of a full set of contract documents and any addenda will be rejected for being non-responsive to this requirement.

#### 2.4. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

All prospective bidders must submit sealed proposals with applicable bid deposit enclosed in envelopes provided for that purpose to the Department of Procurement Services, Room 301, City Hall, and if proposals are submitted in envelopes other than those so provided for this purpose, then the sealed envelope submitted by the prospective bidder must carry the following information on the face of the envelope: bidders name, address, subject matter of proposal, advertised date of bid opening and the hour designated for bid opening as shown on the legal advertisement.

Where proposals are sent by mail to the Chief Procurement Officer, the bidders are responsible for their delivery to the Chief Procurement Officer before the advertised date and hour for the opening of bids. If the mail is delayed beyond the date and hour set for the bid opening, proposals thus delayed will not be accepted.

Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided on the appropriate Proposal Execution Page. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.

## 2.5. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

Bidders may withdraw their proposals at any time prior to the time specified in the advertisement as the closing time for the receipt of bids. However, no bidder will withdraw or cancel his proposal for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after said advertised closing time for the receipt of proposals nor must the successful bidder withdraw or cancel or modify his proposal after having been notified by the Chief Procurement Officer that said proposal has been accepted by the City. The City reserves the right to withhold and deposit, as liquidated damages and not a penalty, the bid deposit of any bidder requesting withdrawal, cancellation or modification of its proposal prior to the stated period for acceptance of proposal.

Where this contract will be approved by another agency, such as the Federal Government or State of Illinois, then the bidder will not withdraw or cancel or modify his proposal for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after said advertised closing time for the receipt of proposals.

## 2.6. COMPETENCY OF BIDDER

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to refuse to award a contract to any person, firm or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the City of Chicago upon any debt or contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to said City, or had failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the City.

The bidder, if requested, must present within a reasonable time, as determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, evidence satisfactory to the Chief Procurement Officer of performance ability and possession of necessary facilities, pecuniary resources and adequate insurance to comply with the terms of these specifications and contract documents.

## 2.7. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS

The Chief Procurement Officer will represent and act for the City in all matters pertaining to this proposal and contract in conjunction therewith. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to disregard any informality in the bids and bidding, when in his opinion the best interest of the City will be served by such action.

The proposal is contained in these contract documents and MUST NOT BE DETACHED HERE FROM by any bidder when submitting a proposal. Incomplete proposals are subject to rejection.

## 2.8. ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS

The Chief Procurement Officer will accept in writing one of the proposals or more, if Basis of Award in Special Conditions allows for multiple awards and/or reject any/all proposals, within sixty (60) calendar days, or within ninety (90) calendar days where approval by other agencies is required, from the date of opening of bids, unless the lowest responsible bidder, upon request of the City, extends the time of acceptance to the City.

#### 2.9. TAXES

Federal Excise Tax does not apply to goods and materials purchased by the City of Chicago by virtue of Exemption Certificate No. 36-6005820 and State of Illinois Sales Tax does not apply by virtue of Exemption Number E9998-1874-09. Illinois Retailers' Occupation Tax, Use Tax, and Municipal Retailers Occupation Tax do not apply to materials or services purchased by the City of Chicago by virtue of Statute.

The price or prices quoted herein shall include all other Federal and/or State, direct and/or indirect taxes which apply. The prices quoted herein shall agree with all Federal laws and regulations.

## 2.10. CONTRACTOR'S FINANCIAL STATEMENT

If requested by the Chief Procurement Officer, the bidder will file with the office of the Chief Procurement Officer a Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition dated not earlier than the end of the Contractors last fiscal year period. The Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition will be kept on file by the Chief Procurement Officer as a representative statement for a period of one (1) year.

The Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition forms are available at the office of the Bid and Bond Section, Department of Procurement Services, Room 301 City Hall, or may be obtained by addressing a request to the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 403, City Hall, Chicago, Illinois, 60602. Failure to have a current Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition form on file with the DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES may be cause for the rejection of Contractor's Proposal.

#### 2.11. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE OF COMPONENT CONTRACT PARTS

The order of precedence of the component contract parts shall be as follows:

- 1. General Conditions.
- 2. Addenda, if any.
- 3. Special Conditions.
- 4. Detailed Specifications.
- 5. Standard Specifications of the City, State or Federal Government, if any.
- 6. Advertisement for proposals (copy of advertisement to be attached to back of cover).

The foregoing order of precedence will govern the interpretation of the contract in all cases of conflict or inconsistency therein, except as may be otherwise expressly provided by the City.

#### 2.12. NOTICES

All communications and notices herein provided for shall be faxed, delivered personally, electronically mailed, or mailed first class, postage prepaid, to the Contractor by name and address listed on the proposal hereof, to the Commissioner of the using department, and to the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 403, City Hall, 121 N. La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

#### 2.13. NON-DISCRIMINATION

#### A. Federal Requirements

It is an unlawful employment practice for the Contractor (1) to fail or refuse to hire or to discharge any individual, or otherwise to discriminate against any individual with respect to his compensation, or the terms, conditions, or privileges of his employment, because of such individuals race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin; or (2) to limit, segregate, or classify his employees or applicants for employment in any way which would

deprive or tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect his status as an employee, because of such individuals race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin.

Contractor must comply with The Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. sec. 2000 et seq. (1988), as amended. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11,246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319 (1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. 2000(e) note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11,375, 32 Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12,086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 6101-6106 (1988); Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. sec. 793-794 (1988); Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 12102 et seq.; and 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq. (1990); and all other applicable federal laws, rules, regulations and executive orders.

#### B. State Requirements

Contractor must comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1 - 101 et seq. (1992), as amended and any rules and regulations promulgated in accordance therewith, including, but not limited to the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, 44 III. Admin. Code '750 Appendix A. Furthermore, the Contractor must comply with the Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 et seq. (1992), as amended; and all other applicable state laws, rules, regulations and executive orders.

#### C. City Requirements

Contractor must comply with the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance, Ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 et seq. of the Chicago Municipal Code (1990), as amended; and all other applicable municipal code provisions, rules, regulations and executive orders. Further, Contractor must furnish or shall cause each of its subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as requested by the Chicago Commission on Human Relations.

#### 2.14. INDEMNITY

Contractor must defend, indemnify, keep and hold harmless the City, its officers, representatives, elected and appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all losses, including those related to:

- 1. injury, death or damage of or to any person or property;
- 2. any infringement or violation of any property right (including any patent, trademark or copyright);
- 3. Contractor's failure to perform or cause to be performed Contractor's covenants and obligations as and when required under this Contract, including Contractor's failure to perform its obligations to any subcontractor;
- 4. the City's exercise of its rights and remedies under this Contract; and
- 5. injuries to or death of any employee of Contractor or any subcontractor under any workers compensation statute;

"Losses" means, individually and collectively, liabilities of every kind, including Losses, damages and reasonable costs, payments and expenses (such as, but not limited to, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements), claims, demands, actions, suits, proceedings, judgments or settlements, any or all of which in any way arise out of or relate to Contractor's breach of this Contract or to Contractor's negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions or those of its officers, agents, employees, consultants, subcontractors or licensees.

At the City Corporation Counsels option, Contractor must defend all suits brought upon all such Losses and must pay all costs and expenses incidental to them, but the City has the right, at its option, to participate, at its own cost, in the defense of any suit, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations under this Contract. Any settlement must be made only with the prior written consent of the City Corporation Counsel, if the settlement requires any action on the part of the City.

To the extent permissible by law, Contractor waives any limits to the amount of its obligation to indemnify, defend or contribute to any sums due under any Losses, including any claim by any employee of Contractor that may be subject to the Workers Compensation Act, 820ILCS305/1 et seq. or any other related law or judicial decision (such as, Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 III. 2nd 155 (1991). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the Illinois Workers Compensation Act, the Illinois Pension Code or any other statute or judicial decision.

The indemnities in this section survive expiration or termination of this Contract for matters occurring or arising during the term of this Contract or as the result of or during the Contractor's performance of service beyond the term. Contractor acknowledges that the requirements set forth in this section to indemnify, keep and save

harmless and defend the City are apart from and not limited by the Contactor's duties under this Contract, including the insurance requirements set forth in the Contract.

## 2.15. SAFETY AND LOSS CONTROL

The Contractor, its agents, employees, material suppliers and subcontractors, will perform all work on the project in a safe and responsible manner. The Contractor, its agents, employees, material suppliers, and subcontractors are required to maintain compliance with all local, state and federal regulatory requirements and current versions of applicable consensus standards (incorporated by reference), pertaining to the work being performed. This includes, but is not limited to the requirements of the City of Chicago Municipal Code, Illinois Department of Labor (IDOL), Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (ILEPA), the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), Department of Transportation (DOT) and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) where applicable.

Minimum requirements of the Contractors accident/incident prevention program include, but are not limited to the following:

- 1. A training program that includes safety and the identification of worksite hazards.
- 2. Standard operating procedures, applicable directives, rules and regulations, which promote rather than discourage safe operating procedures, (i.e., encouraging employees to report unsafe conditions, to participate in investigations, and to report all work related injuries and illnesses immediately, or as soon as possible).
- 3. Implementation of an Accident/Incident Reporting Program, which includes first aid and injury treatment procedures at the job site and the use of the nearest medical facility. The Program must also include procedures for reporting incidents involving near misses or damage to City equipment and/or property. Procedures must ensure that injured or medically ill persons receive prompt first aid and/or medical treatment and that every accident/incident occurring on City property, is promptly reported to Contractor management and the Commissioner. A completed report of the accident/incident must be promptly submitted to the Commissioner.
- 4. Develop an Emergency Evacuation/Disaster Control Plan consistent with the Commissioner's requirements. The plan must include applicable names and telephone numbers of Contract Management. The Contractor must communicate the contents of the plan to its employees and subcontractors. The Contractor's employees and subcontractors must be trained in the use of the emergency procedures. Copies of the plan must be provided to the Commissioner.
- 5. Contractors must also comply with the safety and health requirements of the Commissioner. The Commissioner may at any time, require additional provisions, if such are deemed necessary for public safety or convenience.

The Contractor's attention is directed to the Health and Safety Act of the State of Illinois, 8209 ILCS 225/3 et seq. The rules pursuant to this Act are on file with the Secretary of State of Illinois and are identical in every respect with the standards in effect under the Federal OSHA law, pursuant to orders of the Illinois Industrial Commission. The Federal and State standards require that the Contractor provide reasonable protection to the lives, health, and safety of all persons employed under this Contract. Such act and rules and the applicable parts thereof must be considered as part of this Contract.

The Contractor and subcontractors must comply with said requirements, standards, and regulations, as required; and be directly responsible for compliance therewith on the part of its said agents, employees, and material suppliers. The Contractor and subcontractors must directly receive, respond to, defend and be responsible for all citations, assessments, fines or penalties that may be incurred by reason of its failure on the part of its agents, employees, or material suppliers to so comply.

# 2.16. LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE

- A. Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts, specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers, and clerical workers ("Covered Employees"). Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations promulgated thereunder:
  - 1. if the Contractor has twenty-five (25) or more full-time employees, and

- 2. if at any time during the performance of the contract the Contractor and/or any subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services (collectively "Performing Parties") uses twenty-five (25) or more full-time security guards, or any number of other full-time Covered Employees, then
- 3. the Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision (the "Base Wage") for all work performed pursuant to the Contract.
- B. The Contractor's obligation to pay, and to assure payment of, the Base Wage will begin at any time during the Contract term when the conditions set forth in A.1 and A.2 above are met, and will continue thereafter until the end of the Contract term.
- C. As of July 1, 2010, the Base Wage is \$11.03 per hour. Each July 1st, thereafter, the Base Wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of four (4) as published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute the following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four (4) divided by two thousand (2000) hours or the current base wage, whichever is higher. At all times during the term of this Contract, Contractor and all other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above). If the payment of prevailing wages is required for work or services done under this Contract, and the prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then the Contractor must pay the prevailing wage rates.
- D. The Contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. The Contractor agrees to provide the City with documentation acceptable to the Chief Procurement Officer demonstrating that all Covered Employees, whether employed by the Contractor or by a subcontractor, have been paid the Base Wage, upon the City's request for such documentation. The City may independently audit the Contractor and/or subcontractors to verify compliance herewith. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section will be an event of default under this Contract, and further, failure to comply may result in ineligibility for any award of a City contract or subcontract for up to three (3) years.
- E. Not-for-Profit Corporations: If the Contractor is a corporation having Federal tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized under Illinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of Section A through D above do not apply.

## 2.17. PREVAILING WAGE RATES

To the extent required by law, the Contractor will comply, and will cause all of its Subcontractors to comply and insert appropriate provision in their Contracts, with 820 ILCS 130/01 et seq. regarding the payment of the general prevailing rate of hourly wage for all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by or behalf of the Contractor and all Subcontractors in connection with any services. To the extent applicable, the Contractor will ensure that it and its Subcontractors comply with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (prevailing wages) Act, 40 U.S.C. sec 276, as amended, and the Copeland (anti-kickback) Act, 18 U.S.C., sec 874, and related regulations. The Contractor must comply with AN ACT regulating wages of laborers, mechanics, and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under Contract for public works.

It is the policy of the State of Illinois that a wage of no less than the general prevailing hourly rate as paid for work of a similar character in the locality in which the work is performed, must be paid to all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by or on behalf of any and all public bodies engaged in public works.

The term general prevailing hourly rate, when used in this requirement will mean the hourly cash wages plus fringe benefits for health and welfare, insurance, vacations and pensions paid generally, in the locality in which the work is being performed, to employees engaged in work of a similar character on public works.

If the Department of Labor revises the general prevailing hourly rate to be paid by the public body, the revised rate must apply to such Contract. The term general prevailing hourly rate, when used in this Act means the hourly cash wages plus fringe benefits for health and welfare, insurance, vacations and pensions paid generally, in the locality in which the work is being performed, to employee engaged in work of a similar character on public works. A copy of the current Illinois Department of Labor Prevailing Wage Rates for Cook County is attached as Attachment A.

If the nature of the Work or services under this Contract is subject to the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq., then not less than the general prevailing rate of hourly wages as determined by the Illinois Department of Labor (IDOL) must be paid to all laborers, mechanics, and other workers performing Work under this Contract. Contractor's attention is called to the generally prevailing rate of wages for Cook County in effect at the time these specifications were issued, as determined by IDOL. They are also the prevailing wage rates for the City of Chicago. If required for this Work, they are attached to and incorporated in these specifications, or refer to website: www.state.il.us/agency/idol/CM/countym.htm for Cook County. Contractor is fully responsible for paying the generally prevailing hourly rate of wages in effect, as determined by the IDOL, at the time the Work is performed. If IDOL revises the prevailing rate of hourly wages to be paid for the Work before completion of the Work under this Contract, the revised rate applies from the effective date of the revision, but any such revision will not entitle Contractor to any increased compensation under the terms of this Contract.

As a condition of making payment to the Contractor, the City may require the Contractor to submit an affidavit to the effect that not less than the prevailing hourly wage rate is being paid to laborers, mechanics, and other workmen employed on this Contract in accordance with Illinois law.

#### 2.18. PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

Work performed under this contract is interpreted to include materials to be furnished under this contract which are suitably stored at the site of the work. Unless otherwise provided in Special Conditions, which will be subject to the provisions of Chapter 26-13 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, the Chief Procurement Officer may from time to time, in cases where the Contractor must proceed properly to perform and complete his contract, grant to such Contractor as the work progresses an estimate of the amount already earned. All partial payment estimates shall be subject to correction by the final estimate.

Waivers from Subcontractors and Suppliers indicating that they have received their share from the Contractor of the previous partial payment to the Contractor must be presented concurrently by the Contractor when he presents an estimate for a partial payment.

The Chief Procurement Officer may, whenever he have reason to believe that the Contractor has neglected or failed to pay any subcontractors, workmen or employees for work performed or for materials furnished and used in or about the work contracted for, order and direct that no future vouchers or estimates be issued and no further payments be made upon the contract until said Chief Procurement Officer has been satisfied that such subcontractors, workmen and employees have been fully paid, and the reserve sum referred to in the above stated Chapter 26-13 has not been payable until the Contractor has satisfied the Chief Procurement Officer that all subcontractors, material men, workmen and employees have been fully paid.

Whenever the Chief Procurement Officer notifies the Contractor, by notice personally served or by mailing a copy thereof to the Contractor to his office as shown by his bid, that no further vouchers or estimates will be issued or payments made on the contract until subcontractors, workmen and employees have been paid, and the Contractor neglect or refuse for the period of ten (10) calendar days after such notice is given, as above provided for, to pay such subcontractors, workmen and employees, the City may then apply any money due or that may become due under the contract to the payment of such subcontractors, workmen and employees without other or further notice to said Contractor; but failure of the City to retain and apply such moneys, or of the Chief Procurement Officer to order or direct that no vouchers or estimates shall be issued or further payments be made shall not, nor shall the paying over of such reserve sum without such subcontractors, workmen or employees being first paid, in any way affect the liability of the Contractor or of his sureties to the City, or to any such subcontractors, workmen or employees upon any bond given in connection with such contract.

Before final payment is made under the contract, and as a condition precedent to such final payment, the Contractor shall furnish waivers of all liens and satisfactory guarantees against all claims on account of work performed, tools and plant employed, and material and labor furnished under the contract. The Contractors shall not be entitled to demand or receive final payment until all the stipulations, provisions and conditions set forth in the contract have been complied with, and the work has been accepted by the Commissioner, whereupon the City will, at the expiration of thirty (30) calendar days after such completion and acceptance, pay the whole account of money due the Contractor under the contract.

The acceptance by the Contractor of the final payment above mentioned shall operate as and shall be a release to the City from all claims or liability under this contract for anything done or furnished or relating to the work under this contract, or for any act or neglect of the City relating to or connected with this contract.

## 2.19. COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS

Unless otherwise provided in Special Conditions, if separate contracts are let for work within or adjacent to the project site as may further be hereinafter detailed in the contract documents, each Contractor must conduct his work so as not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work being performed by other contractors.

Each Contractor involved must assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his contract, and shall protect and save harmless the City from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of inconvenience, delay, or loss experienced by him because of the presence and operations of other contractors working within the limits of the same improvement. Each Contractor must assume all responsibility for all work not completed or accepted because of the presence and operations of the other contractors.

The Contractor must as far as possible, arrange his work and place and dispose of the materials being used, so as not to interfere with the operations of the other contractors within or adjacent to the limits of the project site. Contractor must join his work with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper sequence to that of the others.

# 2.20. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT OR CONTRACT FUNDS

No contract will be assigned or any part of the same sub-contracted without the written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer; but in no case will such consent relieve the Contractor from his obligations, or change the terms of the contract.

The Contractor must not transfer or assign any contract funds or claims due or to become due without the written approval of the Chief Procurement Officer having first been obtained.

The transfer or assignment of any contract funds either in whole or in part, or any interest therein, which will be due or to become due to the Contractor, will cause the annulment of said transfer or assignment so far as the City is concerned.

#### 2.21. SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor must notify the Chief Procurement Officer, in writing, of the names of all subcontractors to be used and will not employ any that the Chief Procurement Officer may object to.

The Contractor will not subcontract any portion of the services or work to be performed hereunder without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer. The Subcontracting of the services or work or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer will be null and void. The Contractor will not make any substitution of a subcontractor without the written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer. The substitution of a subcontractor without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer will be null and void. The Chief Procurement Officer's consent will not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the Contract.

The Contractor will subcontract with only competent and responsible subcontractors. If, in the judgment of the Commissioner or the Chief Procurement Officer, any subcontractor is careless, incompetent, violates safety or security rules, obstructs the progress of the services, acts contrary to instructions, acts improperly, is not responsible, is unfit, is incompetent, violates any laws applicable to this Contract, or fails to follow the requirements of this Contract, then the Contractor will, immediately upon notice from the Commissioner or the Chief Procurement Officer, discharge or otherwise remove such subcontractor.

#### 2.22. SUBCONTRACTORS WITH DISABILITIES

The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or operated by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.

## 2.23. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS

Contractor must submit a status report of Subcontractor payments with each invoice for the duration of the contract on the "Subcontractor Payment Certification" form required by the City. The form can be downloaded from the City's website at:

http://egov.cityofchicago.org/webportal/COCWebPortal/COC\_EDITORIAL/subcompliance.pdf. The statement must list the following for Contractor and for each Subcontractor and supplier for the period for which payment is requested:

- 1. Total amount invoiced by the Contractor for the prior month;
- 2. The name of each particular Subcontractor or supplier utilized during the prior month;
- Indication if the Subcontractor or supplier is acting as an MBE, WBE, DBE, or non-certified firm on this contract:
- 4. The vendor/supplier number of each Subcontractor or supplier;
- 5. Total amount invoiced that is to be paid to each Subcontractor or supplier.

If a Subcontractor has satisfactorily completed its Work, or provided specified materials in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, Contractor must pay Subcontractor for such work or materials within fourteen (14) calendar days of Contractor receiving payment from the City.

## 2.24. MATERIALS INSPECTION AND RESPONSIBILITY

The City, by its Chief Procurement Officer, will have a right to inspect any material to be used in carrying out this contract.

The City does not assume any responsibility for the availability of any controlled materials or other materials and equipment required under this contract. The Contractor will be responsible for the contracted quality and standards of all materials, components or completed work furnished under this contract up to the time of final acceptance by the City.

Materials, components or completed work not complying therewith may be rejected by the Chief Procurement Officer and must be replaced by the Contractor at no cost to the City.

Any materials or components rejected must be removed within a reasonable time from the premises of the City at the entire expense of the Contractor, after written notice has been mailed by the City to the Contractor that such materials or components have been rejected.

## 2.25. CASH BILLING DISCOUNT

Any cash billing discounts offered will not be considered in the evaluation of bids.

## 2.26. SUPERVISION

The Contractor must personally supervise the work or will have a competent person at the site at all times to act for Contractor.

# **2.27. AUDITS**

The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Contractor or its Subcontractors, or both, at any time during the term of this Contract or within five (5) years after the Contract ends, in connection with the goods, work, or services provided under this Contract. Each calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an "audited period". If, as a result of such an audit, it is determined that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in the audited period, the City will notify Contractor. Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all of the cost of the audit, as follows:

1. If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than five percent (5%) of the total value, based on the contract prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the audited period, then

the Contractor must reimburse the City for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the audit and fifty percent (50%) of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts;

2. If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing five percent (5%) or more of the total value, based on the contract prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of each subsequent audit.

Failure of Contractor to reimburse the City in accordance with A. or B. above is an event of default under this Contract, and Contractor will be liable for all of the City's costs of collection, including any court costs and attorney's fees.

#### 2.28. PRICE REDUCTION

If at any time after the date of the bid or offer the Contractor makes a general price reduction in the comparable price of any material covered by the contract to customers generally, an equivalent price reduction based on similar quantities and/or considerations shall apply to the contract for the duration of the contract period (or until the price is further reduced). Such price reduction will be effective at the same time and in the same manner as the reduction in the price to customers generally. For purpose of this provision, a general price reduction will mean any horizontal reduction in the price of an article or service offered (1) to Contractors customers generally, or (2) in the Contractor's price schedule for the class of customers, i.e., wholesalers, jobbers, retailers, etc., which was used as the basis for bidding on this contract. An occasional sale at a lower price, or sale of distressed merchandise at a lower price, would not be considered a general price reduction under this provision. The Contractor must invoice the ordering offices at such reduced prices indicating on the invoice that the reduction is pursuant to the Price Reduction provision of the contract documents. The Contractor, in addition, must within ten (10) calendar days of any general price reduction notify the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Chicago of such reduction by letter. Failure to do so may require termination of the contract. Upon receipt of any such notice of a general price reduction all ordering offices will be duly notified by the Chief Procurement Officer.

The Contractor must furnish, within ten (10) calendar days after the end of the contract period, a statement certifying either:

- 1. that no general price reduction, as defined above, was made after the date of the bid or offer; or
- 2. if any such general price reductions were made, that is provided above, they were reported to the Chief Procurement Officer within ten (10) calendar days, and ordering offices were billed at the reduced prices.

Where one (1) or more such general price reductions were made, the statement furnished by the Contractor must include with respect to each price reduction:

- 1. the date when notice of any such reduction was issued;
- 2. the effective date of the reduction; and
- 3. the date when the Chief Procurement Officer was notified of any such reduction.

## 2.29. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN CONTRIBUTIONS - MAYORAL EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 05-1

Contractor agrees that Contractor, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in Contractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Owners"), spouses and domestic partners of such Owners, Contractor's Subcontractors, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in any Subcontractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Sub-owners") and spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-owners (Contractor and all the other preceding classes of persons and entities are together, the "Identified Parties"), shall not make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago (the "Mayor") or to his political fundraising committee (i) after execution of this bid, proposal or Agreement by Contractor, (ii) while this Agreement or any Other Contract is executory, (iii) during the term of this Agreement or any Other Contract between Contractor and the City, or (iv) during any period while an extension of this Agreement or any Other Contract is being sought or negotiated.

Contractor represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City approached the Contractor or the date the Contractor approached the City, as applicable, regarding the formulation of this Agreement, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that it shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; (b) reimburse its employees for a contribution of any amount made to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; or (c) bundle or solicit others to bundle contributions to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that the Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever designed to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 05-1 or to entice, direct or solicit others to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 05-1.

Contractor agrees that a violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation with respect to, or breach of any covenant or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral Executive Order No. 05-1 constitutes a breach and default under this Agreement, and under any Other Contract for which no opportunity to cure will be granted. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies (including without limitation termination for default) under this Agreement, under Other Contract, at law and in equity. This provision amends any Other Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision contained therein.

If Contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 05-1 prior to award of the Agreement resulting from this specification, the Chief Procurement Officer may reject Contractor's bid.

For purposes of this provision:

"Bundle" means to collect contributions from more than one source which are then delivered by one person to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

"Other Contract" means any other agreement with the City of Chicago to which Contractor is a party that is (i) formed under the authority of chapter 2-92 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; (ii) entered into for the purchase or lease of real or personal property; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved or authorized by the city council.

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

Individuals are "Domestic Partners" if they satisfy the following criteria:

- 1. they are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare; and
- 2. neither party is married; and
- 3. the partners are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State of Illinois; and
- 4. each partner is at least 18 years of age, and the partners are the same sex, and the partners reside at the same residence; and
- 5. two of the following four conditions exist for the partners:
  - a. The partners have been residing together for at least 12 months.
  - b. The partners have common or joint ownership of a residence.
  - c. The partners have at least two of the following arrangements:
    - i. joint ownership of a motor vehicle;
    - ii. a joint credit account;
    - iii. a joint checking account:
    - iv. a lease for a residence identifying both domestic partners as tenants.
  - d. Each partner identifies the other partner as a primary beneficiary in a will.

"Political fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

## 2.30. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

No member of the governing body of the City of Chicago or other unit of government and no other officer, employee or agent of the City of Chicago or other unit of government who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of the project will have any personal or financial interests, direct or indirect, in the contract.

The Contractor covenants that he presently has no interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in the project to which the contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its work hereunder. The Contractor further covenants that in its performance of the contract no person having any such interest will be employed.

#### 2.31. GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS ORDINANCE

Contractor must comply with Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, "Governmental Ethics", including but not limited to Section 2-156-120 of this Chapter pursuant to which no payment, gratuity or offer of employment will be made in connection with any City contract, by or on behalf of a subcontractor to the prime Contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Any contract negotiated, entered into, or performed in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter will be voidable as to the City.

## 2.32. DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP

Pursuant to Chapter 2-154 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, any person, business entity or agency submitting a bid or proposal to or contracting with the City of Chicago will be required to complete the Disclosure of Ownership Interests in the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit. Failure to provide complete or accurate disclosure will render this Agreement voidable.

## 2.33. DISCLOSURE OF RETAINED PARTIES - EXECUTIVE ORDER 97-1

Bidder will be required to execute the Disclosure of Retained Parties Section of the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit as required by Executive Order 97-1. Refusal to execute the Disclosure of Retained Parties Section of the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit will result in the Chief Procurement Officer declaring the bidder non-responsible. Moreover, if a bidder is deemed non-responsible under this provision, the bidder's status as a non-responsible bidder may apply to the bidder's subsequent bids.

## 2.34. INSPECTOR GENERAL AND LEGISLATIVE INSPECTOR GENERAL

It is the duty of any bidder, proposer or Consultant, all Subcontractors, every applicant for certification of eligibility for a City contract or program, and all officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of any bidder, proposer, Consultant, Subcontractor or such applicant to cooperate with the Inspector General or the Legislative Inspector General in any investigation or hearing, if applicable, undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-56 or 2-55, respectively, of the Municipal Code. Contractor understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapters 2-56 and 2-55 of the Municipal Code. All subcontracts must inform Subcontractors of the provisions and require understanding and compliance with them.

# 2.35. CHAPTER 2-26 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO, OFFICE OF COMPLIANCE

It is the duty of any bidder, proposer, Consultant, Contractor, all Subcontractors, and every applicant for certification of eligibility for a City Agreement or program, and all officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of any bidder, proper, consultant or such applicant to cooperate with the Office of Compliance in any investigation or audit pursuant to Chapter 2-26 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. The Consultant understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-26 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. All subcontracts will inform Subcontractors of this provision and require understanding and compliance with it."

# 2.36. SECTION 2-92-380 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO

1) In accordance with Section 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and in addition to any other rights and remedies (including any of set-off) available to the City of Chicago under the contract or permitted at law or in equity, the City will be entitled to set off a portion of the contract price or compensation due under the contract, in an amount equal to the amount of the fines and penalties for each outstanding parking violation complaint and the amount of any debt owed by the contracting party to the City. For purposes of this section, outstanding parking violation complaint means a parking ticket, notice of parking violation, or parking violation complaint on which no payment has been made or appearance filed in the Circuit Court of Cook County within the time specified on the complaint. Debt means a specified sum of money owed to the City for which the period granted for payment has expired.

- 2) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), above, no such debt(s) or outstanding parking violation complaint(s) will be offset from the contract price or compensation due under the contract if one or more of the following conditions are met:
  - a) the contracting party has entered into an agreement with the Department of Revenue, or other appropriate City department, for the payment of all outstanding parking violation complaints and debts owed to the City and the contracting party is in compliance with the agreement; or
  - b) the contracting party is contesting liability for or the amount of the debt in a pending administrative or judicial proceeding; or
  - c) the contracting party has filed a petition in bankruptcy and the debts owed the City are dischargeable in bankruptcy.

# 2.37. SECTION 11-4-1600(E) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Contractor warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors have not violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste Sections):

7-28-390	Dumping on public way;
7-28-440	Dumping on real estate without permit;
11-4-1410	Disposal in waters prohibited;
11-4-1420	Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge;
11-4-1450	Gas manufacturing residue;
11-4-1500	Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste;
11-4-1530	Compliance with rules and regulations required;
11-4-1550	Operational requirements; and
11-4-1560	Screening requirements.

During the period while this Contract is executory, Contractor's or any Subcontractor's violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Contract, constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Contract, for which the opportunity to cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole discretion of the Chief Procurement Officer. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Contract, at law or in equity.

This section does not limit the Contractor's and its Subcontractors' duty to comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Contract.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for the termination of this Contract, and may further affect the Contractor's eligibility for future contract awards.

#### 2.38. BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED OFFICIALS

Pursuant to Section 2-156-030(b) of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, it is illegal for any elected official of the city, or any person acting at the direction of such official, to contact, either orally or in writing, any other city official or employee with respect to any matter involving any person with whom the elected official has a business relationship, or to participate in any discussion in any city council committee hearing or in any city council meeting or to vote on any matter involving the person with whom an elected official has a business relationship. Violation of Section 2-156-030(b) by any elected official with respect to this contract will be grounds for termination of this contract. The term business relationship is defined as set forth in Section 2-156-080 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

Section 2-156-080 defines a "business relationship" as any contractual or other private business dealing of an official, or his or her spouse, or of any entity in which an official or his or her spouse has a financial interest, with a person or entity which entitles an official to compensation or payment in the amount of \$2,500 or more in a calendar year; provided, however, a financial interest shall not include: (i) any ownership through purchase at fair market value or inheritance of less than one percent of the share of a corporation, or any corporate subsidiary, parent or affiliate thereof, regardless of the value of or dividends on such shares, if such shares are registered on

a securities exchange pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; (ii) the authorized compensation paid to an official or employee for his office or employment; (iii) any economic benefit provided equally to all residents of the city; (iv) a time or demand deposit in a financial institution; or (v) an endowment or insurance policy or annuity contract purchased from an insurance company. A "contractual or other private business dealing" will not include any employment relationship of an official's spouse with an entity when such spouse has no discretion concerning or input relating to the relationship between that entity and the city.

#### 2.39. MACBRIDE PRINCIPLES ORDINANCE

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, if the primary Contractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, it is hereby required that the Contractor will make all reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act 85-1390 (1988 III. Laws 3220).

For those Contractors who take exception in competitive bid contracts to the provision set forth above, the City will assess an eight percent (8%) penalty. This penalty will increase their bid price for the purpose of canvassing the bids in order to determine who is to be the lowest responsible bidder. This penalty will apply only for purposes of comparing bid amounts and will not affect the amount of any contract payment.

The provisions of this Section will not apply to contracts for which the City receives funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not withhold funds from states and localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.

#### 2.40. CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

The Contractor or each joint venture partner, if applicable, must complete the appropriate subsections in the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit (the Affidavit) under: Certification By Applicant, which certifies that the Contractor or each joint venture partner, its agents, employees, officers and any subcontractors (a) have not been engaged in or been convicted of bribery or attempted bribery of a public officer or employee of the City of Chicago, the State of Illinois, any agency of the federal government or any state or local government in the United States or engaged in or been convicted of bid-rigging or bid-rotation activities as defined in this section as required by the Illinois Criminal Code; (b) do not owe any debts to the State of Illinois, in accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 and (c) are not presently debarred or suspended: Certification Regarding Environmental Compliance; Certification Regarding Ethics and Inspector General; and Certification Regarding Court-Ordered Child Support Compliance.

## 2.41. COMPLIANCE WITH CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS ORDINANCE

The Child Support Arrearage Ordinance, Municipal Code of Chicago, Section 2-92-415, furthers the City's interest in contracting with entities which demonstrate financial responsibility, integrity and lawfulness, and finds that it is especially inequitable for Contractors to obtain the benefits of public funds under City contracts while its owners fail to pay court-ordered child support, and shift the support of their dependents onto the public treasury.

In accordance with Section 2-92-415 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, if the Circuit Court of Cook County or an Illinois court of competent jurisdiction has issued an order declaring one or more Substantial Owner in arrearage on their child support obligations and: (1) a one such Substantial Owner has not entered into a court-approved agreement for the payment of all such child support owed, or (2) a Substantial Owner is not in compliance with a court-approved agreement for the payment of all such child support owed, (see Certification of Compliance with Child Support Orders in Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit), then:

For those bidders in competitive bid contracts, the City will assess an eight percent (8%) penalty. This penalty will increase their bid price for the purpose of canvassing the bids in order to determine the lowest responsible

bidder. This penalty will apply only for purposes of comparing bid amounts and will not affect the amount of any contract payment.

For purposes of this section, "SUBSTANTIAL OWNER" means any person who owns or holds a ten percent (10%) or more percentage of interest in the bidder; where the bidder is an individual or sole proprietorship, substantial owner means that individual or sole proprietorship.

"PERCENTAGE OF INTEREST" includes direct, indirect and beneficial interests in the Contractor. Indirect or beneficial interest means that an interest in the Contractor is held by a corporation, joint venture, trust, partnership, association, estate or other legal entity, in which the individual holds an interest, or by agent(s) or nominee(s) on behalf of an individual or entity. For example, if Corporation B holds or owns a twenty percent (20%) interest in Contractor, and an individual or entity has a fifty percent (50%) or more percentage of interest in Corporation B, then such individual or entity indirectly has a ten percent (10%) or more percentage of interest in the Contractor. If Corporation B is held by another entity, then this analysis similarly must be applied to that next entity.

The provisions of this Section will only apply where not otherwise prohibited by federal, state or local law.

## 2.42. NON-COLLUSION, BRIBERY OF A PUBLIC OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE

Contractor, in performing under this contract must comply with the Municipal Code of Chicago, Section 2-92-320, as follows:

No person or business entity will be awarded a contract or sub-contract if that person or business entity: (a) has been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe a public officer or employee of the City of Chicago, the State of Illinois, or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in the United States, in that officers or employee's official capacity; or (b) has been convicted of agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise; or (c) has made an admission of guilt of such conduct described in (a) or (b) above which is a matter of record but has not been prosecuted for such conduct.

For purposes of this section, where an official, agent or employee of a business entity has committed any offense under this section on behalf of such an entity and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official thereof, the business entity shall be chargeable with the conduct. One business entity shall be chargeable with the conduct of an affiliated agency.

Ineligibility under this section will continue for three (3) years following such conviction or admission. The period of ineligibility may be reduced, suspended, or waived by the Chief Procurement Officer under certain specific circumstances. Reference is made to Section 2-92-320 for a definition of affiliated agency, and a detailed description of the conditions which would permit the Chief Procurement Officer to reduce, suspend, or waive the period of ineligibility.

## 2.43. FEDERAL TERRORIST (NO-BUSINESS) LIST

Contractor warrants and represents that neither Contractor nor an Affiliate, as defined below, appears on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List, or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce or their successors, or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment.

"Affiliate" means a person or entity which directly, or indirectly through one or more entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity, either acting individually or acting jointly or in concert with others, whether directly or indirectly and whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

## 2.44. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

Contractor must observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, regulations, codes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later and whether or not they appear in the Agreement, including those specifically referenced herein or in any of the Contract Documents. Contractor must pay all taxes and obtain all licenses, certificates and other authorizations required in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder, and Contractor must require all Subcontractors to do so. Failure to do so is an event of default and may result in the termination of this Agreement.

The Contractor understands and will abide by the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

The Contractor will comply with Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

Failure by the Contractor or any controlling person (as defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago) thereof to maintain eligibility to do business with the City of Chicago as required by Section 1-23-030 of the Municipal Code of Chicago shall be grounds for termination of this Contract.

## 2.45. COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENT LAWS

#### General

The Contractor must at all times observe and comply with all applicable Federal, State, City and other local governmental and agency laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and codes.

#### Environmental

The Contractor must comply with all laws relating to environmental matters including without limitation, those relating to fines, orders, injunctions, penalties, damages, contribution, cost recovery compensation, losses or injuries resulting from the release or threatened release of hazardous materials, special wastes or other contaminants into the environment and to the generation, use, storage, transportation, or disposal of solid wastes, hazardous materials, special wastes or other contaminants (collectively, "Environmental Laws") including but not limited to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Department of Transportation Regulations, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, the Clean Air Act, the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (40 C.F.R. 61 .145), and the Municipal Code, as currently in effect and as amended during the course of the contract period. If any Environmental Laws require the Contractor to file any notice or report of a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, special wastes or other contaminants on, under or about any premises used by Contractor to perform the Services required hereunder, the Contractor must provide a copy of such report or notice to the City. In the event of a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, special waste or other contaminants into the environment or in the event any claim, demand, action or notice is made against the Contractor regarding the Contractor's failure or alleged failure to comply with any Environmental Laws, the Contractor must immediately notify the City in writing and shall provide the City with copies of any written claims, demands, notices or actions so made.

If the Contractor fails to comply with any Environmental Laws, the City may terminate the Contract in accordance with the default provisions of this Agreement.

For purposes of this provision, the following definitions will apply:

"Hazardous materials" means friable asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB's), chlorofluorocarbon (CFC) refrigerator gas, petroleum or crude oil or any fraction thereof, natural gas, source material, special nuclear materials; and by product materials regulated under the Atomic Energy Act (42 U.S.C § 136 et.seq.), and any hazardous waste, toxic or dangerous substance or related material, including any, material defined or treated as "hazardous substance," "hazardous waste", "toxic substance," or contaminant (or comparable term) under any of the Environmental Laws. "Special waste" means those substances as defined in 415 ILCS 5/3.45, and as further referred to in Section 809.13 of 35 Illinois Code, Subtitle G, ch.1.

## 2.46. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Contract is held or considered to be or is in fact invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case or in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or provisions of this Contract or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule of law or public policy, or for any other reason, those circumstances do not have the effect of rendering the provision in question invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable in any case or circumstances, or of rendering any other provision or provisions in this Contract invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatsoever. The invalidity, illegality, inoperativeness or unenforceability of any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections in this Agreement does not affect the remaining portions of this Contract or any part of it.

#### 2.47. FORCE MAJEURE EVENT

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract, neither the City nor the Contractor will be liable to the other party for performance of their respective obligations under this Contract if such performance is prevented by the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event. However, if the Contractor is unable to provide the vehicle or equipment as required by this Contract due to the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, and the Contractor is not able to restore full provision of the vehicle or equipment within seven (7) calendar days, then the City may elect to terminate this Contract in accordance with this Contract. In addition, if the Contractor is prevented from providing any portion of the Services due to a Force Majeure Event, then, if so directed by the City, the Contractor will cause its personnel to appear before the Chief Procurement Officer or any other interested group or body, as directed by the City, and such personnel will summarize both the Force Majeure Event and the efforts being made by the Contractor to resume the Services required by this Contract.

### 2.48. FALSE STATEMENTS

False statements made in connection with this Agreement, including statements in, omissions from and failures to timely update the EDS, as well as in any other affidavits, statements or contract documents constitute a material breach of the Agreement. Any such misrepresentation renders the Agreement voidable at the option of the City, notwithstanding any prior review or acceptance by the City of any materials containing a such misrepresentation. In addition, the City may debar Contractor, assert any contract claims or seek other civil or criminal remedies as a result of a misrepresentation including costs of replacing a terminated Contractor pursuant to Chicago Municipal Ordinance 1-21-010.

## 2.49. BUSINESS ENTERPRISES OWNED BY PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES COMMITMENT

#### **Policy and Terms**

It is the policy of the City of Chicago that businesses certified as Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities (BEPD) in accordance with Section 2-92-337 et seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Regulations Governing Certification of Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities, and all other Regulations promulgated under the aforementioned sections of the Municipal Code; shall have the full and fair opportunities to participate fully in the performance of this Agreement. Therefore, the Bidder or Contractor shall not discriminate against any person or business on the basis of disability, and shall take affirmative actions to ensure BEPDs shall have full and fair opportunities to compete for and perform subcontracts for supplies or services.

Failure to carry out the commitments and policies set forth herein shall constitute a material breach of the Contract and may result in the termination of the Contract or such remedy as the City of Chicago deems appropriate.

#### **Definitions**

For purposes of this section only, the following definitions apply:

- 1) "Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities" or "BEPD" has the same meaning ascribed to it in section 2-92-586.
- 2) "Bid incentive" means an amount deducted, for bid evaluation purposes only, from the contract base bid in order to calculate the bid price to be used to evaluate the bid on a competitively bid contract.
- 3) "Construction project" has the same meaning ascribed to it in section 2-92-335.

- 4) "Contract" means any contract, purchase order, construction project, or other agreement (other than a delegate agency contract or lease of real property or collective bargaining agreement) awarded by the City and whose costs is to be paid from funds belonging to or administered by the City.
- 5) "Contract base bid" means the total dollar amount a contractor bids on a contract without factoring any bid incentive or percentage reductions to the bid amount.
- 6) "Earned credit" means the amount of the bid incentive allocated to a contractor upon completion of a contract in which the contractor met or exceeded his or her goals for the utilization of BEPDs in the performance of the contract.
- 7) "Earned credit certificate" means a certificate issued by the Chief Procurement Officer evidencing the amount of earned credit a contractor has been awarded.

#### Commitments

The Chief Procurement Officer shall award a bid incentive to Contractor for utilization of a BEPD as a prime contractor or subcontractor in accordance with the provisions of this section. The bid incentive shall be earned in the performance of the Contract, provided that the bid incentive earned in the performance of the Contract shall only be applied to a future contract.

Where not otherwise prohibited by federal, state, or local law, the Chief Procurement Officer shall allocate to any qualified bidder the following bid incentive for utilization of a BEPD as a prime contractor or subcontractor in the performance of the contract.

Percent of total dollar contract amount performed by BEPD	Bid incentive
2 to 5%	½% of the contract base bid
6 to 10%	1% of the contract base bid
11% or more	2% of the contract base bid

The bid incentive shall be calculated and applied in accordance with the provisions of this section. The bid incentive is used only to calculate an amount to be used in evaluating the bid. The bid incentive does not affect the contract price.

As part of the contract close-out procedure, if the Chief Procurement Officer determines that the Contractor has successfully met his or her BEPD utilization goals either as a prime contractor or with subcontractors, the Chief Procurement Officer shall issue an earned credit certificate that evidences the amount of earned credits allocated to the Contractor. The Contractor may apply the earned credits as the bid incentive for any future contract bid of equal or less dollar amount. The earned credit certificate is valid for three years from the date of issuance and shall not be applied towards any future contract bid after the expiration of that period.

The Contractor may apply the earned credit certificate on multiple future contract bids during the three-year period in which the certificate is valid, but may only receive one bid incentive for bid evaluation purposes on one contract award. If the Contractor applies the earned credit certificate on multiple contract bids and is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on more than one contract bid, the earned credit certificate shall be applied to the contract bid first to be advertised by the Department of Procurement Services, or if multiple contract bids were advertised on the same date, the earned credit certificate shall be applied only to the contract bid with the greatest dollar value.

The Contractor shall maintain accurate and detailed books and records necessary to monitor compliance with this section and shall submit such reports as required by the Chief Procurement Officer, or the commissioner of the supervising department.

Full access to the Contractor's and Subcontractor's records shall be granted to the Chief Procurement Officer, the commissioner of the supervising department, or any duly authorized representative thereof. The Contractor and

Subcontractors shall maintain all relevant records for a period of at least three years after final acceptance of the work.

The Chief Procurement Officer is authorized to adopt, promulgate and enforce reasonable rules and regulations pertaining to the administration and enforcement of this section.

## 2.50. SHAKMAN ACCORD

The City is subject to the May 31, 2007 Order entitled "Agreed Settlement Order and Accord" (the "Shakman Accord") and the August 16, 2007 "City of Chicago Hiring Plan" (the "City Hiring Plan") entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County, Case No 69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois). Among other things, the Shakman Accord and the City Hiring Plan prohibit the City from hiring persons as governmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or factors.

Consultant is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing any individual to apply for a position with Consultant, either as an employee or as a subcontractor, and from directing Consultant to hire an individual as an employee or as a subcontractor. Accordingly, Consultant must follow its own hiring and contracting procedures, without being influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided by Consultant under this Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Consultant, not employees of the City of Chicago. This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize an employer-employee relationship of any kind between the City and any personnel provided by Consultant.

Consultant will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term or aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer employment to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or because of any political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual's political affiliation, membership in a political organization or party, political support or activity, political financial contributions, promises of such political support, activity or financial contributions, or such individual's political sponsorship or recommendation. For purposes of this Agreement, a political organization or party is an identifiable group or entity that has as its primary purpose the support of or opposition to candidates for elected public office. Individual political activities are the activities of individual persons in support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties or candidates for elected public office.

In the event of any communication to Consultant by a City employee or City official in violation of Section 9.9(c)(ii) above, or advocating a violation of Section 9.9(c)(iii) above, Consultant will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the Hiring Oversight Section of the City's Office of the Inspector General, and also to the head of the relevant City Department utilizing services provided under this Agreement.

## 2.51. DEFAULT

- A. The City may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (C) below, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this contract in any one of the following circumstances:
  - 1. if the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or
  - 2. if the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this contract in accordance with its terms, and in either of these two circumstances does not cure such failure within a period of ten (10) calendar days (or such other period as the Chief Procurement Officer may authorize in writing) after receipt of notice from the Chief Procurement Officer specifying such failure.
- B. In the event the City terminates this contract in whole or in part as provided in paragraph (A) of this clause, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as the Chief Procurement Officer may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to those so terminated, and the Contractor must be liable to the City for any excess costs for such similar supplies or service: provided, that the Contractor must continue the performance of this to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this clause.

C. The Contractor will not be liable for any excess of costs if acceptable evidence has been submitted to the Chief Procurement Officer the failure to perform the contract was due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor.

#### 2.52. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, Contractor must and the City may bring any dispute arising under this Contract which is not resolved by the parties to the Chief Procurement Officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy of the "Regulations of the Department of Procurement Services for Resolution of Disputes between Contractors and the City of Chicago" is available in City Hall, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Room 301, Bid and Bond Room.) The Chief Procurement Officer will issue a written decision and send it to the Contractor by mail. The decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge the decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is judicial review by means of a common law writ of certiorari.

## 3. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

#### 3.1. PERFORMANCE BOND

Performance Bond not required.

## 3.2. BID DEPOSIT

Bid Deposit not required.

## 3.3. BID SUBMITTAL FEE

Bid Submittal Fee not required.

## 3.4. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

Bidders must communicate only with the Department of Procurement Services. All questions or requests for clarification must be in writing, to the attention of Ahmad Nayamuth, Contract Administrator, Department of Procurement Services, and sent by email or fax, at (312) 744-7679 and/or anayamuth@cityofchicago.org

## 3.5. QUANTITIES

Any quantities of specified vehicles or equipment shown on the Proposal Page(s) are estimates for the initial contract term and are for bid canvassing purposes only. The City reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities ordered under this contract. Nothing herein will be construed as an intent on the part of the City to purchase any vehicles or equipment other than those determined by the Department of Fleet Management to be necessary to meet their current needs.

The City will be obligated to order and pay for only such quantities as are from time to time ordered on purchase order releases issued directly by the Department of Fleet Management, delivered and accepted.

# 3.6. BASIS OF AWARD

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to award a contract to the responsive and responsible bidder meeting specifications based on the lowest bid price.

Bidders must quote all items on the proposal pages. Bids submitted to the contrary will be considered incomplete, and as a result, will be rejected.

The Contractor's bid pricing must incorporate any/all peripheral costs including, but not limited to the costs of the vehicles/equipment, delivery/transportation charges, taxes, insurance, training, fluids, warranties, profit and/or overhead, etc., required by the specifications.

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to award a contract, or reject any/all bids, when in the opinion of the Chief Procurement Officer; the best interests of the City would be served thereby.

## 3.7. CHICAGO BUSINESS PREFERENCE

For purposes of this provision, a "Chicago Business" is an entity which: (1) has meaningful, day-to-day business operations at a location(s) within the corporate limits of the City of Chicago; (2) reports to the Internal Revenue Service such location(s) as the place(s) of employment for the majority of its regular, full-time work force; (3) holds appropriate City of Chicago business license(s) (if such license(s) are required for the business); and (4) is subject to applicable City of Chicago taxes. City of Chicago taxes include, but are not limited to, employer's expense tax pursuant to Section 3-20-030 of the Municipal Code (if the business has fifty or more employees). Any entity desiring the Chicago Business designation must submit, at the time of bid, a completed, signed and notarized Affidavit of Chicago Business in the form that is included in this bid document as Section 13 ("Affidavit"). Failure to submit a properly completed Affidavit at the time of bid will result in the entity not being considered for the Chicago Business designation. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to investigate and verify any

information submitted in an Affidavit but is under no obligation to do so. The Chief Procurement Officer's determination as to whether an entity qualifies for designation as a Chicago Business shall be final.

If a bidder is a joint venture, partnership or other business combination consisting of more than one entity (collectively, "joint venture"), and all entities comprising the joint venture (collectively, "members") are designated Chicago Businesses in accordance with the above paragraph, the joint venture will be deemed to be a Chicago Business. Where not all joint venture members are Chicago Businesses, such joint venture will be considered a Chicago Business only if Chicago Business members hold at least a fifty percent (50%) interest in the joint venture. Chicago Business members have a fifty percent (50%) interest in the joint venture only if the Chicago Business member(s) directly hold(s) a fifty percent ownership interest in the joint venture and either: (A) the Chicago Business member(s) directly employ(s) fifty percent or more of the workforce performing the duties that the joint venture will self-perform, including but not limited to management of the joint venture itself, or (B) the Chicago Business member(s), as direct subcontractor(s) to the joint venture, perform(s) work or services equal to fifty percent or more of the amount of the bid. Joint venture bidders whose members are NOT all Chicago Businesses must submit with their bids a copy of the signed joint venture agreement, copies any subcontracts with the Chicago Business members, and such other information as they deem relevant and necessary to establish their eligibility for the Chicago Business designation in accordance with this paragraph. Failure to submit such information at the time of bid will result in the joint venture not being considered for the Chicago Business designation. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to investigate and verify any information submitted by a joint venture bidder but is under no obligation to do so. The Chief Procurement Officer's determination as to whether a joint venture qualifies for designation as a Chicago Business shall be final.

In the event that there are bids both from Chicago Businesses and bidders that are not Chicago Businesses, the Chief Procurement Officer will accept the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price, as applicable, from a responsive and responsible bidder that is a Chicago Business, provided that such bid price does not exceed by more than two percent (2%) the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price, as applicable, from a responsive and responsible bidder that is not a Chicago Business.

## 3.8. CALCULATION OF MBE/WBE COMMITMENT

For purposes of calculating bidder's percentage of Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and/or Women Business Enterprise (WBE) dollar commitment toward the minimum goals of 25% MBE and 5% WBE participation as stated in the Special Condition Regarding Minority Business Enterprise and Women Business Enterprise, the estimated amount of the bidders total bid price will be used to calculate the actual dollar commitment to each MBE and/or WBE firm listed on your Schedule D-1, MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan. If at the end of this contract, the actual dollar value is below the estimated value, the City will consider adjustments to your MBE/WBE plan which are proportionate to the actual dollar value of this contract.

The Contractor will, not later than thirty (30) calendar days from the award of a contract by the City, execute formal contracts or purchase orders with the MBEs and WBEs included in their approved MBE/WBE Utilization Plan. These written agreements shall be made available to the Chief Procurement Officer upon request.

During the term the contract, the Contractor will submit monthly MBE/WBE Utilization Reports, a copy of which is attached. The frequency with which these reports are to be submitted will in no case be less often than on a quarterly basis. In the absence of written notice from the Chief Procurement Officer, the contractors first MBE/WBE Utilization Report will be due ninety (90) calendar days after the date of contract award, and reports will be due monthly thereafter.

MBE/WBE Utilization Reports are to be submitted directly to: Department of Procurement Services, Division of Contract Monitoring and Compliance, City Hall, Room 400, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602. (NOTICE: Do not submit invoices with MBE/WBE Utilization Reports.) Final payments may be held until the Utilization Reports have been received.

The City of Chicago's Department of Procurement Services, Contract Compliance Administrator will be entitled to examine, on five (5) business days notice, the Contractors books and records including without limitation payroll records, tax returns and records, and books of account, to determine whether the contractor is in compliance with its commitment to MBE/WBE participation and the status of any MBE or WBE performing any portion of the contract. Such rights are in addition to any other audit inspection rights contained in the contract.

## 3.9. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS TO BE COMPLETED BY BIDDER

Bidder will fully complete, sign, notarize and submit as part of your proposal the following documents incorporated herein:

- 1. MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan including:
  - a. **Schedule B**: Affidavit of Joint Venture (MBE/WBE) (if applicable).
  - b. **Schedule C-1**: Letter of Intent from MBE/WBE to Perform as Sub-contractor, Supplier and/or Consultant (if applicable).
  - c. Schedule D-1: Affidavit of MBE/WBE Goal Implementation Plan (if applicable).
  - d. Request for a reduction or waiver of MBE/WBE goals (if applicable).
- 2. Proposal Page(s).
- 3. Bid Data Pages
- 4. Affidavit Of Chicago Business
- 5. Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit (EDS) Online Certification of Filing
- 6. Proposal Execution Page, as applicable (Corporation, Partnership, Sole Proprietorship).
- 7. City of Chicago Insurance Certificate of Coverage.

#### NOTE:

EACH BIDDER MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A FULL SET OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND ANY ADDENDA AT THE TOP OF THE PROPOSAL EXECUTION PAGE. PROPOSALS THAT DO NOT ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ANY ADDENDA WILL BE REJECTED FOR BEING NON-RESPONSIVE TO THIS REQUIREMENT.

## 3.10. CONTRACT PERIOD

The contract will begin on	and continue through	, unless terminated prior to
this date according to the terms of the	e Termination provision, or extended as p	provided for herein.

The City will establish and enter the above start and expiration dates at the time of formal award and release of this contract unless negotiated prior to the award and release of the contract.

The start date will be no later than the first day of the succeeding month from the date shown as the Contract Award and Release Date on the Proposal Acceptance Page herein. The expiration date will be no later than the last day of the sixtieth (60th) full calendar month after the established start date.

### 3.11. CONTRACT EXTENSION OPTION

This Contract will be in effect for the dates indicated herein for the contract period. The Chief Procurement Officer may exercise the City's right to renew this Contract following the expiration of the base contract term for up to one hundred eighty-one (181) Calendar Days for the purpose of providing continuity of supply while procuring a replacement contract subject to acceptable performance by the Contractor and contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds for the purchase of the equipment provided for in this Contract. The Chief Procurement Officer will give the Contractor notice of the City's intent to exercise its option to renew the Contract for the approaching option period.

# 3.12. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

No change, amendment or modification of this Agreement, or any part hereof, is valid unless stipulated in writing and approved by the Chief Procurement Officer.

## 3.13. UNSPECIFIED ITEMS

Any Runway Deicer Truck and/or Part and Repair Services not specifically listed herein may be added to this Contract if they fall within the same specific category of vehicles/equipment already specified in the contract. The lifetime usage of any item added to this Contract must not exceed ten percent (10%) of the original Contract award dollar amount.

The User Department will notify the Contractor in writing of the items which are necessary and request a written price proposal for the addition of the item(s) to this Contract by modification, then forward the documents to the

Chief Procurement Officer. Such item(s) may be added to the Contract only if the prices are competitive with current market prices and said items are approved by the Chief Procurement Officer in the form of a written modification signed by the Contractor and the City. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to seek competitive pricing information on said item(s) from other suppliers and to procure such item(s) in a manner that serves the best interest of the City.

Any such item(s) delivered by the Contractor, without a properly executed Contract modification signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, are delivered entirely at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event that such modification is not executed by the City, the Contractor hereby releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for any items delivered prior to the Contractors receipt of the fully signed modification.

#### 3.14. PARTICIPATION BY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Other local government agencies may be eligible to participate in this agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Contract if such agencies are authorized, by law or their governing bodies, to execute such purchases, and if such authorization is allowed by the City of Chicago's Chief Procurement Officer, and if such purchases have no net adverse effect on the City of Chicago, and result in no diminished services from the Contractor to the City's user departments pursuant to such purchases. Examples of such Local Government Agencies are: Board of Education, Chicago Park District, City Colleges of Chicago, Chicago Transit Authority, Chicago Housing Authority, Chicago Board of Elections, Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority (McCormick Place, Navy Pier), and the Municipal Courts. Said purchases shall be made upon the issuance of a purchase order directly from the Local Government Agency. The City will not be responsible for payment of any amounts owed by any other Local Government Agencies, and will have no liability for the acts or omissions of any other Local Government Agency.

#### 3.15. PURCHASE ORDER BLANKET RELEASES

Requests for Runway Deicer Trucks in the form of City of Chicago blanket releases (a.k.a. purchase order releases or suborders) will be issued by the Department of Fleet Management and sent to the Contractor to be applied against the Contract. Blanket releases will indicate the specification number, purchase order number, blanket release number, product description, quantities ordered for each line item, unit cost, total cost, shipping address, delivery date, fund chargeable information and other pertinent instructions regarding delivery.

For purchase order releases placed before a price increase effective date, Contractor must honor Contract prices listed on the purchase order release including releases with multiple delivery shipments that are scheduled after the effective date of the increase.

The Contractor must not honor any order(s) or make any deliveries of Runway Deicer Trucks without receipt of a City of Chicago blanket release issued by the Department. Any Runway Deicer Trucks provided by the Contractor without a blanket release is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event such blanket release is not provided by the City, the Contractor releases the City form any liability whatsoever to pay for any Runway Deicer Trucks provided without said blanket release.

## 3.16. INVOICES

Invoices must be mailed to the following address:

Department of Fleet Management, 1685 N. Throop Street Chicago, Illinois 60642

Attn: Kevin Campbell, Phone #: (312) 744-5228

All invoices must be dated "originals," and must reference the City specification number, contract/purchase order number and blanket release number, and must be accompanied by Subcontractor Payment Certification forms. Invoice quantities, description of deliverable(s), unit of measures and pricing must correspond to the Runway Deicer Trucks quoted on the Proposal Pages and on the blanket release.

Freight, handling and shipping costs are not to be invoiced; deliveries are to be made F.O.B., City of Chicago. As stated the City of Chicago is exempt from paying State of Illinois sales tax and Federal excise taxes on purchases.

## 3.17. ELECTRONIC ORDERING AND INVOICES

The Contractor will cooperate in good faith with the City in implementing electronic ordering and invoicing, including but not limited to purchase orders, releases and invoices. Contractor will accept electronic purchase orders and releases upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer. Contractor will provide the City electronic copies of invoices and other electronic documents upon request. The electronic ordering and invoice documents shall be in a format specified by the City and transmitted by an electronic means specified by the City. Such electronic means may include, but are not limited to, disks, e-mail, EDI, FTP, web sites, and third party electronic services. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to change the document format and/or the means of transmission upon written notice to the Contractor. Contractor shall ensure that the essential information, as determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, in the electronic document, corresponds to that information submitted by the Contractor in its paper documents.

The electronic documents shall be in addition to paper documents required by this contract, however, by written notice to the Contractor, the Chief Procurement Officer may deem any or all of the electronic ordering and invoice documents the official documents and/or eliminate the requirement for paper ordering and invoice documents.

## 3.18. PAYMENT

The City will process payment within sixty (60) calendar days after receipt and acceptance of invoices and Subcontractor Payment Certification forms completed in accordance with the terms specified herein, the specified vehicles or equipment, any documents of title, warranty and certificate(s) and/or completed form(s) specified herein, and all supporting documentation necessary for the City to verify delivery and acceptance of the Runway Deicer Trucks(s).

The City will not be obligated to pay for any Runway Deicer Trucks (s) if it is noncompliant with the terms and conditions of these Specifications.

## 3.19. PRE-DELIVERY, SERVICING AND ADJUSTMENTS

Prior to delivery of any Runway Deicer Trucks, the Contractor will perform any/all preparatory operations recommended by the manufacturer, including (where applicable): A) "tuning" the engine; B) testing the operation of all accessories; C) testing electrical, hydraulic and air systems; D) charging batteries; E) inflating tires to recommended pressures; F) lubricating all "zerk" fitting and friction points; G) filling all lubricant and fluid reservoirs; H) filling fuel tank using fresh fuel.

## 3.20. DELIVERY

The Contractor must deliver the specified vehicles or equipment, complete with all attachments and ready for use. Delivery must be made between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 2:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding Holidays. Runway Deicer Trucks must be delivered FOB City of Chicago, IL at the following address:

Department of Fleet Management 1685 N. Throop Street Chicago, IL 60642 Attn: Dan Albrecht, Phone #: (312) 744-7509

Delivery of the specified Runway Deicer Trucks must be completed within 300 days following the date of purchase order release.

The above noted Contact Person must be notified at least 48 hours prior to delivery of the specified Runway Deicer Trucks.

## 3.21. DELIVERY OF PARTS AND PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES

Deliveries of Parts required for repairs and performance of services will be made within seventy-two (72) hours of request, F.O.B., Contractor's shop, regardless of the purchase order release amount.

#### 3.22. INSPECTION UPON DELIVERY

Upon delivery of the specified vehicles or equipment the City will conduct an in-depth initial visual examination solely for the purpose of identifying gross and obvious damage. The Contractor's representative may be present for the initial examinations.

If defects or omissions are discovered during the inspection, the City may:

- 1. Refuse acceptance of any/all units.
- 2. Arrange with the Contractor to make corrections.
- 3. Require the Contractor to remove any/all units from the City's premises at its own cost to make the necessary corrections.

Any/all labor and materials which may be required to correct non-compliant aspects of all items must be provided by the Contractor in a prompt manner, at no cost to the City. The "promptness" of corrective actions will be established by the City based upon the quantity and scope of the corrections required.

# 3.23. PRICE ADJUSTMENT (LINES 1 THROUGH 9 ONLY)

For line items 1 through 9 only, the original bid prices will be valid and firm for the initial twelve (12) month contract period beginning with the start date of the Contract. Beginning on the date after the initial twelve (12) month term, and for each twelve (12) month anniversary thereafter, subject to acceptable performance by the Contractor and contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds for the purchase of the equipment provided for in this Contract, annual price adjustments of the contract unit price(s) may be granted, subject to the referenced index after receipt of a written request from the Contractor made no earlier than thirty (30) days before the anniversary date or no later than thirty (30) after the expiration date of each twelve (12) month period. If Contractor does not request a price adjustment within such period, Contractor will not be entitled to a price adjustment for the upcoming year.

An annual request for price adjustment will reference the Producer Price Index ("PPI") for Heavy Duty Trucks, Series ID: WPS14110684, not seasonally adjusted, as it appears in the periodical Producer Price Indices published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. This index can currently be found on the Internet at http://data.bls.gov/labjava/outside.jsp?survey=wp although this site's URL is subject to change. (Select "commodity data", then select Group 14, Transportation Equipment, and Item 14110684, Heavy Duty Trucks, and "get data".)

In the case where the referenced series is no longer updated, a comparable series will be selected by the City for computing price adjustments.

The adjusted contract price(s) will be determined by performing the following calculation: the lesser of the original contract price(s) and the original contract price(s) as adjusted by any applicable price reduction (see Price Reduction Section of the General Conditions) will be multiplied by the quotient, and then be rounded to two decimal places to calculate the adjusted contract price(s). The quotient will equal the average of the monthly index values for the last three (3) full months of the annual contract period available at the time of the price adjustment request, divided by the index value for the start date of the contract. Adjusted price(s) may be higher or lower than the original contract pricing, as dictated by the applicable index values. Any price adjustments requested in subsequent years of the agreement will be calculated in the same manner.

All price adjustment calculations will be based upon the latest version of the PPI available on the eighteenth (18th) day of the month following the anniversary of the contract or available at the time of the price adjustment is made. The effective date of the price adjustment will be the anniversary date of the Contract.

If approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, a price adjustment must be signed by the Chief Procurement Officer reflecting the price adjustment and the effective date for the change.

If Producer Price Index data are not available for any month of the final three full months of the annual contract period, the PPI data for the most recent three full months preceding the anniversary date of the contract will be used in computing the price adjustment.

ILLUSTRATION: If the contract start date is 9/01/10, the contract pricing will be subject to adjustment 9/01/11. An adjustment to the contract pricing must be requested by the Contractor no later than 10/01/11. The index values (available on 9/18/11) for 6/11, 7/11 and 8/11 will be averaged (added, then divided by three). That averaged value will be divided by the index value for 9/10. The original contract price(s) will be multiplied by the quotient of that calculation, and then be rounded to two decimal places to calculate the adjusted contract price(s). The adjusted prices will be effective as of 9/01/11.

This process may be repeated on each anniversary date of the contract (e.g. 9/01/12). The contract prices will again be subject to adjustment if an adjustment to the contract pricing is requested by the Contractor no later than 10/01/12. The index values (available on 9/18/12) for 6/12, 7/12 and 8/12 will be averaged (added, then divided by three). The averaged value will be divided by the index value for 9/10 (the index value for the start date of the contract). The original contract price(s) will be multiplied by the quotient of that calculation, and then be rounded to two decimal places to calculate the adjusted contract price(s). The adjusted prices will be effective as of 9/01/12.

Any Runway Deicer Trucks provided by the Contractor at a price increase, without a price adjustment approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, the Contractor releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for goods and/or services rendered at a higher rate.

# 3.24. PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR PARTS (LINE 10)

The Contractor must submit copies of all parts pricing for each order with their invoice that is submitted to the City (copy of invoice showing the actual price paid by the Contractor inclusive of all rebates, etc.). Pricing to the City will be based on the percentage markup indicated on the Proposal Pages. Percentage markup will remain fixed for the life of the contract.

# 3.25. LABOR RATE ADJUSTMENT (LINES 11 AND 12 ONLY)

For line items eleven and twelve only, the original bid prices for labor rates are to be valid and firm for the initial twelve (12) month contract period beginning with the start date of the Contract. Beginning on the date after the initial twelve (12) month term, and for each twelve (12) month anniversary thereafter, subject to acceptable performance by the Contractor and contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds for the services provided for in this Contract, annual labor rate adjustments of the contract unit price(s) may be granted based on the prevailing wage rate at the time of escalation request after receipt of a written request from the Contractor made no earlier than thirty (30) days before the anniversary date or no later than thirty (30) days after the expiration date of each twelve (12) month period. If Contractor does not request a price adjustment within such period, Contractor will not be entitled to a labor rate adjustment for the upcoming year.

The adjusted contract price(s) will be adjusted by an amount of no more than three percent (3%) per year, for each twelve (12) month period.

The Contractor will be required to furnish supporting documents to verify the new rates and to furnish a certified statement or affidavit, which is to state information requested by the Chief Procurement Officer to verify the rate change.

If approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, a labor rate adjustment must be signed by the Chief Procurement Officer reflecting the labor rate adjustment and the effective date for the change. Original bid prices are in effect until the labor rate escalation has been signed by the Chief Procurement Officer reflecting the price adjustment and the effective date for the change.

Any service provided by the Contractor at the new labor rate, without a labor rate escalation signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event such labor rate escalation is not signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, the Contractor releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for services rendered at the labor wage rate.

Contractor must be capable of obtaining wholesale pricing for readily available stock parts.

# 3.26. PRICE ADJUSTMENT FOR TOWING SERVICES (LINE 13)

For line item thirteen (13) only, the original bid price for towing services is valid and firm for the initial twelve (12) month contract period beginning with the start date of the Contract. Beginning on the date after the initial twelve (12) month term, and for each twelve (12) month anniversary thereafter, subject to acceptable performance by the Contractor and contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds for the services provided for in this Contract, annual adjustment of the contract unit price may be granted at the time of escalation request after receipt of a written request from the Contractor made no earlier than thirty (30) days before the anniversary date or no later than thirty (30) days after the expiration date of each twelve (12) month period. If Contractor does not request a price adjustment within such period, Contractor will not be entitled to a price adjustment for the upcoming year.

The adjusted contract price(s) will be adjusted by an amount of no more than two percent (2%) per year, for each twelve (12) month period.

The Contractor will be required to furnish supporting documents to verify the new rates and to furnish a certified statement or affidavit, which is to state information requested by the Chief Procurement Officer to verify the rate change.

If approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, a price adjustment must be signed by the Chief Procurement Officer reflecting the price adjustment and the effective date for the change. Original bid prices are in effect until the price escalation has been approved by the Chief Procurement Officer reflecting the price adjustment and the effective date for the change.

Any service provided by the Contractor at the new rate, without a price escalation approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event such price escalation is not signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, the Contractor releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for services rendered at the unapproved rate.

## 3.27. ACCEPTANCE

It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that the initial acceptance of any delivery will not be considered as a waiver of any provision of these Specifications and will not relieve the Contractor of its obligation to supply satisfactory vehicles or equipment which conform to the Specifications, as shown by any test or inspections for which provisions are herein otherwise made.

#### 3.28. NON-APPROPRIATION

If no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any fiscal period of the City for payments to be made under this contract, then the City will notify the Contractor of that occurrence and this contract will terminate on the earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated for payment under this contract are exhausted. No payments will be made to the Contractor under this contract beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to fund payments under this contract.

## 3.29. TERMINATION

The City may terminate this contract or any portion of the contract, at any time by a notice in writing from the City to the Contractor. The City will give notice to the Contractor. The effective date of termination will be the date the notice is received by the Contractor or the date stated in the notice, whichever is later. If the City elects to terminate the contract in full, all services to be provided under it must cease and all materials that may have been accumulated in performing this contract whether completed or in the process, must be delivered to the City within ten (10) calendar days after the termination date.

After the notice is received, the Contractor must restrict its activities, and those of its subcontractors to winding down any activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are allowed. Payment for any services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective date of the termination is on the same basis as set forth in the Payment clause and as outlined in the Proposal page, but if any compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten (10) calendar days, then the compensation

must be prorated accordingly. No amount of compensation, however, is permitted for anticipated profits on unperformed services. The payment so made to the Contractor is in full settlement for all services satisfactorily performed under this contract. If Contractor disputes the amount of compensation determined by the City to be due Contractor, then the Contractor must initiate dispute settlement procedures in accordance with the Disputes provision in the General Conditions.

If the City's decision to terminate this contract for default pursuant to the Default provision in the General Conditions is determined in a court of competent jurisdiction to have been wrongful, then in that case the termination is to be deemed to be an early termination pursuant to this Termination provision.

#### 3.30. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor's own expense, until Contract completion and during the time period following completion if Contractor is required to return and perform any additional work, the insurance coverages and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the Contract.

#### A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

#### 1. Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella).

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage liability. Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations, products/completed operations, separation of insured's, defense, and contractual liability (with no limitation endorsement). The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising directly or indirectly from the work.

## 2. Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with work to be performed, the Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

#### 3. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all employees who are to provide work under this Contract and Employers Liability coverage with limits of not less than \$500,000 each accident, illness, or disease.

## 4. Garage Liability

The Contractor must provide Garage Liability Insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, combined single limit, for bodily injury and property damage. Coverage extensions must include Garage Keepers Legal Liability. The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising directly or indirectly from the work.

## Property

The Contractor is responsible for all loss or damage to City property including the vehicles or equipment full replacement cost while in Contractor's care, custody and control.

The Contractor is responsible for all loss or damage to personal property (including materials, equipment, tools and supplies) owned, rented or used by Contractor.

### B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, City Hall, Room 403, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in

force on the date of this Contract, and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The Contractor must submit evidence of insurance on the City of Chicago Insurance Certificate Form (copy attached) or equivalent prior to Contract award. The receipt of any certificate does not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Contract have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all Contract requirements. The failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance evidence from Contractor is not a waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Contractor must advise all insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not relieve Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as specified herein. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract, and the City retains the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Contract may be terminated.

The insurance must provide for sixty (60) days prior written notice to be given to the City in the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by Contractor.

The Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents, or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Contract or by law.

Any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute with insurance provided by the Contractor under the Contract.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the indemnification language in this Contract or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this Contract given as a matter of law.

If Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

The Contractor must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or Contractor may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

If Contractor or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provisions in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these requirements.

# 3.31. SAMPLE INSURANCE CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

Named Insured:				Specification Number: 89430A	
Address:		Number and Street)		Project Description: Runway Deicer Trucks Purchase Order Number:	
	,	(State)	(ZIP)	r dionaco Ordor Mai	
Description of Operation/Loc		(State)	(ZIF)		
<del></del>					
covering the operation descord cancellation, non-renewation change to the City of Chica	cribed within thal or material chapter go at the address insured, and it	e Contract involving the na nange involving the indicat ess shown on this Certifica	amed insured and the ed policies, the issu te. This certificate	ne City of Chicago. The city of Chicago. The will provide at least is issued to the City of	d with the policy limits as set forth herein the Certificate issuer agrees that in the event the sixty (60) days prior written notice of such Chicago in consideration of the Contract icate as a basis for continuing such
Type of Insurance		Insurer Name	Policy Number	Expiration Date	Limits of Liability All Limits in Thousands
General Liability [ ] Claims made [ ] Occur [ ] Premises-Operations [ ] Explosion/Collapse Un [ ] Products/Completed-C [ ] Blanket Contractual [ ] Broad Form Property I [ ] Independent Contractor [ ] Personal Injury [ ] Pollution	derground perations				CSL Per Occurrence \$  General Aggregate \$  Products/Completed Operations Aggregate \$
Automobile Liability					CSL Per Occurrence \$
[ ] Excess Liability [ ] Umbrella Liability					Each Occurrence \$
Worker's Compensation a Employer's Liability	nd				Statutory/Illinois Employers Liability \$
Builders Risk/Course of Construction					Amount of Contract
Professional Liability					\$
Owner Contractors Protect	tive				\$
Other					\$
a) Each Insurance policy required by this agreement, excepting policies for worker's compensation and professional liability, will read: "The City of Chicago is an additional insured as respects operations and activities of, or on behalf of the named insured, performed under contract with or permit from the City of Chicago." b) The General, Automobile and Excess/Umbrella Liability Policies described provide for severability of Interest (cross liability) applicable to the named insured and the City. c) Workers Compensation and Property Insurers shall waive all rights of subrogation against the City of Chicago. d) The receipt of this certificate by the City does not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Contract have been fully met, or that the insurance policies indicated by this certificate are in compliance with all contract requirements.					
Name and Address of Certificate Holder and Recipient of Notice Certificate Holder/Additional Insured City of Chicago Department of Procurement Services 121 N. LaSalle St., #403 Chicago, IL 60602			Agency/Comp	anv:	
For City use only:  Name of City Department requesting certificate: (Using Dept.)					

# 4. SPECIAL CONDITIONS REGARDING MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

# 4.1. POLICY AND TERMS

It is the policy of the City of Chicago that Local Businesses certified as Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Women Business Enterprises (WBE) in accordance with Section 2-92-420 et seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago and Regulations Governing Certification of Minority and Women-owned Businesses, and all other Regulations promulgated under the aforementioned sections of the Municipal Code will have the maximum opportunity to participate fully in the performance of this agreement. Therefore, the Contractor will not discriminate against any person or business on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex, and will take affirmative action to ensure that women and minority businesses will have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform subcontracts for supplies or services.

The Chief Procurement Officer has established a goal of awarding not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the annual dollar value of all non-construction contracts to certified MBEs and five percent (5%) of the annual dollar value of all non-construction contracts to certified WBEs.

Accordingly, the Contractor commits to expend at least the following percentages of the total contract price (inclusive of any and all modifications and amendments), if awarded, for contract participation by MBEs and WBEs:

MBE	WBE
25%	5%

This commitment is met by the Contractor's status as a MBE or WBE, or by a joint venture with one or more MBEs or WBEs as prime contractor (to the extent of the MBE or WBE participation in such joint venture), or by subcontracting a portion of the work to one or more MBEs or WBEs, or by the purchase of materials used in the performance of the contract from one or more MBEs or WBEs, or by the indirect participation of MBEs or WBEs in other aspects of the Contractor's business (but no dollar of such indirect MBE or WBE participation will be credited more than once against a Contractors MBE or WBE commitment with respect to all Contracts of such Contractor), or by any combination of the foregoing. **NOTE:** MBE/WBE participation goals are separate and those businesses certified with the City of Chicago as both a MBE/WBE will not be credited more than once against a Contractor's MBE or WBE commitment in the performance of the Contract.

As noted above, the Contractor may meet all or part of this commitment by contracting with MBEs or WBEs for the provision of goods or services not directly related to the performance of this Contract. However, in determining the manner of MBE/WBE participation, the Contractor will first consider involvement of MBEs/WBEs as joint venture partners, subcontractors, and suppliers of goods and services directly related to the performance of this Contract. In appropriate cases, the Chief Procurement Officer will require the Contractor to demonstrate the specific efforts undertaken by it to involve MBEs and WBEs directly in the performance of this Contract.

The Contractor also may meet all or part of this commitment through credits received pursuant to Section 2-92-530 of the Municipal Code of Chicago for the voluntary use of MBEs or WBEs in private sector projects.

# 4.2. **DEFINITIONS**

1. "Area of Specialty" means the description of an MBE or WBE firms business which has been determined by the Chief Procurement Officer to be most reflective of the MBE or WBE firms claimed specialty or expertise. Each MBE/WBE letter of certification contains a description of the firm's Area of Specialty. This information is also contained in the Directory. Credit toward this contracts MBE and WBE participation goals shall be limited to the participation of firms performing within their Area of Specialty.

NOTICE:

The City of Chicago does not make any representation concerning the ability of any MBE/WBE to perform work within their Area of Specialty. It is the responsibility of all contractors to determine the capability and capacity of MBEs/WBEs to satisfactorily perform the work proposed.

- 2. "Directory" means the Directory of Certified "Disadvantaged Business Enterprises," "Minority Business Enterprises" and "Women Business Enterprises" maintained and published by the Executive Director. The Directory identifies firms that have been certified as MBEs and WBEs, and includes both the date of their last certification and the area of specialty in which they have been certified. Contractors are responsible for verifying the current certification status of all proposed MBE and WBE firms.
- 3. "Executive Director" means the executive director of the Office of Compliance or his or her designee.
- 4. **"Minority Business Enterprise"** or **"MBE"** means a firm awarded certification as a minority owned and controlled business in accordance with City Ordinances and Regulations.
- 5. **"Women Business Enterprise"** or **"WBE"** means a firm awarded certification as a women owned and controlled business in accordance with City Ordinances and Regulations.
- 6. "Joint Venture" means an association of two or more businesses to carry out a single business enterprise for profit, and for which purpose they combine their expertise, property, capital, efforts, skill and knowledge. Contractors may develop joint venture agreements as an instrument to provide participation by MBEs and WBEs in contract work. A joint venture seeking to be credited for MBE/WBE participation may be formed among certified MBE/WBE firms or between certified MBE/WBE firm(s) and non-MBE/WBE firm(s).

A joint venture is eligible for MBE/WBE credit if the MBE/WBE partner(s) share in the ownership, control, management responsibilities, risks and profits of the joint venture, and are responsible for a clearly defined portion of work to be performed, in proportion with the MBE/WBE ownership percentage.

# 4.3. COUNTING MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION TOWARD THE CONTRACT GOALS

- 1. The inclusion of any MBE or WBE in the contractor's MBE/WBE Utilization Plan shall not conclusively establish the contractor's right to full MBE/WBE credit for that firm's participation in the contract.
- 2. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to deny or limit MBE/WBE credit to the contractor where any MBE or WBE is found to be engaged in substantial subcontracting or pass-through activities with others. In this regard, a contractor may count toward its MBE and WBE goals only expenditures to firms that perform a commercially useful function. A firm is considered to perform a commercially useful function when it is responsible for the performance of a clearly defined and distinct element of work and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To determine whether a firm is performing a commercially useful function, the Chief Procurement Officer shall evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, and other relevant factors. The amount of MBE/WBE participation credit shall be based upon an analysis by the Chief Procurement Officer of the specific duties that will be performed by the MBE or WBE. Each MBE/WBE shall be expected to actually perform a substantial (i.e., more than eighty-five percent (85%)) portion of the work contemplated for it by any subcontract or agreement through the use of its own employees and equipment.

Requested information may include, without limitation: (1) specific information concerning broker's fees and/or commissions; (2) intended sub-suppliers or other sources of goods and/or services; and (3) specific financial or other risks to be assumed by the MBE/WBE.

- The participation of MBEs and WBEs who have been certified as "brokers" shall no longer be considered eligible to participate on contracts awarded by the City in 1993 and thereafter until further notice for any consideration of MBE or WBE credit.
- 4. Credit for the participation of MBEs/WBEs as joint venture partners shall be based upon an analysis of the duties, responsibilities and risks undertaken by the MBE/WBE as specified by the joint venture's executed joint venture agreement. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to deny or limit MBE/WBE credit to the contractor where any MBE/WBE joint venture partner is found to have duties, responsibilities, risks or loss and management control over the joint venture that is not commensurate with or in proportion to its joint venture ownership.

# 4.4. REGULATIONS GOVERNING REDUCTIONS TO OR WAIVER OF MBE/WBE GOALS

The following Regulations set forth the standards to be used in determining whether or not a reduction or waiver of the MBE/WBE commitment goals of a particular contract is appropriate. If a bidder or proposer determines that it is unable to meet the MBE and/or WBE percentage on a City of Chicago contract, a written request for the reduction or waiver of the commitment must be included in the bid or proposal.

The written request for reduction or waiver from the commitment must be in the form of a signed petition for grant of relief from the MBE/WBE percentages submitted on the bidder/proposer's letterhead, and must demonstrate that all required efforts as set forth in this document were taken to secure eligible Minority and Women Business Enterprises to meet the commitments. The Chief Procurement Officer or designee shall determine whether the request for the reduction or waiver will be granted.

Bidders/proposers will be considered responsive to the terms and conditions of these Regulations if a waiver request and proof of notification to an assist agency is submitted at the time of bid/proposal opening. Once the bids have been opened, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder so deemed by the Chief Procurement Officer or authorized designee will have no more than fourteen (14) calendar days to submit to the Department of Procurement complete documentation that adequately addresses the conditions for waiver described herein. Proposers responding to Request for Proposals (RFPs) who have been identified as a short listed candidate and/or a prospective awardee will be given a designated time allowance, but no more than fourteen (14) calendar days to submit to the Department of Procurement complete documentation that adequately addresses the conditions for waiver described herein. Respondents to Request for Information and or Qualifications (RFI/RFQs) deemed by the Chief Procurement Officer or authorized designee to be the most responsive and responsible shall submit documentation that adequately addresses the conditions for waiver described herein during negotiations. Failure to submit documentation sufficient to support the waiver request will cause the bid/proposal to be found non-responsive by the Chief Procurement Officer, and the bid/proposal will be rejected. In such cases the remedies to be taken by the Chief Procurement Officer, in his discretion, may include, but are not limited to, forfeiture of bid deposit; negotiating with the next lowest bidder/proposer; or re-advertising the bid/proposal. All bidders/proposers are encouraged to submit all required documents at the time of bid opening to expedite the contract award.

# 1. Direct/Indirect Participation

Each of the following elements must be present in order to determine whether or not such a reduction or waiver is appropriate.

- a) The bidder/proposer has documented the unsuccessful solicitation for either subcontractors or joint venture partners of at least 50% (or at least five when there are more than eleven certified firms in the commodity area) of the appropriate certified MBE/WBE firms to perform any direct or indirect work identified or related to the advertised bid/proposal. Direct participation involves subcontracting a portion of the goods/services specifically required in the bid/proposal. Indirect participation is the subcontracting of goods/services not specifically related to the performance of this contract. Documentation must include but is not necessarily limited to:
  - A detailed statement of efforts to identify and select portions of work identified in the bid solicitation for subcontracting to certified MBE/WBE firms;
  - (ii) A listing of all MBE/WBE firms contacted that includes
    - (1) Names, address and telephone numbers of MBE/WBE firms solicited;
    - (2) Date and time of contact;
    - (3) Method of contact (written, telephone, transmittal of facsimile documents, etc.)
  - (iii) Copies of letters or any other evidence of mailing that substantiates outreach to MBE/WBE vendors that includes:
    - (1) Project identification and location;
    - (2) Classification/commodity of work items for which quotations were sought;
    - (3) Date, item and location for acceptance of subcontractor bid proposals;

- (4) Detailed statement which summarizes direct negotiations with appropriate MBE/WBE firms for specific portions of the work and indicates why negotiations were unsuccessful:
- (5) Affirmation that good faith efforts have been demonstrated by choosing subcontracting opportunities likely to achieve MBE/WBE goals by not imposing any limiting conditions which were not mandatory for all subcontractors; or denying the benefits ordinarily conferred on MBE/WBE subcontractors for the type of work that was solicited.

### OR

- b) Subcontractor participation will be deemed excessively costly when the MBE/WBE subcontractor proposal exceeds the average price quoted by more than twenty percent (20%). In order to establish that a subcontracts' quote is excessively costly, the bidder/proposer must provide the following information:
  - A detailed statement of the work identified for MBE/WBE participation for which the bidder/proposer asserts the MBE/WBE quote(s) were excessively costly (in excess of 20% higher).
    - (1) A listing of all potential subcontractors contacted for a quotation on that work item:
    - (2) Prices quoted for the subcontract in question by all such potential subcontractors for that work item.
  - ii) Other documentation which demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Chief Procurement Officer that the MBE/WBE proposals are excessively costly, even though not in excess of 20% higher than the average price quoted. This determination will be based on factors that include, but are not limited to the following:
    - (1) The City's estimate for the work under a specific subcontract;
    - (2) The bidder/proposers own estimate for the work under the subcontract;
    - (3) An average of the bona fide prices quoted for the subcontract;
    - (4) Demonstrated increase in other contract costs as a result of subcontracting to the M/WBE or other firm.

# 2) Assist Agency Participation

Every waiver and/or reduction request must include evidence that the bidder/proposer has provided timely notice of the need for subcontractors to an appropriate association/assist agency representative of the MBE/WBE business community.

The notice requirement of this Section will be satisfied if a bidder/proposer contacts at least one of the associations on Attachment A to these Regulations when the prime contractor seeks a waiver or reduction in the utilization goals. Attachment B to these Regulations provides the letter format that a prime contractor may use. Proof of notification prior to bid submittal (e.g. certified mail receipt or facsimile transmittal receipt) will be required for any bid/proposal submitted to be deemed responsive on the date of bid opening. If deemed appropriate, the Chief Procurement Officer or Contract Compliance Officer may contact the assist agency for verification of notification.

- 3) Impracticability
  - If the Chief Procurement Officer determines that a lesser MBE and/or WBE percentage standard is appropriate with respect to a particular contract subject to competitive bidding prior to the bid solicitations for such contract, bid specifications shall include a statement of such revised standard.
  - ii) The requirements set forth in these Regulations shall not apply where the Chief Procurement Officer determines prior to the bid solicitations that MBE/WBE subcontractor participation is impracticable.

This may occur whenever the Chief Procurement Officer determines that for reasons of time, need, industry practices or standards not previously known by the Procurement Department administrator, or such other extreme circumstances as may be deemed appropriate, such a Waiver is in the best interests of the City. This determination may be made in connection with a particular contract, whether before the contract is let for bid, during the bid or award process, before or during negotiation of the contract, or during the performance of the contract.

For all notifications required to be made by bidders/proposers, in situations where the Chief Procurement Officer has determined that time is of the essence, documented telephone contact may be substituted for letter contact.

### 4.5. PROCEDURE TO DETERMINE BID COMPLIANCE

The following Schedules and described documents constitute the bidder's MBE/WBE proposal, and must be submitted in accordance with the guidelines stated:

# Schedule C-1: Letter of Intent from MBE/WBE to Perform as Subcontractor, Supplier and/or Consultant.

A <u>Schedule C-1</u> executed by the MBE/WBE (or Schedule B/Joint Venture Subcontractor) must be submitted by the bidder/proposer for each MBE/WBE included on their <u>Schedule D-1</u> and must accurately detail the work to be performed by the MBE/WBE and the agreed rates and prices to be paid. If any fully completed and executed <u>Schedule C-1</u> is not submitted with the bid/proposal, it must be received by the Contract Administrator within ten (10) calendar days of the bid/proposal opening. (All post bid/proposal submissions must have original signatures on all documents). Failure to submit a completed <u>Schedule C-1</u> in accordance with this section shall entitle the City to deem the bid/proposal non-responsive and therefore reject the bid/proposal.

# 2) Letters of Certification.

A copy of each proposed MBE/WBE firm's current Letter of Certification from the City of Chicago must be submitted with the bid/proposal. All Letters of Certification issued by the City of Chicago include a statement of the MBE/WBE firm's Area of Specialty. The MBE/WBE firm's scope of work, as detailed by their Schedule C-1, must conform to their stated Area of Specialty.

# 3) Joint Venture Agreements.

If the bidder's/proposer's MBE/WBE proposal includes the participation of a MBE/WBE as joint venture on any tier (either as the bidder/proposer or as a subcontractor), the bidder/proposer must provide a copy of the joint venture agreement and a Schedule B. In order to demonstrate the MBE/WBE partner's share in the ownership, control, management responsibilities, risks and profits of the joint venture, the proposed joint venture agreement must include <a href="mailto:specific details">specific details</a> related to: (1) contributions of capital and equipment; (2) work responsibilities or other performance to be undertaken by the MBE/WBE; and (3) the commitment of management, supervisory and operative personnel employed by the MBE/WBE to be dedicated to the performance of the contract. The joint venture agreement must also clearly define each partners authority to contractually obligate the joint venture and each partner's authority to expend joint venture funds (e.g., check signing authority).

# 4) Required Schedules Regarding DBE/MBE/WBE Utilization.

Bidders must submit, together with the bid, a completed <u>Schedule D-1</u> committing them to the utilization of each listed MBE/WBE firm. Except in cases where the bidder/proposer has submitted a request for a complete waiver of or variance from the MBE/WBE commitment in accordance with Section 4.4. herein, the bidder/proposer must commit to the expenditure of a specific dollar amount of participation by each MBE/WBE firm included on their Schedule D-1. The total dollar commitment to proposed MBEs must <u>at least</u> equal the MBE goal, and the total dollar commitment to proposed WBEs must <u>at least</u> equal the WBE goal. Bidders are responsible for calculating the dollar equivalent of the MBE and WBE goals as percentages of their total base bids or in the case of Term Agreements, as percentages of the total estimated usage. All commitments made by the bidder's Schedule D-1 must conform to those presented in the submitted <u>Schedule C-1</u>. If Schedule C-1 is submitted after the opening (See Section 4.5(1). above), the bidder/proposer may submit a revised Schedule D-1 (executed and notarized to conform with

the Schedules C-1). Except in cases where substantial and documented justification is provided, bidders/proposers will not be allowed to reduce the dollar commitment made to any MBE or WBE in order to achieve conformity between the Schedules C-1 and D-1.

All commitments for joint venture agreements must be delineated in the Schedule B.

### 4.6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT

- 1. The Contractor will, not later than thirty (30) calendar days from the award of a contract by the City, execute formal contracts or purchase orders with the MBEs and WBEs included in their approved MBE/WBE Utilization Plan. These written agreements will be made available to the Chief Procurement Officer upon request.
- 2. In the case of one (1) time procurements of supplies with either single or multiple deliveries to be performed in less than one (1) year from the date of contract award, a "MBE/WBE Utilization Report", indicating final MBE and WBE payments will be submitted directly to the Department of Procurement Services so as to assure receipt either at the same time, or before the using Department receives contractors final invoice. (NOTICE: Do not submit invoices with "MBE/WBE Utilization Reports.") Final payments may be held until the Utilization Reports have been received.
- 3. During the term of the contract, the Contractor will submit quarterly "MBE/WBE Utilization Reports", a copy of which is attached. The frequency with which these reports are to be submitted will be in no case less often than on a quarterly basis. In the absence of written notice from the Chief Procurement Officer, the contractors first MBE/WBE Utilization Report will be due ninety (90) calendar days after the date of contract award, and reports will be due quarterly thereafter.
- 4. MBE/WBE Utilization Reports are to be submitted directly to: Department of Procurement Services, Division of Vendor Relations, City Hall, Room 400, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602.
- 5. The Executive Director will be entitled to examine, on five (5) business days notice, the contractors books and records including without limitation payroll records, tax returns and records, and books of account, to determine whether the contractor is in compliance with its commitment to MBE/WBE participation and the status of any MBE or WBE performing any portion of the contract. Such rights are in addition to any other audit inspection rights contained in the contract.

### 4.7. MBE/WBE SUBSTITUTIONS

Changes by the contractor of the commitments earlier certified in the Schedule D-1 are prohibited. In some cases, however, it may become necessary to substitute a new MBE or WBE in order to actually fulfill the MBE/WBE requirements.

The contractor must notify the Chief Procurement Officer immediately in writing of the necessity to reduce or terminate a MBE/WBE subcontract and to utilize a substitute firm for some phase of work. The contractor's notification should include the name, address and principal official of the substitute MBE/WBE and the dollar value and scope of work of the subcontract. Attached should be all the requisite MBE/WBE affidavits and documents, as enumerated above in Section 5, "Procedure to Determine Bid Compliance."

The City will not approve extra payment for escalated costs incurred by the contractor when a substitution of subcontractors becomes necessary for the contractor in order to comply with MBE/WBE contract requirements.

After award of contract, no relief of the MBE/WBE requirements will be granted by the City except in exceptional circumstances. Requests for complete or partial waiver of the MBE/WBE requirements of this contract must be made in writing, stating all details of the request, the circumstances, and any additional relevant information. The request must be accompanied by a record of all efforts taken by the contractor to locate specific firms, solicit MBE/WBE bids, seek assistance from technical assistance agencies, etc., as outlined above in the section entitled "Regulations Governing Reductions To or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals."

# 4.8. NON-COMPLIANCE AND DAMAGES

The following constitutes a material breach of this contract and shall entitle the City to declare a default, terminate the contract and exercise those remedies provided for in the contract, at law or in equity:

- 1. Failure to satisfy the MBE/WBE percentages required by the contract; and
- 2. The contractor or subcontractor is disqualified as a MBE or WBE, such status was a factor in contract award, and was misrepresented by the contractor.

In the event that the contractor is determined not to have been involved in any misrepresentation of the status of the disqualified subcontractor or supplier, the contractor shall seek to discharge the disqualified subcontractor or supplier, upon proper notification to the Chief Procurement Officer and/or Executive Director and make every effort to identify and engage a qualified MBE or WBE as its replacement. Furthermore, continued eligibility to enter into future contracting arrangements with the City may be jeopardized as a result of non-compliance. Payments due to the contractor may be withheld until corrective action is taken.

# 4.9. ARBITRATION

- In the event a contractor has not complied with the contractual MBE/WBE percentages in its Schedule D, underutilization of MBEs/WBEs shall entitle the affected MBE/WBE to recover from the contractor damages suffered by such entity as a result of being underutilized; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to the extent such underutilization occurs pursuant to a waiver or substitution approved by the City. The Ordinance and contracts subject thereto provide that any disputes between the contractor and such affected MBEs/WBEs regarding damages shall be resolved by binding arbitration before an independent arbitrator other than the City, with reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees, being recoverable by a prevailing MBE/WBE in accordance with these regulations. This provision is intended for the benefit of any MBE/WBE affected by underutilization and grants such entity specific third party beneficiary rights. Any rights conferred by this regulation are non-waivable and take precedence over any agreement to the contrary, including but not limited to those contained in a subcontract, suborder, or communicated orally between a contractor and a MBE/WBE.
- An MBE/WBE desiring to arbitrate shall contact the contractor in writing to initiate the arbitrative process. Except as otherwise agreed to in writing by the affected parties subject to the limitation contained in the last sentence of the previous paragraph, within ten (10) calendar days of the contractor receiving notification of the intent to arbitrate from the MBE/WBE the above-described disputes shall be arbitrated in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (AAA), a not-for-profit agency, with an office at 225 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 2527, Chicago, Illinois 60601-7601 [Phone: (312) 616-6560; Fax: (312) 819-0404]. All such arbitrations shall be initiated by the MBE/WBE filing a demand for arbitration with the AAA; shall be conducted by the AAA; and held in Chicago, Illinois.
- 3) All fees of the arbitrator are the initial responsibility of the MBE/WBE; provided, however, that the arbitrator is authorized to award reasonable expenses, including attorney's and arbitrator fees, as damages to a prevailing MBE/WBE.
- 4) The MBE/WBE must send the City a copy of the Demand for Arbitration within ten (10) calendar days after it is filed with the AAA. The MBE/WBE also must send the City a copy of the decision of the arbitrator within ten (10) calendar days of receiving such decision. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

### 4.10. RECORD KEEPING

The Contractor shall maintain records of all relevant data with respect to the utilization of MBEs/WBEs, retaining these records for a period of at least three (3) years after final acceptance of the work. Full access to these records shall be granted to the City of Chicago, Federal or State authorities in this project, the U.S. Department of Justice, or any duly authorized representatives thereof.

# 4.11. INFORMATION SOURCES

Small business guaranteed loans; surety bond guarantees; 8 (a) certification:

U.S. Small Business Administration 500 W. Madison Street, Suite 1250 Chicago, Illinois 60661 General Information (312) 353-4528

U.S. Small Business Administration Bond Guarantee Program Surety Bonds 500 West Madison, Suite 1250 Chicago, IL 60661 Attention: Carole Harris (312) 353-4003 U.S. Small Business Administration Procurement Assistance 500 West Madison, Suite 1250 Chicago, Illinois 60661 Attention: Robert P. Murphy, Area Regional Administrator (312) 353-7381

Project information and general MBE/WBE information:

City of Chicago Department of Procurement Services Vendor Relations City Hall - Room 403 Chicago, Illinois 60602 Attention: Monica Cardenas (312) 744-0845 Directory of Certified Disadvantaged, Minority and Women Business Enterprises:

City of Chicago Office of Compliance ATTN: Supplier Diversity Program 333 State Street, Suite 540 Chicago, IL 60604

Information on MBE/WBE availability in the manufacturing, sales or supplies and related fields (direct assistance from 42 regional affiliates located throughout the U.S.):

National Minority Suppliers Development Council 1040 Avenue of the Americas, 2nd Floor New York, New York 10018 Attention: Harriet R. Michel (212) 944-2430 Chicago Minority Business Development Council 1 East Wacker Drive Suite 1200 Chicago, Illinois 60601 Attention: Tracye Smith, Executive Director (312) 755-8880

# 4.12. ATTACHMENT A - ASSIST AGENCIES

### **African American Contractors Association**

2910 S. Wentworth, Suite 1F

Chicago, IL 60616 Phone: (312) 915-5960 Fax: (312) 567-9919

# **Alliance of Minority and Female Contractors**

c/o Federation of Women Contractors

5650 S. Archer Avenue Chicago, IL 60638 Phone: (312) 360-1122 Fax: (312) 360-0239

### **Association of Asian Construction Enterprises**

333 N. Ogden Avenue Chicago, IL 60607 Phone: (312) 563-0746 Fax: (312) 666-1785

# Chicago Area Gay & Lesbian Chamber of Commerce

1210 W. Rosedale Chicago, IL 60660 Phone: (773) 303-0167 Fax: (773) 303-0168 Web: www.glchamber.org

# Chicago Urban League

220 S. State Street, 11<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60604

Phone: (773) 451-3509 Fax: (773) 285-7772 Web: www.cul-chicago.org

### **Federation of Women Contractors**

5650 S. Archer Avenue Chicago, IL 60638 Phone: (312) 360-1122 Fax: (312) 360-0239 Web: www.fwcchicago.com

# Illinois Hispanic Chamber of Commerce (formerly MACC)

111 W. Washington, Suite 1660 Chicago, IL 60602

Phone: (312) 425-9500 Fax: (312) 425-9510 Web: www.ihccbusiness.net

# Alliance of Business Leaders & Entrepreneurs (ABLE)

150 N. Michigan Ave. Suite 2800

Chicago, IL 60601 Phone: (312) 624-7733 Fax: (312) 624-7734 Web: www.ablechicago.com

# **Asian American Alliance**

222 W. Cermak Road, Suite 303 Chicago, IL 60616-1986

Phone: (312) 225-9320 Fax: (312) 326-0399

Web: www.asianamericanalliance.com

#### **Black Contractors United**

400 W. 76<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite 200 Chicago, IL 60620

Phone: (773 483-4000 Fax: (773) 483-4150

Web: www.blackcontractorsunited.com

# Chicago Minority Business Development Council. Inc.

1 East Wacker Drive, Suite 1200

Chicago, IL 60601 Phone: (312) 755-8880 Fax: (312) 755-8890 Web: www.cmbdc.org

# **Cosmopolitan Chamber of Commerce**

203 N. Wabash, Suite 518 Chicago, IL 60601 Phone: (312) 499-0611 Fax: (312) 332-2688

Web: www.cosmochamber.org

# Hispanic American Contractors Industry Association (HACIA)

901 West Jackson Boulevard, Suite 205

Chicago, IL 60607 Phone: (312) 666-5910 Fax: (312) 666-5692 Web: www.haciaworks.org

# **Latin American Chamber of Commerce**

3512 West Fullerton Avenue

Chicago, IL 60647 Phone: (773) 252-5211 Fax: (773) 252-7065

Web: www.latinamericanchamberofcommerce.com

# National Association of Women Business Owners

Chicago Chapter 330 S. Wells Street, Suite 1110 Chicago, IL 60606

Phone: (312) 322-0990 Fax: (312) 461-0238

Web: www.nawbochicago.org

### **Suburban Black Contractors**

848 Dodge Avenue, Suite 347

Evanston, IL 60202 Phone: (847) 359-5356 Fax: (847) 359-5367

# Women Construction Owners & Executives (WCOE)

Chicago Caucus 308 Circle Avenue Forest Park, IL 60130 Phone: (708) 366-1250 Fax: (708) 366-5418

# **Chicago Women in Trades (CWIT)**

1455 S. Michigan Ave., 210

Chicago, IL 60605

Phone: (312) 942-1444 ext. 217

Fax: (312) 942-0802

# **Englewood Black Chamber of Commerce**

P.O. Box 21453 Chicago, IL 60621 Phone: (773) 471-2015 Fax: (773) 994-8233

### Ralph G. Moore & Associates (RGMA)

211 W. Wacker Dr., Suite 1050

Chicago, IL 60606

Phone: (312) 419-1911, 7251

Fax: (312) 419-1918

# **Small Contractors Network (SCN)**

1313 E. Sibley Blvd., Suite 200

Dolton, IL 60419 Phone: (708) 849-3100

Fax: (708) 849-3110

# West Side 2000

1029 S. May Chicago, IL 60607 Phone: (312) 563-0565

# Rainbow/PUSH Coalition International Trade Bureau

930 E. 50<sup>th</sup> Street Chicago, IL 60615 Phone: (773) 256-2728 Fax: (773) 373-4104

Web: www.rainbowpush.org

### **Uptown Center Hull House**

4520 N. Beacon Street Chicago, IL 60640 Phone: (773) 561-3500 Fax: (773) 561-3507 Web: www.hullhouse.org

# **Women's Business Development Center**

8 South Michigan Ave, Suite 400

Chicago, IL 60603 Phone: (312) 853-3477 Fax: (312) 853-0145 Web: www.wbdc.org

# Coalition for United Community Labor Force (CUCLF)

2100 S. Indiana Ave. #218 Chicago, IL 606016 Phone: (312) 225-2085-86 Fax: (312) 225-6742

# Inner City Youth Foundation, Inc.

4500 S. Michigan Ave. Chicago, IL 606563 Phone: (773) 285-2000 Fax: (773) 624-0894

### South Shore Chamber, Incorporated

ABF Community Service Bldg. 1750 E. 71<sup>st</sup> Street Chicago, IL 60649 Phone: (773) 643-1652 Fax: (773) 643-1657

# **United Neighborhood Organization (UNO)**

954 W. Washington Blvd., 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

Phone: (312) 432-6301 Ext. 237

Fax: (312) 432-0077 Web: www.uno-online.org

# 4.13. ATTACHMENT B - SAMPLE FORMAT FOR REQUESTING ASSIST AGENCY COMMENTS ON BIDDER'S REQUEST FOR REDUCTION OR WAIVER OF MBE/WBE GOALS

On Bidder/Proposer's Lette	rhead			
RETURN RECEIPT REQUI	ESTED			
(Date)				
Specification No.: Project Description:	89430A Runway Deicer Truck	ks		
(Assist Agency Name and A	Address)			
Dear	:			
specification with the City of	f Chicago. Bids are du	ue	proposal in response to the above of advertised specification with the unities on both a direct and indirect	City of Chicago
Minority/Women Business E firm certified by the City of	Enterprise contract goa of Chicago to particip	al. Due to the income as a subcon	essful in order to meet the Disadvanability to identify an appropriate tractor or joint venture partner, aware of such a firm, please contact	DBE/MBE/WBE request for
Name of Company	Representative	at	Address/Phone	<del>-</del>
within (10) ten business day	s of receipt of this lett	ter.		
			cy is entitled to comment upon this en (10) working days of your receip	
	Monica Cardenas, De Department of Procu City of Chicago 121 North La Salle S Chicago, Illinois 6060	irement Services street, Room 403	nt Officer	
If you wish to discuss this m	natter, please contact t	the undersigned a	at	
Sincerely,				

# 4.14. SCHEDULE B: AFFIDAVIT OF JOINT VENTURE (MBE/WBE)

Specification No.: 89430A

Project Description: Runway Deicer Trucks

This form need not be submitted if all joint venturers are MBEs and/or WBEs. In such a case, however, a written joint venture agreement among the MBE and WBE venturers must be submitted. In all proposed joint ventures, each MBE and/or WBE venturer must submit a copy of their current Letter of Certification.

All information requested on this schedule must be answered in the spaces provided. Do not refer to your joint venture agreement except to expand on answers provided on this form. If additional space is required, additional sheets may be attached.

I.	Name	of joint venture:
	Addres	ss of joint venture:
	Phone	number of joint venture:
II.		y each non-MBE/WBE venturer(s):
	Name	of Firm:
	Addres	SS:
		·
		et person for matters
	concei	rning MBE/WBE compliance:
III.	Identif	y each MBE/WBE venturer(s):
	Name	of Firm:
	Addres	SS:
	Phone	· ·
	Contac	ct person for matters
	concei	ning MBE/WBE compliance:
IV.	Descri	be the role(s) of the MBE and/or WBE venturer(s) in the joint venture:
		<del></del>
V.	share propos equipn under	a copy of the joint venture agreement. In order to demonstrate the MBE and/or WBE venturer's in the ownership, control, management responsibilities, risks and profits of the joint venture, the sed joint venture agreement must include specific details related to: (1) the contributions of capital and nent; (2) work items to be performed by the MBE/WBEs own forces; (3) work items to be performed the supervision of the MBE/WBE venturer; and (4) the commitment of management, supervisory and ive personnel employed by the MBE/WBE to be dedicated to the performance of the project.
VI.	Owner A.	ship of the Joint Venture. What are the percentage(s) of MBE/WBE ownership of the joint venture?
		MBE/WBE ownership percentage(s) Non-MBE/WBE ownership percentage(s)
	B.	Specify MBE/WBE percentages for each of the following (provide narrative descriptions and other detail as applicable):
		1. Profit and loss sharing:
		2. Capital contributions:
		(a) Dollar amounts of initial contribution:  (b) Dollar amounts of anticipated on-going contributions:

D.	Other applicable ownership interests, including ownership options or othe restrict or limit ownership and/or control:	er agreements which
E. F.	Provide copies of all written agreements between venturers concerning the Identify each current City of Chicago contract (and each contract complete	
	years) by a joint venture of two or more firms participating in this joint ven	
be, res	I of and Participation in the Joint Venture. Identify by name and firm those ponsible for, and have the authority to engage in the following manage ns. (Indicate any limitations to their authority such as dollar limits and co-s	ment functions and po
A.	Joint venture check signing:	
B.	Authority to enter contracts on behalf of the joint venture:	
C.	Signing, co-signing and/or collateralizing loans:	
D.	Acquisition of lines of credit:	
E.	Acquisition and indemnification of payment and performance bonds:	
	Negotiating and signing labor agreements:	
F.		
F. G.	Management of contract performance. (Identify by name and firm only):  1. Supervision of field operations:	

Contributions of equipment (Specify types, quality and quantities of equipment to be provided by

C.

		hases:				
	3. Estimating	:				
	4. Engineerin	g:				
Financ	cial Controls of	joint venture:				
A.	Which firm a	nd/or individual will be responsible for	keeping the books of accoun	nt?		
B.	Identify the m	nanaging partner, if any, and describe	the means and measure of	their compensation:		
C.	companies, f	ty does each venturer have to commit inancing institutions, suppliers, subcor of this contract or the work of this proj	ntractors, and/or other partie lect?			
under	te the approximate number of operative personnel (by trade) needed to perform the joint ventures work er this contract. Indicate whether they will be employees of the non-MBE/WBE firm, the MBE/WBE, or the joint venture.					
	Trade	Non-MBE/WBE Firm (Number)	MBE/WBE (Number)	Joint Venture		
A.	Are any prop	nel proposed for this project will be emosed joint venture employees currentles (number) Employed became and firm the individual who will be	y employed by either venture y MBE/WBE	er? Currently employed by		
A. B.	Are any prop non-MBE/WE Identify by na	osed joint venture employees currentl BE (number) Employed b	y employed by either venture y MBE/WBE responsible for hiring joint v	er? Currently employed by		
A. B.	Are any prop non-MBE/WE Identify by na Which ventur	osed joint venture employees currently BE (number) Employed but and firm the individual who will be	y employed by either venture y MBE/WBE responsible for hiring joint venture payrolls:	er? Currently employed by venture employees:		
A. B.	Are any prop non-MBE/WE Identify by na Which venture Please state	osed joint venture employees currently BE (number) Employed but the individual who will be the responsible for the preparation.	y employed by either venture y MBE/WBE responsible for hiring joint venture payrolls:	er? Currently employed by venture employees:		
A. B.	Are any prop non-MBE/WE Identify by na Which venture Please state	osed joint venture employees currently BE (number) Employed but the individual who will be the responsible for the preparation.	y employed by either venture y MBE/WBE responsible for hiring joint venture payrolls:	er? Currently employed by venture employees:		

The undersigned affirms that the foregoing statements are correct and include all material information necessary to identify and explain the terms and operations of our joint venture and the intended participation of each venturer in the undertaking. Further, the undersigned covenant and agree to provide to the City current, complete and accurate information regarding actual joint venture work and the payment therefore, and any proposed changes in any provision of the joint venture agreement, and to permit the audit and examination of the books, records and files of the joint venture, or those of each venturer relevant to the joint venture by authorized representatives of the City or the Federal funding agency.

Any material misrepresentation will be grounds for terminating any contract which may be awarded and for initiating action under federal or state laws concerning false statements.

**NOTE:** If, after filing this Schedule B and before the completion on the joint ventures work on the project, there is any change in the information submitted, the joint venture must inform the City of Chicago, either directly or through the prime contractor if the joint venture is a subcontractor.

Name of MBE/WBE Partner Firm	Name of Non-MBE/WBE Partner Firm
Signature of Affiant	Signature of Affiant
Name and Title of Affiant	Name and Title of Affiant
Date	Date
On this day of, 20, the above-signed office	
personally appeared and, known to me be the persons de executed the same in the capacity therein stated and for	escribed in the foregoing Affidavit, acknowledged that they the purpose therein contained.
N WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and of	ficial seal.
Notary Public Signature:	
Commission Expires:	(Seal)

# 4.15. SCHEDULE C-1: LETTER OF INTENT FROM MBE/WBE TO PERFORM AS SUBCONTRACTOR, SUPPLIER AND/OR CONSULTANT

Project Description:Runway DSpecification Number:89430A	eicer Trucks
From:(Name of MBE/WBE Firm)	MBE: Yes No WBE: Yes No
То:	and the City of Chicago:
(Name of Prime Contractor	•)
	is confirmed by the attached letter of Certification from the City of Chicago for a period of five (5) years.
The undersigned is prepared to provide the connection with the above named project/	e following described services or supply the following described goods in contract:
The above described performance is offer	red for the following price and described terms of payment:
\$	
If more space is needed to fully describe to additional sheets.	he MBE/WBE firms proposed scope of work and/or payment schedule, attach
	ritten agreement for the above work with you as a Prime Contractor, ract with the City of Chicago, and will do so within (3) three working days of of Chicago.
(Signature of Owner, President or Authorize	zed Agent of MBE/WBE)
Name /Title (Print)	
Date	

Phone

# 4.16. SCHEDULE D-1: AFFIDAVIT OF MBE/WBE GOAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Project Description: Specification Number:	Runway Deicer Truc 89430A	cks
State of		
County (City) of		
I HEREBY DECLARE AND AFF	FIRM that I am duly a	uthorized representative of:
	Name of Bi	dder
and that I have personally revi		nd facts set forth herein describing our proposed plan to achieve the
All MBE/WBE firms included i Attached).	n this plan have bee	en certified as such by the City of Chicago (Letters of Certification
MBE/WBE firms as jo to the performance of	hall, in determining th bint venture partners, f this contract.)	e manner of MBE/WBE participation, first consider involvement with subcontractors, and suppliers of goods and services directly related m, attach copy of City of Chicago Letter of Certification. (Certification
		IBE goal only. Certification of the bidder as a WBE satisfies the WBE
copies of Letters	of Certification and a	more joint venture partners are certified MBEs or WBEs, attach copy of Joint Venture Agreement clearly describing the role of the atterest in the joint venture.
C. MBE/WBE Subc	ontractors/Suppliers/0	Consultants:
1. Name of ME	BE/WBE:	
Address:		
Contact Pers	son:	
Phone:		
Dollar Amou	nt Participation:	\$
Percent Amo	ount of Participation:	%
Schedule C-	1 attached?	Yes No* *(see next page)

2.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	
	Schedule C-1 attached?	Yes *  *(see next page)
3.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	%
	Schedule C-1 attached?	Yes
4.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	
	Schedule C-1 attached?	Yes * *(see next page)

		5.	Name of MBE/WBE:	<del></del>
			Address:	
			Contact Person:	
			Phone:	
			Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
			Percent Amount of Participation:	%
			Schedule C-1 attached?	Yes *  *(see next page)
		6.	Attach additional sheets as neede	ed.
* 	Indi (NC part con	rectorecticipation	e Participation of MBE/WBE Firm  This section does need not to be ation outlined in Section I. If the Mor will be expected to demonstrate	ion not submitted with bid/proposal must be submitted so as to assure n ten (10) calendar days after bid opening (or proposal due date.)  is  completed if the MBE/WBE goals have been met through the direct BE/WBE goals have not been met through direct participation, e that the proposed MBE/WBE direct participation represents the noces. Only after such a demonstration will indirect participation be
	con MB	side E/W	red.) BE Subcontractors/Suppliers/Cons	sultants proposed to perform work or supply goods or services where
	suc	h pe	rformance does not directly relate	to the performance of this contract:
	A.	Naı	me of MBE/WBE:	
		Add	dress:	
		Cor	ntact Person:	
		Pho	one:	
		Dol	lar Amount Participation:	<b>5</b>
		Per	cent Amount of Participation:	%
		Sch	nedule C-1 attached?	Yes No*

В.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	%
	Sch. C-1 attached?	Yes *
C.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	%
	Sch. C-1 attached?	Yes *
D.	Name of MBE/WBE:	
	Address:	
	Contact Person:	
	Phone:	
	Dollar Amount Participation:	\$
	Percent Amount of Participation:	%
	Sch. C-1 attached?	Yes *

# E. Attach additional sheets as needed.

<sup>\*</sup> All Schedule C-1s and Letters of Certification not submitted with bid/proposal must be submitted so as to assure receipt by the Contract Administrator within ten (10) calendar days after bid opening (or proposal due date).

# III. Summary of MBE/WBE Proposal: A. MBE Proposal MBE Direct Participation (from Section I.) **MBE Firm Name Dollar Amount Percent** % % % Total **Direct** MBE Participation \$\_\_\_\_\_ MBE Indirect Participation (from Section II.) **MBE Firm Name Dollar Amount** Percent % % % Total **Indirect** MBE Participation Dollar Amount Percent Total MBE Direct and Indirect Participation \$\_\_\_\_\_\_% B. WBE Proposal WBE Direct Participation (from Section I.) **WBE Firm Name Dollar Amount** Percent % % % Total **Direct** WBE Participation % WBE Indirect Participation (from Section II.) **WBE Firm Name Dollar Amount** Percent \$\_\_\_\_\_ \_\_\_\_\_% % Total **Indirect** WBE Participation

Dollar Amount

Percent

The Contractor designates the following pers	son as their MBE/WBE Liaison Officer:
Name:	
Phone Number:	
I do solemnly declare and affirm under per correct, and that I am authorized, on behalf of	nalties of perjury that the contents of the foregoing document are true and of the contractor, to make this affidavit.
Signature of affiant:	Date:
State of	
This instrument was acknowledged before m	
by	(name /s of person/s)
as	_(type of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.)
of	(name of party on behalf of whom instrument executed)
Notary Public Signature:	
	(Seal)
Commission Expires:	_

To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, the facts and representations contained in this Schedule are true, and no material facts have been omitted.

# 4.17. DBE/MBE/WBE UTILIZATION REPORT

NOTICE:

THIS REPORT IS NOT TO BE COMPLETED AT THE TIME OF BID OR PROPOSAL SUBMISSION. IF AWARDED A CONTRACT WITH AN APPROVED DBE/MBE/WBE PLAN, THE PRIME CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT THIS REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REPORTING REQUIREMENTS STATED IN THE SPECIAL CONDITION REGARDING DISADVANTAGED OR MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE COMMITMENT.

Contract Administrator:	_ Project Description: Runway Deicer Trucks	
Phone Number:	Specification Number: 89430A	
Date of Award:	Contract Number:	
STATE OF: ()	Utilization Number:	
COUNTY (CITY) OF: ()		
In connection with the above-captioned contract:		
I HEREBY DECLARE AND AFFIRM that I am the		
	(Title – Print or Type)	
and duly authorized representative of		
	(Name of Company - Print or Type)	
	( )	
(Address of Company)	(Phone)	

and that the following Disadvantaged, Minority and Women Business Enterprises have been contracted with, and have furnished, or are furnishing and preparing materials for, and rendering services stated in the contract agreement.

The following Schedule accurately reflects the value of each DBE/MBE/WBE sub-agreement and the amounts of money paid to each to date.

DBE/MBE/WBE Firm Name	Indicate Type of Firm (DBE/MBE/WBE)	Amount of Contract	Amount Paid To-Date
		\$	
		\$	
		\$	
		\$	
		\$	
		\$	
Amount Billed to City	: \$ A	mount Paid to Prime Contractor:\$	

For each DBE/MBE and/or WBE listed on this report, briefly describe the work or goods/services provided in relation to this contract. (Indicate line items, if applicable)

DBE/MBE/WBE Name		Description of Work/Services And/or Goods Provided	
			<u> </u>
		of perjury that the contents of the fo the contractor, to make this affidavit.	
Name of Contractor:	(Print or Type)		
Signature:	(Signature of Afficiat)		
Name of Affiant:			
Date:(Print or Type)	(Print or Type)		
State of			
County (City) of			
This instrument was acknowled	edged before me on	(date)	
by	name/s of pe	rson/s)	
as	(type of autho	ority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.)	
of	(name of part	y on behalf of whom instrument was	executed).
Notary Public Signature:			
(Seal) Commission Expires:			

# 5. DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS

# 5.1. SCOPE

The Contractor must furnish and deliver the new, current model, 6 X 6 Cab / Chassis Runway Deicer Trucks as specified, F.O.B., City of Chicago, Department of Fleet Management, in accordance with all the terms and conditions of this specification.

It is the intent of these specifications to describe the requirements for a diesel powered, 6 x 6 cab / chassis, having a gross vehicle weight rating of not less than 75,000 pounds, completely equipped with 4,000 gallon tank, pump and spray boom, installed and ready for runway de-icing operations. Vehicle must be off-highway type; no on/off highway type chassis, or modified 6x4 chassis will be considered to be compliant with this document. All components of the vehicle must be approved for the intended application by the respective component manufacturers. The vehicle must comply with all applicable FMCSR quality/safety standards, and requirements of the FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-20.

This contract is for the purchase, maintenance and repair of the vehicle(s) specified, including non-warranty repairs. All maintenance and repairs are to be performed at Contractor's shop unless otherwise directed by DFM; pricing for such repairs shall be as stated in the specifications, and the bid pages.

All specified requirements are minimum requirements unless stated otherwise.

# 5.2. LICENSED NEW VEHICLE DEALER

When required by the Illinois Motor Vehicle Code, Section 625 ILCS 5/5-101, the Bidder must be a licensed vehicle dealer in accordance with the Illinois Motor Vehicle Code, Section 625 ILCS 5/5-101. Bidder must provide a copy of current Registration for Authority to Deal in Vehicles issued by the Illinois Secretary of State with the bid. Failure to obtain the required licenses may cause the bids to be rejected as non-responsive.

Bidder must be licensed by the Illinois Secretary of State to deal in the specific make of vehicle proposed. If, at the time of the submission of its bid, the Bidder is not registered to deal in the specific make of vehicle proposed, Bidder has until 30 days after the bid opening date to obtain the required documentation and submit it to the City.

If the proposed unit is manufactured in stages, bidder either must be registered to deal in the specific make of vehicle proposed (as the incomplete vehicle portion of the proposed vehicle) or must be registered to deal in the specific make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer. In cases where the bidder is registered to deal in the specific make of vehicle proposed (as the incomplete vehicle portion of the proposed vehicle), the bidder or bidder's subcontractor must be registered to deal in the specific make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer. If the bidder is registered to deal in the specific make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer, bidder or bidder's subcontractor must be registered to deal in the specific make of vehicle proposed (as the incomplete vehicle portion of the proposed vehicle). In all cases, bidders must provide documentation of current Registration for Authority to Deal in Vehicles both specific to the make of vehicle proposed (as the incomplete vehicle portion of the proposed vehicle) and specific to the make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer; the required, current registration may be issued to and furnished by the bidder and its subcontractor or by the bidder alone, but not to subcontractor(s) alone. Bidder must provide documentation of current registration both for the specific make of vehicle proposed and for the proposed specific make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer. If, at the time of the submission of its bid, the Bidder is not registered to deal for both the specific make of vehicle proposed and for the proposed specific make manufactured by the final-stage manufacturer, Bidder has until 30 days after the bid opening date to obtain the required documentation.

Bidders not located in Illinois must provide with their bid all such registration / license documentation from their state in lieu of documentation from the Illinois Secretary of State.

Bidders will not be required to be licensed vehicle dealers and will not be required to furnish Registration for Authority to Deal in Vehicles where not required by the Illinois Motor Vehicle Code, Section 625 ILCS 5/5-101, when proposing only units that are exempt from the requirements of the Illinois Motor Vehicle Code for dealer licensing and certificates of title.

# 5.3. MANUFACTURER, MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZED DEALER / DISTRIBUTOR

The Contractor must be the manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor of the proposed vehicles or equipment, provide documentation of same with its bid or upon the request of the Chief Procurement Officer, and be capable of providing genuine parts, assemblies and/or accessories as supplied by the original equipment manufacturer (OEM). Further, the Contractor must be capable of furnishing original product warranty and manufacturer's related services such as product information, product recall notices, etc. Proof of ability to transfer product warranties to the City of Chicago is to be submitted with bid documents, if applicable.

For vehicles manufactured in stages, bidders must be either the manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor of the specific make of vehicle proposed (as the incomplete vehicle portion of the proposed vehicle) or must be either the final-stage manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor for the final-stage manufacturer. If the bidder is the manufacturer, authorized dealer or authorized distributor of the specific make of vehicle proposed, bidder or bidder's subcontractor must be either the final-stage manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor for the final-stage manufacturer. If the bidder is the final-stage manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor for the final-stage manufacturer, bidder or bidder's subcontractor must be either the manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor of the specific make of vehicle proposed.

# 5.4. SUBSTITUTIONS AND EXCEPTIONS

Reference to a specific manufacturer or trade name in this solicitation is intended to be descriptive (but not restrictive) and to indicate to prospective bidders those product(s) that have been deemed by the City to be satisfactory. The bidder must, if awarded the Contract, provide the product(s) specified, unless equivalent alternatives have been proposed as described below and found acceptable to the City.

A bidder that chooses to respond to this solicitation for bids with alternate product(s) from those specified in the solicitation, must identify such alternate items with its bid with a detailed explanation and documentation in support of how the alternate items proposed by the bidder can perform as well as or better than those specified. Unless an alternate item is so identified, it is understood that the Bidder proposes, and will be required to provide, the specific item described in the specifications. No substitution of specified items will be allowed thereafter except as otherwise provided for in the specifications.

Documentation in support of alternate items includes:

- 1. Complete data substantiating compliance of proposed alternate items with requirements stated in the solicitation, including:
  - (a) Product identification, including manufacturer's name and address
  - (b) Manufacturer's literature identifying:
    - i) Product description
    - ii) Reference standards
    - iii) Performance and test data
  - (c) Samples, as applicable
  - (d) Name and address of similar projects on which the product has been used, and date of usage.
- 2. Itemized comparison of the proposed alternate item with product or service specified; listing significant variations.

A bidder warrants and represents that in making a formal request for substitution with alternate items that:

- 1. The proposed alternate item is equivalent to or superior in all respects to the product specified,
- 2. The same warranties and guarantees will be provided for the alternate item as for the product specified.

The Chief Procurement Officer may, in his or her sole discretion, accept an alternate item for a specified item, provided the alternate item so bid is, in the Chief Procurement Officer's sole opinion, the equivalent of the item specified in the solicitation. An alternate item that the Chief Procurement Officer determines not to be equivalent to the specified item shall render the bid non-responsive and the Chief Procurement Officer will reject the bid.

If a bidder takes exception to other provisions of the specification, the Chief Procurement Officer may reject the bid as non-responsive in the event that the Chief Procurement, in his or her sole opinion, determines such exception(s) to be material exception(s).

# 5.5. TRAINING/TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

The Contractor must furnish professionally conducted training sessions to the extent described below. This training will be provided by the Contractor as a portion of the Contract, at no additional cost to the City.

For each unit delivered, the Contractor must train City personnel in the proper, safe operation of the unit and any auxiliary items for a minimum period of eight (8) hours. This training will be conducted by knowledgeable, experienced personnel, at the Department of Fleet Management facility.

In addition, for each unit delivered, the Contractor must train City trades technicians in the most efficient methods of diagnosing, troubleshooting, maintaining and repairing the unit and any auxiliary items for a minimum period of eight (8) hours.

# 5.6. NON-EXPERIMENTAL STANDARD PRODUCT

Experimental Runway Deicer Trucks will not be acceptable. Any Runway Deicer Trucks which are not produced by regular production methods and/or which have not been offered for sale to the public through accepted industry trade channels for approximately one (1) year prior to the offering of this bid, will be considered experimental. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to determine what constitutes experimental equipment.

Hybrids and/or combinations of two (2) or more standard production units may not be accepted. The Contractor must furnish evidence upon request that the Runway Deicer Trucks to be furnished has been commercially available through the proposed manufacturer to the trade for a period of not less than approximately one (1) year and has been fully field tested to the satisfaction of the Chief Procurement Officer.

### 5.7. GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

The Runway Deicer Trucks furnished will be the manufacturer's latest models. Appurtenance and/or accessories not herein mentioned, but necessary to furnish a complete unit ready for use upon delivery will be included. The Runway Deicer Trucks will conform to the best practices known to the trade in strength, quality of material and workmanship and be subject to this specification in full. The specification will be construed as minimum. Should the manufacturer's current published data or standard package exceed this, it will be considered minimum and will be furnished. The City reserves the right to waive or make exceptions to this requirement if it be to the City's best interest.

# 5.8. EQUIPMENT, COMPONENT AND DIMENSIONAL DATA

Under this agreement, the Contractor is required to assemble and furnish to the Department of Fleet Management a detailed list of information (approximately 150 data items) related to the specified Runway Deicer Trucks, the component parts and mounted equipment, no later than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to scheduled delivery date. Such information must be furnished by completing a "VMART Tech. Spec. Item Form", a copy of which may be obtained from the Department of Fleet Management, Technical Services Division; (312) 744-4300.

Any and all costs involved in providing the requested information must be anticipated by the Contractor, and incorporated into the bid pricing. The Contractor will not be entitled to any additional compensation from the City as a result of this provision.

# 5.9. CLEAN AIR ACT

The Contractor must comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. Specifically, Contractor must comply with applicable requirements of U.S. EPA regulations, "Conformity to State or Federal Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or Approved Under Title 23 U.S.C. or the Federal Transit Act," 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart T; and "Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation

Plans," 40 C.F.R. Part 93. Contractor must report and require each Subcontractor to report any violation of these requirements resulting from any activity related to the implementation of this Agreement to the City and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office.

### 5.10. WARRANTY

The specified Runway Deicer Trucks and all mounted/furnished equipment must be warranted against defective design, material or workmanship for the minimum periods listed in the Bid Data Pages Warranty Section or one year, whichever is greater.

Any repairs made by the Contractor during the respective warranty period must in turn be warranted for a period of three (3) months from the date of their completion, or until the end of the original coverage period, whichever is later.

Chronic defects in design, material and workmanship as warranted herein must be rectified in all units furnished under these specifications. Chronic defects, for purposes of this warranty, must be defined as defects of a similar nature which occur in more than three (3) [or ten percent (10%) of the quantity, whichever is greater] of the units furnished under these specifications.

The City may avail itself of the manufacturer's standard (or "no cost" incentive) warranty, or any provision thereof, in lieu of the warranty outlined herein, if deemed to be in the best interests of the City.

The Contractor must have factory warranty authorization, factory trained mechanics and adequate shop facilities, tools, parts and service facilities in the Chicago Metropolitan area (defined as being no more than 40 road miles from North & Throop St., Chicago, IL 60642) to service the chassis in his own shop during the warranty period.

In addition, the manufacturer(s)/dealer(s) of the mounted equipment and/or accessories furnished by the Contractor under this specification must employ sufficient factory trained personnel and maintain adequate shop facilities, service facilities and parts inventories within the Chicago Metropolitan area to service/repair the subject equipment/accessories throughout their warranty period.

For repair parts and services, the Contractor must warrant for a period of 90 days from the date of final acceptance (i.e. the date the unit is returned to the City) all parts and services, that it will, at its own expense and without any cost to the City of Chicago, replace all defective parts and make any repairs that may be required or made necessary by reason of defective design, material or workmanship, or by reason of non-compliance with these specifications. The Contractor must provide copies of standard warranties that will be used in the regular course of business for service repairs. Warranties will not commence until the vehicle is accepted by the Department of Fleet Management and placed into service. The Contractor will be responsible for the warranty of all parts and labor, regardless of whether the parts/and/or labor was provided by subcontractors.

The Contractor must furnish a warranty for the items and services provided under this Contract in accordance with the standard warranty regularly supplied. Exceptions to this warranty will be damage or loss due to theft, vandalism, or accidental occurrences outside the Contractor's control.

In the event that any such repair fails to endure this minimum period, the City may elect to repair the unit in-house on an "emergency basis", and/or the Contractor will replace the subject part(s) and/or furnish the necessary labor to make good the subject repair at no additional cost to the City.

When only labor is furnished by the Contractor to complete a work order, the Contractor will warranty the work for a minimum period of 90 days.

Also, in the event that the repair(s) fail to endure this minimum warranty period, the Contractor will incur all costs in transporting the unit back to the maintenance location, and returning it to the City after the warranty repair is completed.

While it is understood that the various components incorporated into the unit assembly are warranted by the specific component manufacturers, the successful bidder is responsible for assistance in and resolution of any and all warranty related problems. The successful bidder is regarded as the Prime Contractor for the completed vehicle. As such, the bidder will be held responsible for the proper selection, application and performance of all components utilized in the completed vehicle.

# 5.11. PUBLIC CONVENIENCE

All work performed under this Contract will be so conducted as to cause a minimum of dust, noise and inconvenience to the normal activities of the facility where the work is performed. The Contractor is responsible for conducting all work in such a manner as to minimize debris left in the public way and shall provide clean-up as required by the Commissioner. Whenever the Commissioner determines any type of operation constitutes a nuisance, the Contractor will immediately proceed to conduct it operations in an approved manner.

The Commissioner may at any time require additional provisions if such are deemed necessary for public safety or convenience.

### **5.12. CLEAN UP**

The Contractor must, during the progress of the work, remove and dispose of all materials and the resultant dirt and debris on a daily basis and keep the work site(s) and adjacent premises in a clean condition satisfactory to the City. Upon completion of work, the Contractor must remove all materials, tools and machinery and restore the site to the same general condition that existed prior to the commencement of its operation.

# 5.13. PROTECTION OF WORK, DAMAGES AND REPAIRS

The Contractor must provide protection for all uncompleted work under this contract until the work has been completed and accepted by the City.

The Contractor will be responsible for and shall repair and pay for damages to new and existing structures, material, equipment, plant, stock and apparatus during the course of the work, where such damage is directly due to work under this contract, or where such damage is the result of the negligence, or carelessness on the part of the Contractor or of its employees, or on the part of the Contractors subcontractor or its employees. However, the Contractor must first immediately notify the Commissioner, or his authorized representative, and report the nature and extent of damages prior to making any such necessary repairs.

# 5.14. QUALITY OF WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS

# Standards of Performance

The Contract will perform or cause to be performed, all Work required of it under the terms and conditions of this Contract with that degree of skill care and diligence normally exercised by experienced Contractors performing work in projects of a scope and magnitude comparable to this project. The Contractor will use reasonable efforts to assure timely and satisfactory completion of the Work. The Contractor will at all times, act in the best interest of the City. The contractor will perform or cause to be performed, all Work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract and to the reasonable satisfaction of the City.

# Correction of Work

The Contractor when directed in writing by the Commissioner, will promptly remove, re-perform or correct all Work identified to be defective or as failing to conform to the standards set forth above or in the Contract Documents, whether observed before or after completion of the Contractor's Work and whether or not installed or completed. The Contractor will bear all costs of correcting such defective or nonconforming Work, including costs associated with removing any nonconforming Work and installing corrected Work and compensation for any additional services made necessary thereby.

# Failure to Proceed with Directed Work

In case of failure on the part of the Contractor to execute Work ordered, in writing, by the Commissioner, the Commissioner may, at the expiration of a period of forty-eight (48) hours, request the Chief Procurement Officer to give notice, in writing, to the Contractor and proceed to execute such Work as may be deemed necessary and the cost thereof, will be deducted from compensation due or which may become due the Contractor under this Contract.

# 5.15. WORK PERFORMED AT CITY FACILITY

# 1. Employees

The Contractor's personnel will exercise safe and sound business practices with the skill, care, and diligence normally shown by professional technicians employed in the type of work required under this contract.

# 2. Character of Workers

The Contractor will employ only competent and efficient employees, and whenever, in the opinion of the Commissioner, any employee is careless, incompetent, obstructs the progress of the work, acts contrary to instructions or conducts themselves improperly, the Contractor will, upon the request of the Commissioner, remove the employee from the work and will not employ such employee again for the work under this Contract, except with the written consent of the Commissioner. The Contractor will not permit any person to enter any part of a City facility or property while under the influence of intoxicating liquors or controlled substances. The Contractor will not permit obnoxious behavior, or possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages or drugs anywhere on the site of any work to be performed under this Contract.

The Commissioner has authority to request the Contractor to remove any worker who proves to be incompetent or negligent in his/her duties.

#### 3. Uniforms

The Contractor's employees or subcontractors are required to wear suitable uniforms, during the time they are on duty on any City property.

The Contractor's employees or subcontractors must wear an identification badge at all times while on duty on any City property.

The Contractor's employees must have proper identification on their person before they will be allowed on any City property.

# 4. Use of City Facilities

The Contractor must inform the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or authorized representative of the use of City facilities, such as telephones.

Smoking is prohibited in all City of Chicago facilities.

The Contractor will require that all employees refrain from disturbing papers on desks, opening desk drawers or cabinets.

While on City premises, the Contractor will not store any equipment, tools or materials without prior written authorization from the Commissioner. The City will not be responsible for or liable to pay the Contractor for any loss of equipment, tools or materials stored in unsecured areas without proper authorization.

# 5.16. USE OF CITY FACILITIES

Use of City telephones, equipment or other apparatus at City facilities is prohibited without the prior approval of the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management. While on City premises, the Contractor must not store any equipment, tools or materials without prior written authorization from the Commissioner. The City will not be responsible for or liable to pay the Contractor for any loss of equipment, tools or materials stored in unsecured areas.

### 5.17. WORK IN PROGRESS

Work in progress at the termination date of the contract will be completed by the Contractor in the most expedient method available. In no event will the Contractor vacate his/her obligations under this agreement until all work issued to him/her prior to the expiration of the Contract has been completed and accepted by the Department of Water Management.

# 5.18. QUALITY CONTROL

The Contractor must utilize industry-recognized standards and procedures to assure that a satisfactory level of quality control are maintained in all stages of the manufacturing, assembly and installation process. Employees of the Department of Procurement Services and the Department of Fleet Management or agents acting on behalf of the City, accompanied by such City personnel will have open access to all areas/ facilities in order to ensure that proper quality control standards are being met.

# 5.19. DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES

The Runway Deicer Trucks and any/all assemblies, subassemblies, component parts, etc., must be designed with a factor of safety that is equal to or greater than that which is considered standard and acceptable for this class of equipment. Where applicable, the vehicles or equipment must conform to the standards established by Military Specifications, the Society of Automotive Engineers, Federal Aviation Administration or the Federal Motor Safety Standards. Assemblies, sub-assemblies, component parts, etc., must be standard and interchangeable throughout the entire quantity of units purchased under this document. Assemblies, sub-assemblies, component parts, etc., that are obsolete or approaching obsolescence due to material, design changes or improvements will not be acceptable, and will be subject to replacement with current assemblies, sub-assemblies, component parts, etc.

The Runway Deicer Trucks furnished by the Contractor under this Specification must also comply with all applicable Federal OSHA, State of Illinois and local laws/acts, ordinances in effect at the time of delivery.

The Runway Deicer Trucks must be designed to function reliably and efficiently in sustained operation, under conditions which are typical for the intended application.

The Runway Deicer Trucks must be designed to permit accessibility to all major lubrication and maintenance points with minimal disturbance of other components or assemblies.

Where "heavy-duty" items are required by this Specification, the term will be understood to define items which exceed the quality, capacity, durability and/or quantity of those items normally supplied with a standard production unit.

No dealer advertising labels may be affixed to a unit when delivered to the City.

### 5.20. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR AUXILIARY ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

When any auxiliary electrical items are required by the specifications, a fuse or junction box suitable for connection of the auxiliary equipment required must be installed in a location subject to approval by the Department of Fleet Management, Automotive Engineering Section. Junction box must include fused circuits sufficient to accommodate the required auxiliary equipment. Fuses connected to constant power must be connected directly to the chassis battery with a continuous run of 8-gauge marine-rated wire. An appropriately sized waterproof circuit breaker with test button and swing-out reset switch must be installed in the main lead within 12" of the battery.

Each relay and fuse added to power auxiliary equipment must be clearly and permanently labeled with the function it controls. Each fuse must be sized as necessary to match circuit demands and component-manufacturer recommendations; each fuse must be rated to effectively protect its circuit.

All auxiliary equipment wiring, including wiring in the engine compartment and in the passenger compartment, must be enclosed in suitably sized wire loom. All wiring must be continuous lengths with soldered and heat-shrink-wrapped connections. Any opening cut in metal must be appropriately sized and must be fitted with a grommet to protect wiring and filled with silicon to seal out weather and noise.

In all cases, installation of auxiliary equipment must be done in a professional manner, following the requirements and guidelines of all involved auxiliary-equipment manufacturers and, where more restrictive, applicable industry (NEMA and SAE) standards and best practices. Installations must be consistent from vehicle to vehicle furnished by the Contractor under this Specification, including such details as operation, wire colors and wire routing. Readable, electronically printed wiring diagrams showing the consistent installation methods must be furnished at

time of delivery for each model year and equipment configuration furnished by the Contractor under this Specification.

Wiring must not pass within 3" of exhaust system components. Wiring installed from 3" to 6" of exhaust system components must be heat shielded.

# 5.21. MANUALS, CERTIFICATES, APPLICATIONS, ETC.

All manuals must be provided in English.

One (1) operator's manual and one (1) complete set of maintenance and repair manuals must be provided with each vehicle purchased. Maintenance manuals must include chassis, body, engine, transmission, and hydraulics.

Technical Service Bulletins (TSBs) must be forwarded directly to the Department of Fleet Management as they are issued.

A minimum of forty-eight (48) hours prior to delivery, the Contractor must furnish the Department of Fleet Management, attention Kevin Campbell, 1685 N. Throop Street, Chicago, IL 60622 with the following items for each unit being delivered: Certificate of Origin and line-set sheet; Odometer Statement (in addition to odometer disclosure on Certificate of Origin), and applicable warranty certificate(s).

Completed Illinois Department of Revenue Form #ST556 (for Illinois suppliers) or RUT-25 (for out-of-state suppliers) must be provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to delivery. Forms can be obtained from the Illinois Department of Revenue by calling (800) 356-6302.

Completed Application for Vehicle Title and Registration Form #VSD-190 must be provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to delivery. Forms can be obtained from the Illinois Secretary of State by calling (217) 782-7132.

**NOTE:** The above listed documents must indicate the "CITY of CHICAGO" as the owner of the vehicle. The assigned unit number and the respective department name must also be indicated on all documents, in the appropriate places.

No vehicle / equipment deliveries will be accepted unless the Contractor has fulfilled all of the above listed requirements.

# 5.22. LITERATURE / DATA

The Contractor should submit 3 copies of each of the following informational items with the bid, or upon the request of the Chief Procurement Officer or a designee:

- 5.22.1. Detailed 2-view drawing of the proposed cab/chassis, listing dimensions including BBC, WB, CA, OAH, etc.;
- 5.22.2. Manufacturer's published literature for all pertinent chassis components, i.e., engine, transmission and brakes;
- 5.22.3. Verifiable engine power curves, fuel consumption curves and engine/transmission compatibility data (or scan);
- 5.22.4. Completed bid data pages, bound herein;
- 5.22.5. Detailed multiple-view drawings of the proposed cab and chassis, with the proposed mounted equipment, including all major components;
- 5.22.6. A letter from equipment manufacturer, stating bidder is an authorized dealer;
- 5.22.7. Certification and proof of chassis engine cooling tests. Certification must include a dated, signed letter from the engine manufacturer indicating approval of the installation as bid. Certification must prove suitable cooling capacity as specified.

# 5.23. MEETINGS AND INSPECTIONS

- For each purchase order release, a pre-construction meeting must be held at the facility of the department ordering the equipment, prior to construction of any units. This meeting must be attended by the Contractor's technical representatives to view the present units and to discuss construction techniques and particular component placement. The Contractor's representatives must have the full authority to provide binding decisions on the Contractor's behalf.
- 5.23.2. For each purchase order release, a pre-paint inspection must be performed at the manufacturing facility prior to the first unit from each order being completed and shipped. Two representatives from the using department and two representatives from the Department of Fleet Management will attend this inspection. The expense of appropriate travel, lodging and meals for this inspection must be borne by the Contractor.
- For purposes of travel expenses, travel to and from the inspections by department, personnel must be by automobile up to a maximum of 200 road miles from the Fleet Management Maintenance Facility at 1685 N. Throop Street, Chicago, Illinois. If travel is required in excess of 200 road miles, the Contractor must provide City employees with travel via commercial airlines with a 14-day notice of arrangements being provided prior to the inspection date. The levels of travel and accommodations for City representatives must not exceed those established within the City of Chicago Travel Guidelines.
- 5.23.4. Final acceptance will be at the Fleet Management facility at 1685 N. Throop Street, Chicago, Illinois.

### 5.24. BID LINE #1: 6 X 6 CAB / CHASSIS RUNWAY DE-ICER TRUCK- BASE UNIT

It is the intent of these specifications to describe the requirements for a diesel powered, 6 x 6 cab / chassis, having a gross vehicle weight rating of not less than 73,500 pounds, completely equipped with 4,000 gallon tank, pump and spray boom, installed and ready for runway de-icing operations. All components of the vehicle must be approved for the intended application by the respective component manufacturers. The vehicle must comply with all applicable FMCSR quality/safety standards, and requirements of the FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-20. Documentation showing compliance with these standards must be submitted with the bid, or upon the request of the Chief Procurement Officer.

# 5.25. OVERALL DESIGN

- 5.25.1. Chassis GVWR must be a minimum of 73,500 lbs., exclusive of tire ratings.
- 5.25.2. Wheelbase must be the shortest dimension necessary to properly mount and distribute the weight of the payload and mounted equipment; approximately 220".
- 5.25.3. BBC dimension (effective) must not be less than 109".
- 5.25.4. The overall height of the completed unit, including cab, body and any/all attachments, must not exceed 150".
- 5.25.5. Overall length must not exceed 38'.
- 5.25.6. Overall width must not exceed 150".
- 5.25.7. Starting gradeability must be 25% minimum in first gear.
- 5.25.8. Calculated maximum speed of vehicle on level pavement must be 45 mph minimum, 50 mph maximum, at governed engine speed. The chassis and deicer unit must start and perform at full capability at ambient temperatures down to -40°F.
- 5.25.9. The de-icer unit must be designed and constructed to allow all functions to be controlled and monitored from the cab, by a single driver/operator.
- 5.25.10. The vertical center of gravity of the completed unit must be kept as low as possible to optimize maneuverability, braking and overall safety/performance.

- 5.25.11. All parts and components of this unit must be engineered and classified as heavy duty, and must be of the size, material, and strength to sustain the maximum load limits and severe operating conditions encountered in snow removal, while resulting in minimum wear and failure.
- 5.25.12. The vehicle supplied must comply with all applicable FMCSR and FMVSS quality/safety standards, and requirements of the FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-20.
- 5.25.13. Vehicle must not produce radio interference that disturbs normal airport navigation/communication capabilities.

# 5.26. CHASSIS/ FRAME

- The chassis must be designed to permit easy and safe mounting and dismounting of the unit for operators and service personnel. All sheet metal, cowling, steps and fenders must be free of sharp edges and protrusions, and must include ample supports and bracing to prevent distortion and cracking. All steps or walkways must be raised lug or expanded metal type construction. Grab bars must be installed as required for safe mounting and dismounting by personnel.
- 5.26.2. The chassis frame must be constructed from full length, full depth, single channel rails, minimum bar size of 11.625" x 3.87" x .375". The frame must be the industry standard 34" width.
- 5.26.3. Frame liners, wrappers, fishplating, and bolt-on extensions are not acceptable. The frame must be assembled with suitably sized/placed crossmembers and "Grade 8" bolts and locknuts. Rails that are spliced or cut to accommodate components are not acceptable.

**NOTE:** Sufficient "after frame" must be provided to fully support the mounted body, spray boom and other specified equipment.

- 5.26.4. Frame channels must be produced from heat-treated 110,000 PSI yield strength, single channel carbon manganese steel rails. Resisting Bending Moment (RBM) must be not less than 2,300,000 inch-pounds.
- 5.26.5. An integral 24" front frame extension must be provided to permit the mounting of the hydraulic pump. The frame extension must be a continuous one-piece extension of the chassis frame rails. Bolt-on, or weld-on extensions are not acceptable.
- 5.26.6. The unit must be equipped with a heavy gauge formed steel bumper and 2 extra heavy-duty steel tow hooks mounted to the chassis frame rails (front only).

### 5.27. PROPULSION ENGINE

- 5.27.1. The engine must be a four-stroke diesel type, 6 cylinder, minimum 12 liter displacement, and must be equipped with latest diesel electronic control and engine management system. Engine electronics must have management system and on-board engine diagnostic capabilities.
- 5.27.2. Horsepower rating must be a minimum of 450HP at 1,800 RPM; gross torque must be 1,350 ft-lbs minimum.
- 5.27.3. Engine, in combination with the transmission and axle ratios provided, must provide the performance specified in "Overall Design" Section.
- 5.27.4. Engine must be equipped with a suitable governor to limit RPM to a maximum of 2,100.
- 5.27.5. The engine must be provided with full flow, replaceable oil filters, spin-on type. Engine must also be equipped with a heavy-duty engine oil cooler.
- 5.27.6. Engine must be equipped with a dry type two stage air cleaner with outside/underhood air intake and a dash mounted restriction indicator gauge installed in the cab.
- 5.27.7. Unless engine is equipped with glow plugs or other pre-heating devices, an ether starting aid must be wired through the ignition switch; KBI "NVT", key activated. One ether canister must also be provided.

- 5.27.8. The engine must have an automatic shut down system with the capability to override for a period of 30 seconds. The integrated electronic controls must be programmed to "shut-down" the engine in the event of low coolant level, high coolant temperature or low oil pressure. An override provision must also be included.
- 5.27.9. Engine must be equipped with a coolant heater (110 VAC; 1,500 watt element) with thermostatic control and weatherproof receptacle.
- 5.27.10. The engine crankshaft must be equipped with a PTO adapter for mounting a direct drive hydraulic pump.

#### 5.28. COOLING SYSTEM PROPULSION ENGINE

- 5.28.1. The cooling system must consist of a heavy-duty vertical flow radiator, with top & bottom tanks, and side members bolted together to form a rigid frame. The tanks must be steel and the core must be constructed of copper and brass. Aluminum radiators are not acceptable.
- 5.28.2. A transmission oil cooler must be located in the bottom tank of the radiator.
- 5.28.3. A thermostatically controlled, air operated disconnect type suction fan must be provided.
- 5.28.4. All coolant and heater hoses must be silicone. Hose clamps must be "constant torque" type.
- 5.28.5. System must be equipped with a bypass thermostat. Temperature rating must be selected for all-season service.
- 5.28.6. Cooling system capacity/efficiency must maintain recommended engine operating temperatures during extended idling periods in ambient temperatures up to 100°F.
- 5.28.7. Coolant must comply with the current ASTM standard for low silicate ethylene glycol base engine coolant for heavy-duty diesel engines.
- 5.28.8. The engine cooling system must be filled with a permanent type antifreeze, protecting the system to –40°F. Engine must have "Spin-on" type NAL-COOL charge canister.
- 5.28.9. Drain cocks must be installed at the low point of the cooling system, and at other such points as may be necessary to drain the system completely.

#### 5.29. EXHAUST SYSTEM PROPULSION ENGINE

- 5.29.1. The engine must be equipped with a vertical muffler and stack pipe, located between cab and body. Piping and clamps must be positioned so as not to interfere with other chassis or body components.
- 5.29.2. Exhaust stack must be equipped with a stainless steel perforated exhaust guard. A hinged rain cap must also be installed at the top of the stack pipe.
- 5.29.3. Units equipped with Diesel Particulate Filters must also be provided with Selective Catalytic Reduction systems.

#### 5.30. FUEL SYSTEM

- 5.30.1. The vehicle must be equipped with ICC approved fuel tank(s); not less than 150 gallon total combined capacity. Tank(s) must have a drain plug at lowest end of sump. The tank(s) must be constructed of heavy gauge metal and be securely mounted to the chassis frame. If dual tanks are provided, they must be interconnected with a minimum 1" diameter crossover line and must have one side fill capability. Tank(s) must have a 4" diameter filler neck with chained fuel cap and be labeled "Diesel Fuel Only."
- 5.30.2. Engine must be equipped with a replaceable fuel filter. Filter must be mounted in the respective engine compartment with wire braided lines to pump. Units must be accessible and easily serviced.

5.30.3. Fuel-water separators, Raycor Model 325 R, must be provided for each engine with heating element and seethrough bowl. Units must be accessible and easily serviced.

#### 5.31. ELECTRICAL SYSTEM

- 5.31.1. Vehicle electrical system must be 12 Volt.
- Four "BCI group #31" 12 V maintenance free batteries must be installed, with stainless steel terminal studs. Each battery must be rated at a minimum of 700 CCA and 95 Amp-hours. Engine must utilize these batteries for starting.
- 5.31.3. Batteries must be completely enclosed in an aluminum or anti-corrosive battery box. Battery box must be equipped with a completely removable cover and lock hasp for ready servicing.
- 5.31.4. Alternator must be a minimum of 145 Amp capacity, with built-in regulator.
- 5.31.5. Engine must be equipped with heavy-duty 12-volt starting motors; thermal overload protected; Delco brand. NOTE: Starter cables must be run in continuous lengths from the batteries to the starter. Key starter switch must be provided in cab.
- 5.31.6. All electrical circuits must be protected by manual reset circuit breakers located in the cab. Circuit breakers must be installed in a weatherproof electrical panel, easily accessible without the use of tools. All breakers must be installed with each circuit identified by name. All wiring must be weatherproof, insulated, numbered, contained in a loom.
- 5.31.7. Two dedicated 20 ampere circuits must be provided in the circuit breaker panel to power/protect 2-way radios. Radios will be installed by the City.
- 5.31.8. Wiring installed in the undercarriage must be supported by insulated fasteners, spaced no further than 18" apart. All undercarriage wiring must be in continuous lengths with sufficient slack at termination points; no "butt" splices.
- 5.31.9. All wiring entrance holes to the cab must be protected with suitable grommets or bushings, and sealed with silicone caulk.
- 5.31.10. Auxiliary electrical items must be wired so as to become "live" only when the ignition switch is in the "on" position.
- 5.31.11. A master disconnect switch, located in cab, must be provided. Master disconnect must open main electrical circuit when engaged.
- 5.31.12. Electrical system must be designed and constructed to withstand prolonged exposure to deicing solvents such as potassium acetate without corroding.

#### 5.32. LIGHTING

- 5.32.1. All lighting on this vehicle must conform to FMVSS.
- 5.32.2. Two sealed beam headlights with high/low beam, and self-canceling fender mounted turn signals, must be provided. In addition, 2 headlights with high/low beam and integral turn signals must be mounted to the front outside corners of the cab at the leading edge.
- 5.32.3. Cab identification and marker lights must be flush mounted or low profile type.
- 5.32.4. Signal-Stat #900 turn signal and safety flasher controls (or controls with equal/superior amperage capacity) must be mounted to the steering column.
- 5.32.5. The rear of the vehicle must be equipped with 9" diameter lights. Two amber lights and two red lights must be mounted to each side of the vehicle rear. Each light must be wired separately to the junction box.

- 5.32.6. A Grote "loud-mouth" intermittent audible back-up alarm must be installed. This alarm must be integrally wired to the vehicle's reverse lights.
- 5.32.7. The vehicle must be equipped with one twin rotating amber beacon light. Beacon must be installed on the cab roof.
- 5.32.8. The rotating beacon light must be EMI shielded. The light must be filtered such that within the 100 MHz to 900 MHz frequency band, radio frequency interference (RFI) is less than 0.1 microvolt at a distance of one meter from the unit.
- 5.32.9. Two Perlux Model #200-T driving lamps must be installed at the front of the cab.
- 5.32.10. The cab must be equipped with 2 halogen lamp spotlights; one right, one left.
- 5.32.11. Two trap lights, J.W. Speaker Model 973-T, must be installed in the front of the cab.
- 5.32.12. One 6" interior dome light must be installed on the front center of the ceiling.
- 5.32.13. All light sockets (OEM and auxiliary lighting) must be lubricated with corrosion preventive dielectric grease.
- 5.32.14. The vehicle must be equipped with all lights and reflectors necessary to comply with ICC, State of Illinois and Federal Motor Vehicle Requirements.

#### 5.33. DRIVE LINE SYSTEM

- 5.33.1. The transmission must be an Allison 4500 RDS, four-speed automatic, with a low gear ratio of 4.70:1. Transmission must be supplied with the appropriate torque converter for this application. The manufacturer's rated input torque capacity must be not less than 110% of the maximum rated net torque output of engine. Shifting must be accomplished via an electronic shift control within easy reach of the operator. Light or medium duty transmissions are not acceptable.
- 5.33.2. Torque converter ratio must be determined in accordance with the requirements specified in the "OVERALL DESIGN" Section.
- 5.33.3. An adequately sized "Southwind" external oil cooler (oil to water) must be furnished and plumbed into the engine cooling system, unless such an installation would affect engine or transmission warranty coverage.
- 5.33.4. Transmission shift control must be electronic.
- 5.33.5. The front and rear axles must be powered through a heavy-duty two-speed transfer case. High/low range selection must be accomplished through a mechanical linkage to ensure positive shifting. The transfer case must have a torque transmission capacity exceeding the maximum torque developed by the engine and main transmission, and must be manufactured and approved by the chassis builder for the intended application.
- 5.33.6. The rear tandem drive system must incorporate an air actuated Driver Controlled Traction Lock (DCTL) system. An air actuated lock-up system must also be provided for the rear axles, per FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-20. The system must be controlled by means of a dash-mounted switch with warning light. The system must be designed to eliminate rear wheel slippage when encountering slippery and wet roads.
- 5.33.7. Propeller shafts must be Spicer 1710 series. Four "Gli-Cote" splines must be used on all steering and drive shafts.
- 5.33.8. The front axle must be of the drive/steer type, full floating, with a single reduction spiral bevel gear design, minimum 21,500 pound GAW hub and brake rating, capable of withstanding the loads of the unit being bid. 10" minimum ground clearance must be provided. The rear axle must be of the full floating, with a single reduction spiral bevel gear design, minimum 52,000 pound GVW hub and brake rating, capable of withstanding the loads of the unit being bid. 10" minimum ground clearance must be provided. A driver controlled traction differential must be provided in the rear axle.

5.33.9. Axle ratios must be determined by requirements stated in the "OVERALL DESIGN" Section.

#### 5.34. BRAKE SYSTEM

- 5.34.1. Vehicle must be equipped with a complete anti-lock air braking system, including a 6-sensor, 6-modulator ABS system, designed to meet all applicable requirements of the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards 121 (FMVSS).
- 5.34.2. The air compressor must have a minimum capacity of 13 CFM; Bendix/Westinghouse "Tu-Flo #550".
- 5.34.3. The system must be equipped with an air dryer with heating element.
- 5.34.4. The system must include a low pressure buzzer and all valves, gauges and switches necessary for maximum vehicle safety.
- 5.34.5. All brakes must be S-cam type. Lining sizes must be selected to meet or exceed the respective gross axle weight ratings (GAWR's).
- 5.34.6. All brakes must be equipped with automatic slack adjusters; Rockwell or Bendix brand.
- 5.34.7. A "Glad Hand" air inflator valve must be provided to facilitate re-charging of the brake system in emergency situations. Valve must be equipped with suitable dust shield. Location will be determined at the Pre-Construction Meeting.
- 5.34.8. All brakes must be provided with suitable dust shields, and all brake pins must be sprayed with "never seize" prior to assembly.
- 5.34.9. The parking brakes must be spring actuated, air released at the rear service brake air chambers. The air switch must be mounted within the cab and in easy reach of the operator.

#### 5.35. STEERING AND SUSPENSION

5.35.1. Steering must be Sheppard integral hydraulic power assist gear type. The steering gear must be rated for heavy-duty service. For safety, a mechanical linkage must be maintained between the operator's steering wheel and front axle, allowing manual steering in the event of a hydraulic or electrical system failure. Steering must be rated at a minimum of 21,500 pound capacity.

NOTE: Full hydraulic steering is unacceptable.

5.35.2. The unit must have alloy steel springs of the semi-elliptical type, with minimum 21,500 lb. front and minimum 52,000 lb. rear ratings. The front springs must be so designed and engineered as to provide reserve carrying support. The spring hangers, pins and supports must be heavy-duty to give long life. The pins must be of the grease type with heavy-duty bronze bushings.

#### 5.36. TIRES AND WHEELS

- 5.36.1. This unit must be equipped with proper sized wheels and tires for the GVW rating of the unit being bid. Single wheels must be furnished for the front and rear axles. The wheels must be of the steel disc type with a 11½" bolt circle.
- 5.36.2. All tires must be Michelin 395/85R20 XZL.
- 5.36.3. One spare tire/wheel (mounted) must be included with each unit purchased.

#### 5.37. CAB

5.37.1. The cab must be heavy duty, two-man type, 72" wide minimum. Cab must be fully insulated, with a heated windshield, curb visibility window in right hand door, full width rear windows and tinted safety glass throughout. Complete rustproofing must be provided on all inside metal surfaces less than 3/16" thick. Floor

mats or rubber / vinyl covering must be fastened securely to the cab floor, and must be easily removable for cleaning.

**NOTE:** The interior of cab must be fully insulated, including cab ceiling and walls with 1" thick perforated vinyl covered foam. The floor of the cab must be insulated with thermal-acoustical sound barrier floor mat. Acoustic insulation must limit noise level to 85dB as measured 6" from the driver's ear @ rated engine RPM.

- 5.37.2. Cab must be provided with the following interior equipment, accessories and instrumentation:
- 5.37.3. Bostrom 400RX driver and passenger seats, fully adjustable in the horizontal and vertical positions with mid back, air assist, arm rests, cloth covered, fixed lumbar, load adjustable. Seats must be furnished with 3 point type safety belts, with gray fabric upholstery;
- Back-lit (variable intensity) fuel gauge, air pressure gauges with warning light and buzzer, voltmeter, electronic speedometer, odometer and tachometer, water temperature gauge, oil pressure gauge (with warning light), engine coolant temperature gauge, transmission oil temperature gauge (with warning light) and oil pressure actuated hourmeter, installed in the cab dash, by the OEM. Indicator lights alone are not acceptable;

**NOTE:** All gauges must be the illuminated type, clustered about the steering column. All light switches must be of the heavy-duty rocker type. All critical switches must be identified by labels that are lighted. No switches, gauges or controls (with the exception of accessories with integral switches and/or controls) must be located above eye level.

- 5.37.5. Parking brake warning light;
- 5.37.6. Adjustable tilting, telescopic steering column and wheel;
- 5.37.7. Tinted sun visors, front;
- 5.37.8. Removable ashtray with cigarette lighter; heavy-duty fresh air heater and defroster with 3-speed fan motor; side glass defogger nozzles; full cab circulation, especially around the driver's feet; manufacturer's largest available regular production option for the chassis model proposed, 38,000 BTU capacity minimum;

**NOTE:** The combination of insulation and heater output must be sufficient to maintain an interior temperature of 50°F in an ambient temperature of -40°F.

- 5.37.9. Two caged defroster fans;
- 5.37.10. Heated West Coast type mirrors with remote control;
- 5.37.11. Electric variable speed wipers, with arctic blades, providing clear line of vision (windshield and side windows). The wipers must clear minimum 80% of windshield area.
- 5.37.12. Windshield washers with 6-quart minimum capacity plastic container;
- 5.37.13. Dual air horns with snow shields.
- 5.37.14. Ignition and door locks for all units purchased under these specifications must be keyed alike; 6 keys per unit. Keys must also match existing vehicles. (Contact Department of Fleet Management, Automotive Engineering Section for acceptable key codes.)
- 5.37.15. Spot light control handles must be installed in the cab, within easy reach of the operator.
- 5.37.16. Any/all controls required for operation of the transfer case, differential locks, etc. must be installed in the cab, within easy reach of the operator.
- 5.37.17. Door handle must be positioned for use without bending or stooping by an operator standing on the catwalk.

#### 5.38. ANTI-ICING / DE-ICING SYSTEM - GENERAL

- 5.38.1. The liquid spraying system must consist of a 4,000 U.S. gallon, stainless steel or fiberglass tank.
- The spraying system must be ground speed oriented by way of a microprocessor based control system, located in the cab. Control system must auto start and stop when vehicle speed is sensed so that the operator does not have to manually press and hold the flush switch. Power to the required components must be provided through a hydraulic system.
- 5.38.3. Deicing system must be designed and constructed to withstand prolonged exposure to deicing solvents such as potassium acetate without corroding.

#### 5.39. CONTROLS

- 5.39.1. A microprocessor based control system must be included for control of spraying applications regardless of vehicle speed or boom widths being utilized.
- 5.39.2. The control system must be capable of being calibrated for different size nozzles and application rates.
- 5.39.3. The spray boom must consist of nozzles capable of even coverage over the entire spray width.
- 5.39.4. All wiring must be enclosed in plastic molding, protected from the elements. Connectors must be weather sealed, and must be assembled using dielectric grease.

#### **5.40. LIGHTS**

- 5.40.1. The boom must incorporate three LED marker lights on each side. One light must be located near boom tip, providing for overall width verification at night.
- 5.40.2. Work lights must be provided to illuminate each side of the spray boom.
- 5.40.3. Two amber beacons must be provided, one on the cab roof and one on the rear top of the tank.
- 5.40.4. All lights must be controlled from within the cab by means of electric switches.

#### 5.41. SPRAY BOOM

- 5.41.1. The spray boom must be constructed of square or round tubing, of adequate strength to support typical forces experienced in mobile applications.
- 5.41.2. The boom must provide a 50' overall uniform spray pattern. Breakaway system must be included for boom fold back at the center section in the event of striking an obstruction. The breakaway system must have a variably adjustable tensioning mechanism.
- 5.41.3. To prevent the possibility of chemicals dripping onto the operator during ingress/egress, the extending of the stowed boom nozzles over the driver's side entrance is prohibited.
- 5.41.4. Both wings must be folded along side of vehicle to facilitate ease of storing or spraying in close areas.
- 5.41.5. The spray boom must be rear mounted with the following operations controlled from the operator's control panel:
  - 1. Overall Boom Height Adjustment (Down to 20")
  - 2. Left Wing Fold Out/In
  - 3. Right Wing Fold Out/In
  - Left Boom Raise/Lower

5. Right Boom Raise/Lower

#### 5.42. SPRAY SELECTION SYSTEM

- 5.42.1. Nozzles must be sized to provide adequate application rate, and must be designed to prevent drifting in high winds.
- 5.42.2. The spray nozzles must be capable of even coverage over the entire spray width, with a nozzle height of 20" to 24" above ground plane.
- 5.42.3. Nozzles must be adjustable from fan style to streamer style.
- 5.42.4. Check valves must be located on each nozzle to eliminate dripping of material when nozzles are shut off.
- 5.42.5. Spray system must be plumbed in a manner allowing for even distribution of liquid product to all portions of the spray boom. Spray boom plumbing must utilize flush face fittings where possible to minimize leaking. Nozzles must be rigidly mounted to eliminate damage from vibration and friction wear.

#### 5.43. HYDRAULIC SYSTEM

- 5.43.1. The hydraulic system must be capable of remote electronic operation. Hydraulic pump system must be front live mounted off the crankshaft of the engine.
- 5.43.2. The pump must be protected under a shield, located across the front frame extensions. All fittings and hydraulic hoses must have a pressure burst rating of at least four times that of the relief settings of the hydraulic system. All hoses must be protected against vibration, exhaust heat, friction and wear.
- 5.43.3. Adequate reservoir sizing must allow for dwell time of the hydraulic fluid during normal operating conditions. Reservoir must be mounted to allow for adequate head pressure to the inlet of the pump, eliminating potential for startup cavitation of the hydraulic pump system.
- 5.43.4. Filtration of a minimum of 10 micron absolute must be incorporated into the hydraulic system. The filter head must include a back pressure sight indicator.
- 5.43.5. The hydraulic pump and motor must be of a straight piston design. A variable speed pump equipped with a pressure-compensating load sensing system must be sized to allow for adequate operation of all functions of the deicing system. The motor must be sized to provide maximum operation of the liquid product pump. The pump must be on demand at all times, providing for flow and pressure when needed by the operator.
- 5.43.6. Pressure relief settings must be preset to allow for maximum performance, without degrading life of the hydraulic system.
- 5.43.7. The hydraulic valves required for spray boom and pump operation must be mounted inside a weather sealed enclosure.
- 5.43.8. Manual overrides must be provided on each valve for backup operation. Spray boom valves must be clearly marked for individual operation and troubleshooting. The valving controlling the liquid product pump must be integral to the ground oriented spray control system. This valving must allow for functioning of all pumping operations.
- 5.43.9. Speed control of the cylinders must be allowed by means of flow control designed into the hydraulic system.

#### 5.44. PRODUCT PUMP

- 5.44.1. The liquid pump must be capable of 600 GPM @ 50 PSI. Pump station plumbing must be constructed of a minimum of 3" 304 stainless steel fittings and hose. All piping and hose must be protected against vibration, truck exhaust heat, friction and wear.
- 5.44.2. Product pump must be lower than tank outlet.

- 5.44.3. All product valving must consist of quick-turn butterfly valves. Spray boom section shutoff must be of a butterfly design, with cab operated hydraulic rotary actuators. The hydraulic valving must be of solenoid design, mounted outside the cab in a weatherproof enclosure and be controlled by means of switches located on the control panel.
- 5.44.4. Drainage valves must be installed in all low points for full drainage of the liquid plumbing system.
- 5.44.5. Pump housing must be of a cast iron construction with impeller design of a material compatible with deicing chemicals.
- 5.44.6. Centrifugal pump must be equipped with adequate coupling to allow for transfer of energy from the hydraulic motor to the liquid pump without adverse affects. The pump must be equipped with a drain valve to allow for complete drainage of the pump housing.
- 5.44.7. A pressure manifold must be included in the plumbing system. This manifold must be of welded 304 stainless steel, mounted integral to the street side pumping station. Cross sectional flow passages must be equal to 3" piping.
- 5.44.8. All connections and valves must be colored coded for easy recognition and operation. Valving along with design of manifold must allow for the following operations:
  - 1. Spraying
  - 2. Spraying w/ Sparging
  - 3. Load w/out Utilizing Centrifugal Pump
  - 4. Load w/Utilizing Centrifugal Pump
  - 5. Unload w/out Utilizing Centrifugal Pump
  - 6. Unload w/Utilizing Centrifugal Pump
  - 7. Transfer of Liquids Between Remote Locations (Pumping Station)
- 5.44.9. All functions must be clearly indicated on a decal.
- 5.44.10. All fittings used in the assembly of this runway deicer must be 304 Stainless Steel, schedule 40, or glass reinforced polypropylene. All Cam Lock fittings used on the pumping station must incorporate only 304 Stainless Steel caps and fittings. The use of dissimilar materials is not allowed. The runway deicer must incorporate flush face gasket type fittings on the boom plumbing to prevent leaks and the ease of maintenance accessibility. All components not available with flush face connections must be sealed with a Loc-tite thread sealer that is compatible with deicing chemicals.
- 5.44.11. Bottom loading at O'Hare Tank Farm will require "OPW" model 1674-AN-0300 "Dry Break". Contact(773) 686-2394 to view Tank Farm system.

#### 5.45. TANK CONFIGURATION AND MOUNTING

- 5.45.1. The product tank must be constructed of 10 Gauge minimum thickness 304 stainless steel with dished & flanged 10 Gauge heads and three 10 Gauge baffles, or baffled fiberglass construction.
- 5.45.2. The sump must be stainless steel, full length. Sump must be sloped to allow for full drainage and easy cleanout of the product tank.
- 5.45.3. The manhole must consist of a low profile, 20" Tiona manhole with a 10" filler cap and quick release clamping system. A 3" overflow vent pipe must be installed in the manhole collar downward thru tank bottom.
- 5.45.4. Two 12 Gauge full-length overturn flashing rails must be installed on top of the tank with a 1.5" drain front and rear.
- 5.45.5. Tank must also have two 3" full couplings in the front bulkhead 4" up and 6" curbside from bottom and 4" down and 6" from curbside.

- 5.45.6. A sight gage must be located on the front of the tank, 12" from the bulkhead, street side, with 100-gallon interval markings.
- 5.45.7. A street side ladder must be mounted at the front corner of the product tank, and a full length "catwalk" must be provided. The catwalk will be manufactured out of a non-slip design metal for utmost safety. Grip strut, non-slip design steps must be incorporated into each riser of the ladder, and incorporate a catwalk on top of tank.
- 5.45.8. Tank should be mounted with V-type brackets that tie tank sills to frame of truck with spring loaded bolts to allow movement between frame and tank.

#### 5.46. CHASSIS DECALS

5.46.1. All axles, transfer case, transmission and reservoir tanks must be tagged, listing the type of lubricant. Fuel, power steering, hydraulic and transmission checking points must be marked by painted indicators.

#### 5.47. PAINTING, RUSTPROOFING AND MARKINGS

- 5.47.1. All metal surfaces must be properly prepared for painting to insure removal of any/all surface rust, welding slag, soot, dirt, grease and wax.
- 5.47.2. The complete vehicle must be painted with 1 coat of metal primer.
- 5.47.3. The entire unit, including the cab, bumper, chassis frame, pump, wheels, body, deicer tank, hydraulic tank, booms, etc., must be sprayed or powder coated with FAA approved Chrome Yellow. Hood must be painted "Non-Glare" Flat Black.
- 5.47.4. Pressure sensitive reflective sheeting must be applied to the right, left and rear sides of the vehicle. The sheeting must be 3M brand "Scotchlite Series #980 Diamond Grade". Sheeting to be alternating red and white pattern, 4" in height, applied along the full length and width of the unit.
- 5.47.5. The complete vehicle (moldings, fenders, doors, panel wells, underside of cab floor, interior cab floor, etc.) must be treated with Class 1 rustproofing protection.
- 5.47.6. Reflective plastic flags must be mounted on rear corners.

#### 5.48. CHASSIS RELATED EQUIPMENT

- 5.48.1. The chassis must have a heavy-duty channel type front bumper, minimum 12" depth and 90" width to protect the engine, radiator and engine cowling.
- 5.48.2. The chassis must be designed to permit easy and safe mounting and dismounting of unit for operator and service personnel. All sheet metal, cowling, steps and fenders must be free of sharp edges and protrusions.
- 5.48.3. Platforms and walkways, constructed from reinforced "grip strut" grating material must be installed to cover any/all open deck areas to maximize safety and access to above-frame components. Grab bars, steps and ladders must be installed as required for safe entry and egress by personnel.
- 5.48.4. All sheet metal for cowling, shrouds and fenders must include ample supports and bracing to prevent distortion or cracking.
- 5.48.5. Tow hooks, described elsewhere in this document, must be installed in locations that provide adequate strength for towing and/or lifting of the unit with minimal frame distortion.

#### 5.49. EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES

5.49.1. The Contractor must provide quotes on the Proposal Page for the following equipment and accessories. Quotes must include installation costs. The City will select these items when required.

- 5.49.2. Pricing must be a non-negative value. Quotes showing a credit or "no charge" will be assigned a price value of \$0 for canvassing and contract award purposes.
- 5.49.3. The following equipment and accessories must be designed and constructed for use with the unit as specified, and be furnished complete with all necessary peripheral items required for proper/safe operation.

#### 5.50. BID LINE #2: 75' FOLDING SPRAY BOOMS

5.50.1. Provide and install minimum 75' folding spray booms in lieu of 50' booms specified.

#### 5.51. BID LINE #3: SIDE PLATE SNOW PLOW HITCH

Provide and install a side plate snow plow hitch with integral deicer hydraulic system for in-cab control to raise/lower/reverse plow. Heavy front frame hitch of modular design must allow the cab hood to tilt forward a sufficient amount to provide engine access. Side plates must transmit plowing forces directly to the truck frame side rails. The side plates must be custom fitted 5/8" steel plate of proper length and construction for heavy duty service, and must provide adequate clearance for steering mechanisms and spring suspensions. Side plate mounting angles or plates must mount flush to truck frame for maximum strength. Pipe spacers are not acceptable. The hitch must be designed so that the lift arm and hydraulic ram are capable of collapsing and pinning to a stowed position when the plow is not in use. The lift arm must be adjustable in length, manufactured from square tubing. The attachment of the truck hitch to the truck chassis must be designed to evenly transmit the snowplow load to the truck frame under continuous severe service. Grade 8 cap screws must be used throughout. The hydraulic lift ram must be 3½" in diameter, double acting design, with a hard chrome plated piston rod. Plow hitch must attach to plow assembly with pin style 31" plow attachment.

#### 5.52. BID LINE #4: ELECTRIC REWIND HOSE REEL

5.52.1. Provide and install an electric rewind hose reel with 100' of ¾" hose and a spray wand. Bracket must contain spray wand, located so driver of vehicle will not need to exit cab to operate.

#### 5.53. BID LINE #5: FLUSHER SYSTEM

Provide and install a flusher system, consisting of 4 aluminum fan type nozzles, 1 on each front corner and 1 on each side midship, with a 115° flat pattern. Nozzles must be adjustable for swath. Flusher must be designed to adjust swath from straight forward to a 45° away from vehicle. This adjustment must be controllable from inside the cab while moving and operating flusher system. Shut-offs for flusher must also be controllable from inside the cab, and divide flusher system into 2 segments which may be operated independently or at the same time. System must be capable of 50 GPM @ 50 PSI at all 4 nozzles at the same time.

#### 5.54. BID LINE #6: RADIO EQUIPMENT

- 5.54.1. Furnish and deliver FOB City of Chicago, Department of Aviation, the below listed radio equipment, complete and ready for installation, with each unit. All necessary maintenance training, technical assistance and related components / materials must also be supplied with the radios.
- Tower/Ground radio: ICOM Model # IC-A200/210 with vehicle mount. Radio must be provided with a speaker, microphone, permanent rooftop antenna, 8 W of power, and all necessary cabling, wiring and accessories for a fully functional installation. Unit must be backlit, with all Controls located on the front panel.B) Verilator: EMR Corporation, Model # 7530/3R, Frequency 481.1125 MHz
- 5.54.3. Snow Radio (Mobile Radio): Motorola XTL5000, 800 MHz, 30 W of power, with Smartnet Trucking, Digital Capable & DES Encryption, External Speaker, Microphone and Antenna
- Headsets: Qty. 2 "David Clark" headsets with push to talk, U3800 Master Station, 2 Dual Radio Headset interfaces and all radio interface cords and power cables

NOTE: Installation of the radio equipment will be performed by Department of Aviation Personnel.

### 5.55. BID LINE #7: LAPTOP COMPUTER DIAGNOSTIC SYSTEM, SOFTWARE, CABLES AND CONNECTORS

5.55.1. Bidder must provide separate pricing on the Proposal Pages for a ruggedized, comprehensive laptop computer diagnostic system, complete with laptop computer, software, cables and connectors, capable of linkup to the apparatus to diagnose faults or problems throughout the apparatus, including but not limited to: Engine (both propulsion and auxiliary, if so equipped), Anti-Lock Braking System, Transmission, Multiplex system and any other apparatus systems which have troubleshooting capabilities. Package must contain all software, cables and connectors necessary to connect the system to the apparatus in order to perform diagnostic and troubleshooting functions. One year pre-paid subscriptions to all pay per use systems must be included with this package. The City will select this equipment as needed on a per order basis.

#### 5.56. BID LINE #8: AUXILIARY POWER UNIT

5.56.1. Units ordered with bid line #3 must be equipped with an Auxiliary Power Unit (APU). A switch must be installed in the cab to activate the APU. Upon starting the vehicle engine, the APU must automatically disengage. The APU must be wired to the master power switch of the chassis, so that power to the APU is cut off when the master switch is in the "OFF" position.

The following devices must be powered by the APU:

- All chassis lighting, interior and exterior;
- All communication radios;
- Cab Heater:
- Engine coolant heater;
- Circulating coolant pump (pump must be provided with APU).
- 5.56.2. The APU must produce sufficient power to run all listed devices for a minimum of 4 hours before automatically starting the chassis engine to recharge.

#### 5.57. BID LINE #9: SAFE LIGHT PACKAGE

- 5.57.1. Units ordered with bid line #9 must be equipped with back lit vehicle identification signs utilizing electroluminescent technology. Signs must be installed at each side and the rear of the vehicle. A 12V DC inverter and all mounting hardware, brackets, wiring, and installation must be included.
- 5.57.2. Sign must be 21" x 13", with a lighted area of 9" x 17". Brightness must be a minimum of 50 foot candles. Color must be blue/green.

#### 5.58. PARTS AND REPAIR SERVICES

This contract is for the purchase, maintenance and repair of the vehicle(s) specified, including non-warranty repairs. All maintenance and repairs are to be performed at Contractor's shop or at the Contractor's subcontractor shop, unless otherwise directed by DFM; pricing for such repairs shall be as stated in the specifications, and the bid pages.

#### 5.59. REPAIR AND SERVICE CENTER QUALIFICATIONS

- 5.59.1. The Contractor or an authorized subcontractor must, at the time of bid submission, provide resources capable of servicing City owned equipment specifically listed within these Proposal Pages, as follows:
- 5.59.2. The Contractor or authorized subcontractor must operate an established automotive, truck or equipment service center located within approximately 30 road miles of Fleet Management's facility at O'Hare Airport, 10,000 W Montrose Ave., Chicago, IL 60666. For warranty work, all subcontractors must be manufacturer's authorized repair facilities. For non-warranty work, all subcontractors must be ASAE certified.

- 5.59.3. The Contractor of an authorized subcontractor must maintain during the term of this contract and any extension of it an adequate staff of competent personnel that are fully equipped, licensed as appropriate, available as needed, qualified and assigned to perform the contracted services.
- 5.59.4. All repairs performed under this contract must be performed by qualified technicians thoroughly trained and certified by an appropriate nationally recognized institution or organization. Repair services will be performed in a workmanlike manner; using industry accepted practices and established manufacturer procedures.
- 5.59.5. Contractor or an authorized subcontractor must possess the ability to transfer product warranties to the City of Chicago, if applicable.
- The City of Chicago reserves the right to inspect any facility proposed before contract award and during the term of the contract to ensure that it meets the stated requirements. Certifications and other documents verifying compliance with requirements are to be submitted with the bid. The Contractor's compliance with these requirements will be determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, whose decision will be binding.

#### 5.60. SERVICE AND REPAIRS OF MAJOR COMPONENTS AND SUBSYSTEMS

The City reserves the right to direct service and/or repair work to the Contractor for any major component or sub-system of a vehicle/unit (engine, transmission, hydraulics, etc.) for which the Contractor or subcontractor is qualified to service, regardless of the make of the vehicle/unit. Such service/repairs are to be billed at the contracted hourly rate.

#### 5.61. INVENTORY/LEAD TIME

- The Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor must maintain an inventory of sufficient diversity and quantity as to ensure the delivery of any parts which are required for repairs of vehicles or equipment within seventy-two (72) hours after receipt of a City department's order. In lieu of the inventory, the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor must be able to arrange such prompt delivery.
- 5.61.2. In addition, any vehicles delivered to the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor for repair services must be returned to the City within three (3) business days, unless otherwise authorized by the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or his authorized representative.
- Repeated failures of the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor to meet the stated delivery requirements may be used by the City as grounds for the termination of this contract, and may further affect the Contractor's eligibility for future contract awards.
- 5.61.4. The Contractor's compliance with these requirements will be determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, whose decision will be binding.

#### 5.62. TURN AROUND TIME

- 5.62.1. Any vehicle which has been delivered to the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor for repairs will be returned within three (3) business days, unless otherwise authorized by the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or an authorized representative.
- The Contractor will expedite repairs, to the equipment as required by the Department of Fleet Management in order to meet any reasonable time frames set forth by the Department of Fleet Management. If there are delays due to a lack of parts, insufficient manpower or other circumstances, then the Contractor will notify the Department of Fleet Management immediately of the delay.

#### 5.63. IRREPARABLE EQUIPMENT

5.63.1. In the event that the vehicle is irreparable, the Contractor will provide a written explanation of the problems and the Department of Fleet Management will take necessary action with regard to the disposition of the vehicle.

#### 5.64. WORK ITEMS

- 5.64.1. Charges for services will be performed by the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor only after receipt of an estimate approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or the Commissioner's authorized representative.
- 5.64.2. Estimates for parts and labor must be based on industry-recognized third party data, available from tractor-trailer.net, mitchellsupport.com, or another recognized third party estimating process, for types of equipment and repairs where such data are available.
- In such cases the Contractor will submit to the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or the Commissioner's authorized representative an estimate upon receipt of the vehicle as identified in Repair proposals. The Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or the Commissioner's authorized representative will either approve or disapprove of the estimate.
- 5.64.4. Where the estimate is approved, the Contractor or an Authorized Subcontractor will proceed with and complete the work and will invoice the Department of Fleet Management either in the amount of the original estimate, or the actual cost of parts and labor provided to complete the repair, whichever amount is lowest.
- 5.64.5. If the estimate is disapproved, the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or the Commissioner's authorized representative may request a revised estimate from the Contractor, and/or have the vehicle removed from the Contractor's or authorized subcontractor's shop. The City reserves the right to furnish Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor with the parts necessary for the required repairs. If the parts are provided by the City, the Contractor agrees to install any City-furnished parts at the labor rates provided in the contract, furnish the warranty required by the contract for the labor performed, and adjust the estimate for the repairs accordingly.
- Where it is found by the Chief Procurement Officer that the work performed is not consistent with industry standard and market prices, the City reserves the right to order such repair work to be performed by other Contractors. The City maintains the right to remove from the premises of the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor any vehicle delivered for repair estimates.

#### 5.65. BID LINE #10: PARTS

- 5.65.1. Parts, accessories, assemblies and/or components furnished under this contract furnished must be compatible and interchangeable with vehicles and equipment purchased under this Contract.
- Where the use of non-O.E.M. (generic) parts and/or "salvaged" parts will be used only when approved by the Department of Fleet Management. Parts will be furnished and billed at the mark-up rate established on the Proposal Pages. The Contractor will furnish documentation (manufacturer's retail price list, manufacturer's invoice or print of manufacturer's list price, etc.) to substantiate the charges; this documentation will accompany all invoices.
- 5.65.3. Fabricated parts furnished by the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor under this contract will conform to the specifications and tolerances of the original equipment manufacturer.

#### 5.66. REPAIR ESTIMATE

- 5.66.1. Upon receipt of Vendor Estimate Form (VEF) from the Department of Fleet Management's Commissioner or authorized representative, the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor must inspect the vehicle and complete and return the VEF. The VEF must include, but is not limited to the following information:
  - 1. Purchase order (Contract) number
  - 2. Name and phone number of City agent
  - 3. City unit number of Vehicle
  - 4. Detailed description of the problem and necessary repair needed
  - 5. Parts cost breakdown
  - 6. Labor cost breakdown
  - 7. Estimated time required to complete repairs, etc

- 8. Anticipated completion date
- 9. Name and signature of the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor's employees performing the estimate
- 5.66.2. The Contractor, upon receipt of an approved VEF and a purchase order blanket release from the Department of Fleet Management, can proceed with repairs.
- 5.66.3. The City reserves the right to add or delete various models and types of equipment during the term of the contract.

#### 5.67. DIAGNOSTIC TESTING FEES

5.67.1. Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor must request authorization from the Department of Fleet Management to proceed with diagnostic testing. Upon approval, all diagnostic tests must be charged at the contracted labor rate, with no additional charges for the use of diagnostic equipment.

#### 5.68. ACCEPTANCE OF PARTS AND REPAIRED EQUIPMENT

5.68.1. It is understood and agreed by the parties to this contract that any acceptance or inspection by the City of any part or repaired equipment provided pursuant to the terms and conditions of this contract does not constitute a waiver of these terms and conditions, and in no way relieves the Contractor of its obligation to comply with the terms and conditions of this contract, including any standard of performance and warranty requirement stated herein.

#### 5.69. PRIORITY SERVICE

- The Contractor and its subcontractors understand that the vehicles covered under this specification are critical to the City's Fleet operations. Therefore, the Contractor will give priority service to the City and proceed with authorized work in an expeditious manner to ensure that all work is completed within the agreed upon schedule and to ensure that vehicle downtime is kept to a minimum.
- 5.69.2. The City requires the Contractor to return calls for service within 24 hours.

## 5.70. BID LINE #11: LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, DURING REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS (SERVICE HOURS)

5.70.1. The unit cost for regular repair service labor performed at the location(s) specified by the Contractor will be billed as regular time, hourly rate, Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 pm., excluding Holidays, as quoted on the Proposal Page(s), unless the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor's regular service hours are longer, then the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor's regular service hours will apply.

## 5.71. BID LINE #12: LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, DURING NON-REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS (EMERGENCY REPAIR).

- 5.71.1. In the event of an emergency (i.e. major snowstorm, etc.), the Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor must make available its facilities and services seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours per day and must be prepared to respond to Emergency Repair Service calls.
- 5.71.2. The Contractor will be notified by the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or his authorized representative when emergency service is required.
- 5.71.3. The Contractor or Authorized Subcontractor must not perform any work outside the regular working hours without the prior authorization from the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or his authorized representative.
- 5.71.4. The labor rates must include any and all peripheral costs.

#### 5.72. BID LINE #13: TRANSPORTATION OF EQUIPMENT FOR SERVICE

5.72.1. The cost for transporting a vehicle purchased under this contract each way for service between a City of Chicago location and a Contractor's (or authorized Subcontractor's) location must include all peripheral costs, including but not limited to: providing a properly licensed driver or operator, any necessary tow or transport vehicle, and paying for all necessary tolls and permits.

#### 5.73. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- 5.73.1. The Contractor must provide records of all vehicles serviced.
- 5.73.2. The Contractor must generate a quarterly report of all transactions with the City of Chicago, Department of Fleet Management. The report must be listed by City unit number, invoice numbers, purchase order number, date of service, nature of service performed, hours of service performed, detailed description of parts ordered with the repair services (catalog and part number).
- 5.73.3. Copies of invoices for parts may be requested at any time and must be provided within three (3) Business Days of the request. A faxed copy will initially be accepted, however if deemed necessary; the original must be produced for verification purposes.

#### 5.74. RISK OF LOSS FOR EQUIPMENT

- 5.74.1. Contractor must assume full responsibility for damage to City owned vehicles, parts, equipment or accessories by accident or any loss by fire or theft of these vehicles while they are in his custody.
- 5.74.2. The Contractor must provide protection for all uncompleted work under this contract until the work has been completed and accepted by the Department of Fleet Management.
- 5.74.3. The Contractor will be responsible for and must repair any damaged vehicles where such work is directly due to services performed under this contract, or where such damage is the result of the negligence, or carelessness on the part of the contractor/employees. The contractor must first immediately notify the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or his authorized representative regarding the nature and extent of the damages prior to making any such necessary repairs.

#### 5.75. STATEMENT OF LIABILITIES

- 5.75.1. No contract(s) will be awarded to bidder(s) who owes money to the City of Chicago. Upon request, bidders must submit a Statement of Liabilities issued by the Chicago Department of Revenue showing zero liabilities. Contractor must remain current and in good standing with respect to any and all obligations to the City throughout the term of the contract, including any extensions, modifications and/or amendments.
- 5.75.2. The Chicago Department of Revenue can be reached at 312-744-0801.

#### 5.76. WORK IN PROGRESS

Work in progress at the termination date of the contract will be completed by the Contractor in the most expedient method available. In no event will the Contractor vacate his/her obligations under this agreement until all work issued to him/her prior to the expiration of the Contract has been completed and accepted by the Commissioner of the Department of Fleet Management or his authorized representative.

Specification Number 89430A Runway Deicer Trucks, Page 83 of 111

6.

**PROPOSAL PAGES** 

# Catalog RFQ - No Group Lines City of Chicago PROPOSAL PAGES

RFQ Header Information

Please Respond By 4/29/2011

RFQ Number 3663

Ship To Location 040- ADMIN

Your Quote is Effective as of 4/29/2011

Special Instructions

**RFQ Description RUNWAY DEICER TRUCKS** 

For More Information Please Contact AHMAD NAYAMUTH

RFQ Status Active

312-744-9761

Bid/Proposal pricing for all commodity and/or service line items must be based on the standard unit of measure indicated below. Pricing on alternate units of measure may not be accepted. Unit costs must be limited to three decimal places. Each quote must be signed and unit price, extended price and total price must be typed or written in ink.

Quotes on "or equal" items must be identified as "alternate" to specified item on the comment line. If quoting an alternate, indicate manufacturer name, model/part/catalog number and attach descriptive literature. Alternate items may not be accepted. Any exceptions to items specified or other terms must be clearly indicated on the bid.

# RFQ Header Details

Contract Type VEHICLES/HEAVY EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL)

Target Market NO

Advertise Date 4/4/2011

**Procurement Type BID** 

Specification 89430A

**Bid Deposit Required NO** 

WEB BID Edit Rules ALL

Compliance Officer

Compliance Type Description

	Percentage Type Desc	Required %
Minority Owned Business Enterprise	Target Percentage Rate	25.00 %
Women Owned Business Enterprise	Target Percentage Rate	2.00 %

City of Chicago Catalog RFQ - No Group Lines

			Т		Ī		Ī	T .	T		T	1	T -
Comments													
Catalog # / ID, Date and Mfr	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)		(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)
Extended Price	w>	<b>S</b>	s.	u,	<b>S</b>	69		s	42	·			
Discount or Markup %	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)		(N/A)	(N/A)	(N/A)
Price									. 1	(N/A)			
Estimated Usage	20	4	2	4 \$	10	10	4 •	<b>~</b>	₩	N) 000009 \$	4000	1000	\$ 200
NOM	Each	Each	Each	Each	Each	Each	Each	Each	Each	Mark Up	Hour	Hour	Each
Commodity Desc	TRUCKS, CAB / CHASSIS - RUNWAY DEICER TRUCK	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - 75 FT. FOLDING SPRAY BOOMS	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES SIDE PLATE SNOW PLOW HITCH	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - ELECTRIC REWIND HOSE REEL	TRUCKS, CABICHASSIS UPGRADES - FLUSHER SYSTEM	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - RADIO EQUIPMENT	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - LAPTOP COMPUTER DIAGNOSTIC SYSTEM, SOFTWARE, CABLES AND CONNECTORS	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - AUXILIARY POWER UNIT	TRUCKS, CAB/CHASSIS UPGRADES - SAFE LIGHT PACKAGE	PARTS, RUNWAY DEICER TRUCK, MARKUP OVER COST (MUST NOT EXCEED 7%)	VEHICLE REPAIRS - LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS	VEHICLE REPAIRS - LABOR TO PERFORM MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR SERVICES IN CONTRACTOR'S SHOP, NON-REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS	VEHICLE TOWING - DRIVE, TOW OR TRANSPORT VEHICLES OR TRUIDMENT BETWEEN CITY FACILITY AND CONTRACTOR'S SHOP (EACH WAY)
Category	07054	07054	07054	07054	07054	07054	07054	07054	07054	06099.82	92847	92847	06896
tem	0705442020	0705441100	0705441114	0705441104	0705441106	0705441108	0705441110	0705441102	0705441112	06099.82	9284757300	9284757301	9689093105
Line Type	Spoogs	Goods	Goods	Goods	Goods	Goods	Goods	Goods	Spoogs	Catalog Line	Work Services	Work Services	Work Services
S Lie	-	2	3	4	2	9	7	æ	6	10	<del>-</del>	12	13

Spec# 89430A Page 2 of 2

Total Price \$

#### 7. BID DATA PAGES

Bidder is required to complete the appropriate information for the Runway Deicer Trucks proposed herein, on the bid data pages. Failure to fill out all of the information requested may, at the discretion of the Chief Procurement Officer, result in the bidder being deemed non-responsive. The City will use the information contained in the bid data sheets, and elsewhere in the bid, to evaluate the responsiveness of the bidder.

#### NOTE: WHERE ITEM IS NOT APPLICABLE, INDICATE WITH "N/A".

7.1.	PERSON TO CONTACT REGARDING THIS BID							
	NAME: P	HONE: _						
	TITLE: F							
	COMPANY: E							
	ADDRESS:							
<b>7.2.</b>	MAKES AND MODELS PROPOSED:							
	Bid Line #1:							
	Bid Line #2:							
	Bid Line #3:							
	Bid Line #4:							
	Bid Line #5:							
	Bid Line #6:							
	Bid Line #7:							
	Bid Line #8:							
	Bid Line #9:							
7.3.	MANUFACTURER, MANUFACTURER'S DISTRIBUTOR/SE	RVICE RE	EPRESENTA	ATIVE				
	INDICATE IF YOU ARE:							
	MANUFACTURER  MANUFACTURER'S EXCLUSIVE DISTRIBUTOR*  MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZED DISTRIBUTOR*  MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZED SERVICE REPRESEN	ITATIVE*	YES: YES: YES:	NO: NO:				

<sup>\*</sup> If an exclusive or authorized manufacturer's distributor, manufacture's service representative, or manufacturer's authorized service representative; bidder is to provide the name, address and phone number of manufacturer, and written documentation from the manufacturer verifying status, with the bid.

#### 7.4. LICENSED NEW VEHICLE DEALER **INDICATE IF YOU ARE:** LICENSED NEW VEHICLE DEALER \*\* YES: NO: \*\* If a licensed new vehicle dealer, bidder is to provide a copy of their current Registration for Authority to Deal in Vehicles, as issued by the Illinois Secretary of State, with the bid. 7.5. **WARRANTY** At a minimum, the specified unit(s) and all mounted/furnished equipment must be warranted against defective design, material or workmanship to the full extent of the respective Original Equipment Manufacturer's standard published warranty. The bidder will indicate, below, the length of warranty coverage offered for each item and/or components furnished under this specification. In the event of conflict between the warranty information specified by the Contractor and the respective Original Equipment Manufacturers standard warranty, the warranties deemed most advantageous to the City will control. Component/Feature Minimum Acceptable Coverage **Proposed Coverage** Complete Base Unit: Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor Engine: Drivetrain: Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor Frame: Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor Suspension: Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor Chassis Rust-through: Full 5 years/60,000 miles parts & labor Body Full 3 years/36,000 miles parts & labor

7.6.	TRAINING OFFERED:
7.7.	LOCATION OF REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE SHOP(S)

#### 7.8. REFERENCES:

Bidder must be in the business of truck dealership and demonstrate sufficient capacity to furnish the Runway Deicer Trucks as specified herein. Therefore, upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer or authorized representative, the Bidder, must submit a listing of previous and current contracts similar in size and scope as the required services. At a minimum, the list must include the following information:

1.	COMPANY:
	ADDRESS:
	CONTACT:
	CONTACT PHONE ()
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
	DATE(S) WORK PERFORMED:
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WORK: \$
_	COMPANY
2.	COMPANY:
	ADDRESS:
	CONTACT PHONE
	CONTACT PHONE ()
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
	DATE(S) WORK PERFORMED:
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WORK: \$
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WORK.
3.	COMPANY:
	ADDRESS:
	CONTACT:
	CONTACT PHONE ()
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
	DATE(S) WORK PERFORMED:
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WORK: \$
4	COMPANY:
••	ADDRESS:
	CONTACT:
	CONTACT PHONE (_)
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK
	DATE(S) WORK PERFORMED:
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WORK: \$

5.	COMPANY:	
	ADDRESS:	
	CONTACT:	
		()
	DESCRIPTION OF WOR	K:
	DATE(S) WORK PERFO	RMED:
	DOLLAR VALUE OF WO	RK:\$
		revious clients, including the City of Chicago, or any available sources, relevants record of past performance.
The	e Bidder's failure to furnisl	the above information, upon request, will result in the disqualification of the Bidder.
CC	OMMENTS, IF ANY, TO	PROVISION(S) OF THE GENERAL CONDITIONS:
Se	ction No.:	Description:
Se	ction No.:	Description:
	CHOIT NO	Description.
CC	OMMENTS, IF ANY, TO	PROVISION(S) OF THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
Se	ction No.:	Description:
C-	ation No.	Description
Se	Ction No.:	Description:

#### 7.11. COMMENTS, IF ANY, TO PROVISION(S) OF THE DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS:

Section No.:	Description:_	
Section No.:	Description:_	
FRAME		
GENERAL: A) B) C) D) RATINGS: A) B) C)	SIDERAIL TYPE SIDERAIL SECTION REINFORCEMENT TYPE REINFORCEMENT SECTION  SECTION MODULUS YIELD STRENGTH (PSI) RBM	XX
ENGINE		
GENERAL: A) B) C) D) E)	MAKE MODEL CYLINDERS DISPLACEMENT (CID / L) ASPIRATION TYPE	
A) B) C) D) E)	FG'S. PUBLISHED):  MAX SAE GROSS HP  MAX SAE NET HP  MAX SAE GROSS TORQUE  MAX SAE NET TORQUE  GOVERNED SPEED	@RPM @RPM @RPM RPM
FILTRATION A) B) C) D)	: AIR FILTER TYPE FUEL FILTER QTY/TYPE OIL FILTER TYPE / CAPACITY BYPASS FILTER TYPE	W/RESTRICTION GAGE?
COOLING: A) B) C)	SYSTEM CAPACITY (GAL) RADIATOR FRONTAL AREA (in2) RADIATOR FINS/INCH	
EXHAUST (C A) B) C)	check One): HORIZONTAL VERTICAL, SHIELDED VERTICAL, UNSHIELDED	

#### **GENERAL:** A) MAKE B) MODEL C) **SPEEDS** MAX. INPUT TORQUE RATING D) E) MAX. INPUT HP RATING RATIOS: 1ST GEAR \_\_\_\_\_\_\_:1 2ND GEAR \_\_\_\_\_\_:1 3RD GEAR \_\_\_\_\_ :1 4TH GEAR :1 5TH GEAR :1 6TH GEAR :1 7TH GEAR \_\_\_\_\_ :1 REVERSE \_\_\_\_\_ :1 7.15. CLUTCH **GENERAL**: MAKE A) B) MODEL C) SIZE DISC MATERIAL D) E) NO. OF PLATES PUSH OR PULL TYPE? F) 7.16. AXLES GENERAL (FRONT): A) MAKE B) **MODEL** PUBLISHED WT. RATING @ GRD. C) \_\_\_\_(IF APPLICABLE) D) SPEED(S) \_\_\_\_(IF APPLICABLE) E) RATIO(S) (IF APPLICABLE) F) REDUCTION (SGL. OR DBL.) GENERAL (REAR): A) B) PUBLISHED WT. RATING @ GRD. \_\_\_\_(IF APPLICABLE) C) SPEED(S) \_\_\_\_\_(IF APPLICABLE) E) RATIO(S) F) REDUCTION (SGL. OR DBL.) (IF APPLICABLE) **7.17. BRAKES** SYSTEM: (CHECK ONE): A) AIR B) **HYDRAULIC** GENERAL (AIR): MAKE/TYPE, FRONT A) B) MAKE/TYPE, REAR C) BRAKE SIZE, FRONT

7.14. TRANSMISSION

BRAKE SIZE, REAR

D)

	E) F) G)	COMPRESSOR MAKE/MODEL COMPRESSOR DISPLACEMENT AIR DRYER MAKE/MODEL						
GENE	A) B) C)	'DRAULIC): MAKE/TYPE, FRONT MAKE/TYPE, REAR BRAKE SIZE, FRONT BRAKE, REAR						
GENE	A) B)	ARKING BRAKE): MAKE TYPE SIZE						
7.18. SPRII	NGS/SU	ISPENSION						
GENE		CONT): SPRING TYPE SPRING CAPACITY RATING	@ GROUND	P/SPRING				
GENE	D)	EAR): SUSPENSION MAKE SUSPENSION TYPE SPRING TYPE SPRING CAPACITY RATING AUX. SPRING CAPACITY RATING	@ GROUND	P/SPRING P/SPRING				
7.19. TIRES	TIRES/WHEELS							
WHEE	ELS (FRO A) B) C)	ONT): MAKE TYPE WEIGHT CAPACITY						
RIMS	(FRONT A) B) C) D) E)	):  MAKE  TYPE  NO. OF PIECES  BEAD SEAT (DEGREES)  WEIGHT CAPACITY						
	(FRON' A) B) C) D) E) ELS (REA A) B)	MAKE MODEL SIZE & PLY RATING REV'S PER MILE WEIGHT CAPACITY	@	PSI				
RIMS	(REAR) A) B) C) D) E)	: MAKE TYPE NO. OF PIECES BEAD SEAT (DEGREES) WEIGHT CAPACITY						

	TIRES (REAR) A) B) C) D) E)	: MAKE MODEL SIZE & PLY RATING REV'S PER MILE WEIGHT CAPACITY	
7.20.	ELECTRICAL	-	
	BATTERIES: A) B) C) D) E) F)	MAKE MODEL QUANTITY VOLTAGE CCA (COMBINED) RESERVE CAPACITY	
	ALTERNATOR A) B) C) D)	: MAKE MODEL CAPACITY (AMPERES) AMPS @ IDLE	
	STARTER: A) B) C)	MAKE MODEL VOLTAGE	
	CIRCUIT PRO A) B)	TECTION: (CHECK ONE) REPLACEABLE FUSES CIRCUIT BREAKERS	
	SYSTEM POLA A) B)	ARITY: (CHECK ONE) POSITIVE NEGATIVE	
7.21.	EQUIPMENT	ACCESSORIES	
	NOTE: WHER	E ITEM IS NOT APPLICABLE, INDICATE	E WITH "N/A".
	BLOCK HEATE A) B)	ER: MAKE/MODEL WATTS	
	ENGINE SHUT A) B)	T-DOWN SYSTEM: MAKE/MODEL OVER-RIDE?	
	FRAME EXTER A) B) C)	NSION: INTEGRAL OR BOLT-ON? DIMENSIONS RBM	
	FUEL TANK(S) A) B) C) D)	): QUANTITY CAPACITY LOCATION TYPE OF SIPHON PROTECTION	

GAUGI		LIGT ALL CALLOES BEST (IDED	
	A)	LIST ALL GAUGES PROVIDED	
			<del></del>
HEATE	R/PROT A)	FECTION: BTU RATING	
HOOD/	/FENDEI	RS:	
	A)	HOOD CONFIGURATION	
	B) C)	HOOD MATERIAL FENDER MATERIAL	
	D)	BUTTERFLY/ACCESS HATCHES	(Y/N)
HOURI	METER	(ENGINE):	
	A)	MAKE/MODEL	
	B)	ELECTRIC OR OIL PRESSURE ACTUA	ATED?
MIRRC			
	A) B)	TYPE SIZE	
	C)	QUANTITY	
	D)	HEATED	(Y/N)
POWE	R TAKE-		
	A)		
	B) C)	HP OF OUTPUT SHAFT @1,000 RPM RIGHT OR LEFT MOUNT?	
	D)	RATIO	
SEATI	NG:		
	FRONT		
	A) B)	CAPACITY BENCH OR BUCKETS?	
	C)	DRIVER'S SEAT MAKE	
	REAR: A)	CAPACITY	
	B)	BENCH OR BUCKETS?	
SHOCK	K ABSOF	RRERS:	
011001	A)	FRONT (Y/N)?	REAR (Y/N)?
	B) C)	MAKE PISTON DIAMETER	
	D)	SINGLE OR DOUBLE ACTING?	
SHUTT	EDC:		
JI 10 I I	A)	AIR OR ELECTRIC?	
	B)	MAKE/MODEL	
START	ING AID	):	
	A)	TYPE	
	B) C)	MAKE/MODEL ACTIVATED HOW?	

	STEERING: A) B) C)	WEIGHT CAPACITY MANUAL OR POWER? STEERING GEAR RATIO	_			
7.22.	BODY AND	MOUNTED EQUIPMENT				
	BODY:  A) B) C) D) E) F) G)	TYPE MAKE/MODEL DIMENSIONS CAPACITY WEIGHT MATERIAL(S) LITERATURE FURNISHED (	Y/N)?			
7.23.	PERFORMA	NCE DATA				
	MAXIMUM GE	EARED SPEED =				
	GRADEABILI <sup>-</sup>	ΓΥ =				
	WEIGHT DIST	TRIBUTION				
	A) B) C) D) E) F) G) H) J) K)	CAB/CHASSIS DRIVER FUEL BODY  SUB-TOTALS PAYLOAD (MAX.) TOTALS	FRONT	REAR	TOTAL	_ _ _ _ _

#### 8. AFFIDAVIT OF CHICAGO BUSINESS

Commission\_\_\_\_

If this is a competitively bid Contract, a Chicago business preference may be applicable. Failure to complete and submit this form with the bid at the time of Bid Opening will be cause for rejection of the bid for being non-responsive. Is bidder a "Chicago Business" as defined in the Special Conditions, Chicago Business Preference language? 1. ) Yes ( ) No 2. Street address of principal place of business: 3. How many persons are currently employed by bidder? 4. How many of bidder's current employees work at City of Chicago locations? 5. Is bidder subject to City of Chicago taxes? ( ) Yes ( ) No Printed Name: County of Acknowledged under oath on (date) Before me by \_\_\_\_\_ As (title) of (firm) Notary Public Signature: (Seal)

Expires:

#### 9. AFFIDAVIT CONCERNING SECTION 1-23-010 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO

The Contractor (the "Affiant"), hereby certifies and declares as follows:

- 1. Neither the Affiant nor any Controlling Person (as defined below) of the Affiant has ever been convicted or in custody, under parole or under any other non-custodial supervision resulting from a conviction in a court of any jurisdiction for the commission of a felony of any kind, or of a criminal offense of whatever degree, involving;
  - (a) bribery or attempted bribery, or its equivalent under any local, state or federal law, of any public
    officer or employee of the City of Chicago (the "City") or of any Sister Agency (as defined below);
    or
  - (b) theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit, or attempted theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit, or its equivalent under any local, state or federal law against the City or any Sister Agency; or
  - (c) conspiring to engage in any of the acts set forth in items (a) or (b) of this Section.
- 2. Neither the Affiant nor any Controlling Person of the Affiant has made in any civil or criminal proceeding an admission of guilt of any of the conduct set forth in items (a) through (c), inclusive, of Section 1 above, under circumstances where such admission of guilt is a matter of record but has not resulted in criminal prosecution for such conduct
- 3. Neither the Affiant nor any Controlling Person of the Affiant is charged with or indicted for any felony or criminal offense set forth in items (a) through (c), inclusive, of Section 1 above. Such ineligibility shall remain in effect until final adjudication is made with respect to such felony or criminal offense.

As used herein, "Controlling Person" shall mean any person who (1) is an officer, director, limited liability company manager, managing member, partner, general partner or limited partner of any business entity; or (2) owns, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediate ownership entities, more than 7.5% of the ownership interest in any business entity or (3) controls, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediate ownership entities, the day-to-day management of any business entity. Indicia of control include, without limitation: interlocking management or ownership; identity of interests among family members; shared facilities and equipment; common use of employees; or organization of a business entity following the ineligibility of a business entity under this section, using substantially the same management, ownership or principals as the ineligible entity.

As used herein, "Sister Agency" shall mean (1) the Board of Education of the City of Chicago; (2) Chicago Park District (3) Chicago Transit Authority (4) Community College District No. 508, Cook County, Illinois; (5) Chicago Housing Authority or (6) the Public Building Commission of Chicago.

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of the Affiant, and (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in this Affidavit are true, accurate and complete as of the date hereof.

	Notary:	
(Print of type name of Affiant/Contractor)	Signed and sworn to before me on (date)	
By:  (Sign here)	atCounty,	State.
(digit ficio)	Notary Public	
(Print or type name of person signing)	Commission expires:	
(Print or type title of person signing)	Seal:	

#### 10. CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT (EDS)

#### 10.1. ONLINE EDS FILING REQUIRED PRIOR TO BID OPENING

The Proposer must complete an online EDS prior to the bid opening date.

# A PROPOSER THAT DOES NOT FILE AN ELECTRONIC EDS PRIOR TO THE BID OPENING WILL BE FOUND NON-RESPONSIVE AND ITS BID WILL BE REJECTED.

#### NOTE:

- Filing an "EDS Information Update" does NOT satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.
- Filing an EDS in a hard copy or paper copy form does NOT satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.
- Filing an EDS for another mater (different bid, contract, etc.) does **NOT** satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.

When completing the online EDS, please choose the Department of Procurement Services as the City agency or department that is requesting the EDS.

#### 10.2. ONLINE EDS WEB LINK

The web link for the Online EDS is https://webapps.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb

#### 10.3. ONLINE EDS NUMBER

EDS Number: \_\_\_\_

Upon completion of the online EDS submission proces	s, the Proposer	will be provided	d an EDS number	. Bidders
should provide this number here:				

#### 10.4. ONLINE EDS CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Upon completion of the online submission process, the Proposer will be able to print a hard copy Certificate of Filing. The Proposer should submit the signed Certificate of Filing with its bid.

#### Please insert your Certification of Filing following this page.

A Proposer that does not include a signed Certificate of Filing with its bid must provide it upon the request of the Chief Procurement Officer.

#### 10.5. PREPARATION CHECKLIST FOR REGISTRATION

10.6.

To expedite a for an Online			your registration process, we recommend that you collect the following information prior to registering account:
	1.	Invi	tation number, if you were provided an invitation number.
	2.	EDS	S document from previous years, if available.
	3.	Em	ail address to correspond with the Online EDS system.
	4.	Cor	npany Information:
		a.	Legal Name
	•	b.	FEIN/SSN
		C.	City of Chicago Vendor Number, if available.
		d	Address and phane number information that you would like to appear on your EDS decuments
		d.	Address and phone number information that you would like to appear on your EDS documents.
-	-	e.	EDS Captain. Check for an EDS Captain in your company - this maybe the person that usually submits EDS for your company, or the first person that registers for your company.
PREPARA	TIOI	N CH	HECKLIST FOR EDS SUBMISSION
			rour EDS submission, we recommend that you collect the following information prior to updating your e. Items #1 through #7 are needed for both EDS information updates and contract related EDS
	1.	Invi	tation number, if you were provided with an invitation number.
	2.	Site	address that is specific to this EDS.
	3.	Cor	ntact that is responsible for this EDS.
	4.	EDS	S document from previous years, if available.
	5.	Ow	nership structure, and if applicable, owners' company information:
		a.	% of ownership
		b.	Legal Name
		C.	FEIN/SSN
	•	d.	City of Chicago Vendor Number, if available.
		e.	Address
	6.	List	of directors, officers, titleholders, etc. (if applicable).
	7.	For	partnerships/LLC/LLP/Joint ventures, etc.; List of controlling parties (if applicable).
Items #8 and	#9 ar	re nee	eded ONLY for contract related EDS documents:
	8.	Cor	ntract related information (if applicable):
	_	a.	City of Chicago contract package
	•	b.	Cover page of City of Chicago bid/solicitation package
	•	C.	If EDS is related to a mod, then cover page of your current contract with the City.
_	9.	List	of subcontractors and retained parties:
		a.	Name
		b.	Address
		C	Fees – Estimated or paid

#### 10.7. EDS FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

#### Q: Where do I file?

A: The web link for the Online EDS is https://webapps.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb

#### Q: How do I get help?

A: If there is a question mark on a page or next to a field, click on the question mark for help filling out the page or field. You may also consult the User Manual and the Training Videos available on the left menu.

#### Q: Why do I have to submit an EDS?

A: The Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS) is required of applicants making an application to the City for action requiring City Council, City department or other City agency approval. For example, all bidders seeking a City contract are required to submit an EDS. Through the EDS, applicants make disclosures required by State law and City ordinances and certify compliance with various laws and ordinances. An EDS is also required of certain parties related to the applicant, such as owners and controlling parties.

#### Q: Who is the Applicant?

A: "Applicant" means any entity or person making an application to the City for action requiring City Council or other City agency approval. The applicant does not include owners and parent companies.

#### Q: Who is the Disclosing Party?

A: "Disclosing Party" means any entity or person submitting an EDS. This includes owners and parent companies.

#### Q: What is an entity or legal entity?

A: "Entity' or 'Legal Entity" means a legal entity (for example, a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or trust).

#### Q: What is a person for purposes of the EDS?

A: "Person" means a human being.

#### Q: Who must submit an EDS?

A. An EDS must be submitted in any of the following three circumstances:

Applicants:	An Applicant must always file this EDS. If the Applicant is a legal entity, state the full name of that legal entity. If the Applicant is a person acting on his/her own behalf, state his/her name.
Entities holding an interest:	Whenever a legal entity has a beneficial interest (E. G. direct or indirect ownership) of more than 7.5% in the Applicant, each such legal entity must file an EDS on its own behalf.
Controlling entities:	Whenever a Disclosing Party is a general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership or joint venture that has a general partner, managing member, manager or other entity that can control the day-to-day management of the Disclosing Party, that entity must also file an EDS on its own behalf. Each entity with a beneficial interest of more than 7.5% in the controlling entity must also file an EDS on its own behalf.

#### Q: What information is needed to submit an EDS?

A: The information contained in the Preparation Checklist for EDS submission.

#### Q: I don't have a user ID & password. Can I still submit an Online EDS?

A: No. You must register and create a user ID and password before submitting an Online EDS.

#### Q: What information is needed to request a user ID & password for Online EDS?

A: The information contained in the Preparation Checklist for Registration is needed to request a login for the Online EDS.

# Q: I already have a username and password from another City web site (City Web Portal, Department of Construction and Permits, Department of Consumer Services, etc.). Can I log-in the Online EDS with that account?

A: Usually not. The Online EDS uses a user ID and password system that is shared by the Public Vehicle Advertising and Water Payment web sites. You may use a username and password from those sites by answering "Yes" to "Is this an existing City of Chicago user ID?" when registering. Other usernames and passwords will not be automatically recognized. However, you may choose to create an identical username for the Online EDS if it is not already taken.

#### Q: I don't have an email address. How do I submit an Online EDS?

A: You cannot get an account to submit an online EDS without an email address. If you need an e-mail address, we suggest that you use a free internet email provider such as www.hotmail.com or www.yahoo.com or rnail.google.com to open an account. The City does not endorse any particular free internet email provider. Public computers are available at all Chicago Public Library branches.

#### Q: I forgot my user ID. Can I register again?

A: No. If you are the EDS Captain of your organization, please contact the Department of Procurement Services at 312-744-4900. If you are an EDS team member, contact your EDS Captain, who can look up your user ID.

#### Q: Who is the EDS Captain?

A: The EDS Captain is a person who performs certain administrative functions for an organization which files an EDS. Each organization registered with the Online EDS has at least one EDS Captain. There may be cocaptains, who are all equal. EDS Captains approve new users, change contact information for an organization, and de-active accounts of employees who have left the organization. Please see the User Manual for more information.

#### Q: Why do we need EDS Captains?

A: The Online EDS is designed to be a self-service web application which allows those doing or seeking to do business with the City to perform as many routine functions as possible without City intervention. Because many organizations have multiple staff filing an EDS, the EDS Captain role allows those organizations to self-manage the contact information and users.

#### Q: Who is the EDS team?

A: The EDS team for an organization is everyone who is registered to file an EDS on behalf of the organization.

#### Q: I forgot my password. What should I do?

A: To retrieve a temporary password, click the "Forgot your password?" link on the login page. Enter your user ID that you provided when you registered your account. The system will automatically generate a temporary password and send it to you. When you log-in with your temporary password, you will be asked to create a new password.

#### Q: How do I complete an Online EDS?

A: Click on "Create New" after logging in. The Online EDS system will walk you through the EDS questions. Please see the User Manual for details.

#### Q: How do I fill out a Disclosure of Retained Parties?

A: There is no longer a separate Disclosure of Retained Parties filing. After logging in, click on "Create New". Answer (click) "Contract" to "Is this EDS for a contract or an EDS information update?" Click "Fill out EDS", and click on the "Retained Parties" tab. When finished, click on "Ready to Submit."

#### Q: How do I attach documents?

A: Attachments are discouraged. If at all possible, please provide a concise explanation in the space provided in the online form. Attachments with pages of officers are not acceptable. Names of officers must be typed into the system. If you must provide an attachment for another reason, please send it to your City of Chicago contact (contract administrator or negotiator for procurements) and they will attach it for you. Documents can be sent in PDF (preferred), Word, or paper format.

#### Q: Who can complete an Economic Disclosure Statement online?

A: Any authorized representative of your business with a user ID and password can complete your EDS online. One person, such as an assistant, can fill in the information and save it, and another person can review and electronically sign the Online EDS.

#### Q: What are the benefits of filing my Economic Disclosure statement electronically?

A: Filing electronically reduces the chance of filing an incomplete EDS and speeds up the processing of contract awards. A certificate of filing can be printed at the completion of the process and inserted into your bid package. The biggest benefit for those who frequently do business with the City is that after the first EDS, each EDS is much easier to fill out because non-contract specific information is pre-filled from the last submitted EDS.

#### Q: Will my information be secure?

A: Yes. When making your internet connection to our Web Server, you will connect through a Secure Socket Layer (SSL for short) to the "Online EDS" login page. All information you type will be protected using strong encryption. Within the login page, you will provide us with a user ID, password, and secret question for user authentication, Only you will have knowledge of this unique identification information.

#### Q: I am filing electronically. How do I sign my EDS?

A: Once you have completed the EDS, you will be prompted to enter your password and answer to your secret question. Together, these will serve as your electronic signature. Although you will also print and physically sign an EDS certification of filing as a notice that your EDS was filed, your EDS is complete as a legal document with only the electronic filing.

#### Q: My address has changed. How can I update my information?

A: You must be an EDS Captain for your organization to update this. Log-in and click on "Vendor Admin, Site Administration." Select the appropriate site and click edit.

#### Q: I have more questions. How can I contact the Department of Procurement Services?

A: Please contact the contract administrator or negotiator assigned to your solicitation or contract. You may call DPS at 312-744-4900 between 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM Central Time.

#### Q: Can I save a partially complete EDS?

A: Yes. Click "Save". To avoid data loss, we recommend you save your work periodically while filling out your EDS.

#### Q: Do I have to re-type my information each time I submit an EDS?

A: No. The system will remember non-contract specific information from your last submitted EDS for one year. This information will be filled-in for you in your new EDS. You will have an opportunity to correct it if it has changed since your last filing. When you submit your new EDS, the information is saved and the one-year clock begins running anew.

#### Q: What are the system requirements to use the Online EDS?

A: The following are minimum requirements to use the Online EDS:

- A PDF viewer such as Adobe Reader is installed and your web browser is configured to display PDFs automatically. You may download and install Adobe Reader free at www.adobe.comlproducts/reader/
- Your web browser is set to permit running of JavaScript.
- Your web browser allows cookies to be set for this site. Please note that while we use cookies in the Online EDS, we do not use them to track personally identifiable information, so your privacy is maintained.
- Your monitor resolution is set to a minimum of 1024 x 768.
- While not required to submit an EDS, if you wish to view the training videos, you must have Adobe Flash Plugin version 9 or higher, speakers, and sound. Please note that very old computers may not be able to run Adobe Flash and will not be able to play the training videos. In that case, we encourage you to seek help using the Online EDS Manuals. You may download and install Adobe Flash Plugin free at htty://get.adobe.comiflashplayer

The Online EDS has been tested on Internet Explorer 6.0 and 7.0 and Firefox 2.0 and 3.0 on Windows XP and Mac OS X. Although it should work on other browsers and operating systems, the City of Chicago cannot guarantee compatibility.

Specification Number 89430A Runway Deicer Trucks, Page 102 of 111

PREVAILING WAGE RATES FOR COOK COUNTY

11.

#### 12. CITY OF CHICAGO TRAVEL GUIDELINES

1. The City of Chicago Travel Guidelines are issued by:

City of Chicago
Office of Budget and Management
City Hall, Room 604
121 North LaSalle
Chicago, Illinois 60602
Effective April 2008

The City of Chicago Travel Policy consists of guidelines and procedures for current and prospective City employees and contractors who travel on behalf and for the benefit of the City. This policy is administered by the Office of Budget and Management (OBM).

#### This policy:

- Is not intended to cover routine local travel related to the performance of an employee's regular job duties. Rather, this policy is intended for out of town travel or travel to Chicago from another city.
- · Applies to all City departments, employees and contractors regardless of funding sources (i.e. grants).
- · Requires that all employees secure the most economical means of travel, including cost, travel time and work requirements.
- Will be strictly enforced. Any deviation from these guidelines must be justified in writing and approved by the Budget Director prior to travel.

The City is not obligated to reimburse any employee, contractor or representative of the City for travel expenses which were not previously approved by OBM.

When an individual is required to travel on behalf and for the benefit of the City, the employee is expected to exercise good judgment in managing travel costs and make every effort to secure the most economical travel arrangements available at that time.

For purposes of this policy, the Chicago metropolitan area is defined as Cook, DuPage, Will, Lake and McHenry counties

#### 2. General Approval

a. General Requirements

The City recognizes the following activities as appropriate for travel purposes:

- Delivery of legislative testimony
- As a stipulation or condition of grant funding or otherwise required for state or federal certification
- Presentation on behalf of the City at a conference or seminar
- Financial or tax audit
- Site visits or operational evaluations related to departmental improvement efforts
- Court proceedings or case preparation
- Attendance at conferences, meetings, seminars or training sessions for which:
  - the topic is of critical interest to the City;
  - o representation at the event is in the best interest of the City, and
  - o the topic is related to an employee's professional development.

Before planning out-of-town travel, every effort should be made to identify local options for comparable conferences, meetings, seminars or training sessions.

#### b. Limits on Participants

Attendance at conferences, meetings, seminars or training sessions held outside the Chicago metropolitan area is limited to two employees from any one department unless otherwise approved by OBM. City of Chicago

#### c. Travel Approval Procedure

- All travel arrangements are to be secured through the City's designated travel management agency—Corporate Travel Management Group (CTMG).
- All travel outside the Chicago metropolitan area requires approval from OBM.
- Complete original Travel Request Form and support documentation must be approved by the appropriate department head and submitted to OBM no later than seven (7) business days prior to the date of travel.
- In emergency situations in which there are fewer than seven (7) business days prior to a proposed trip, the Travel Request Form may be faxed to the requesting department's budget analyst at (312) 744-3618.
- The City is not obligated to reimburse employees for travel expenses which were not previously approved by OBM.
- A Travel Expense Report must be accurately and clearly completed and submitted with all receipts in order to obtain reimbursement for travel expenses.
- If there is a disputed reimbursement, a representative from the Comptroller's Office will contact the department to resolve
  the outstanding matter. If it is not resolved in a timely manner, the undisputed portion will be reimbursed along with an

explanation and instructions to resolve the outstanding amount.

- All expenses incurred while traveling will be charged to Account 0245.
- No petty cash reimbursements are allowed.
- No cash advances will be provided.

#### d. Travel Outside the Continental United States

- All requests for City travel outside the continental U.S. must be submitted to OBM fourteen (14) business days prior to travel. OBM will seek approval from the Mayor's Chief of Staff and will notify the department of approval or denial.
- Travelers should convert all foreign expenses to U.S. currency prior to submitting a Travel Expense Report. Official documentation of the exchange rate at the time of travel (i.e. bank receipt) must accompany all original receipts.

#### 3. Reimbursable Travel Expenses

#### a. Business Related Expenses

- Business-related expenses incurred while on City business may be reimbursed at the discretion of the department head. Following are examples of acceptable reimbursable business expenses:
  - Photocopying
  - Sending or receiving faxes
  - Express mail services
  - Internet connections
- Original receipts must be provided for reimbursement.

#### b. Transportation

#### City-owned Vehicles

- Employees traveling on City business in a City-owned vehicle are entitled to reimbursement for gas, parking and toll
  expenses but not the standard "per mile" reimbursement.
- Original receipts must be provided for all expenses.
- Travel in a City-owned vehicle outside the Chicago metropolitan area (see p. 7) requires prior approval from OBM.
- o Employees are responsible for all fines related to parking or moving violations issued while traveling on City business.
- o Refer to the City of Chicago vehicle policy for other rules and regulations regarding the use of City-owned vehicles.

#### Personal Vehicles

- Employees may use personal vehicles for business travel within a 300-mile radius of Chicago.
- Employees will be reimbursed at the rate stated in the Annual Appropriation Ordinance or applicable collective bargaining agreement, but in no event will the reimbursement exceed the cost of coach airfare.
- o "Per mile" reimbursement includes the cost of gas, oil and general maintenance.
- o Parking and toll expenses will be reimbursed separately with original receipts.
- Employee must carry liability and property damage insurance for business use of his or her vehicle and submit a copy
  of these insurance policies to the appropriate personnel within his or her department.
- Employees are responsible for all fines related to parking or moving violations issued while traveling on City business.
   Absolutely no exceptions will be made.

#### Car Rental

- o Car rental is a reimbursable expense only when there is no other transportation available or the distance between lodging and/or meeting site(s) makes public transportation, taxi or other mode of transportation impractical.
- Car rental will not be approved for travel within the Chicago metropolitan area. City pool cars or I-Go cars should be reserved for such travel.
- o The compact car rental rate will be reimbursed unless the need for a larger car can be justified.
- o Daily rental rates, taxes, surcharges, gas, car rental insurance and oil expenses are considered reimbursable items.
- o Only one car rental will be allowed per trip.
- Employees are responsible for all fines related to parking or moving violations issued while traveling on City business.
   Absolutely no exceptions will be made.
- Original receipts are required for reimbursement.

#### • Common Carrier (Air, Train, Bus)

- To take advantage of any available discount fares, all reservations and ticket purchases should be made as far in advance as possible.
- First-class travel is prohibited.
- Electronic tickets are the only acceptable delivery method of tickets unless this option is not available. The City's travel agency will advise.
- Any charges incurred as a result of changes to an original airline reservation made prior to or during travel are subject to OBM approval.
- The lowest priced airfare often requires a Saturday night stay. The City of Chicago Travel Policy does not require or suggest that an employee include a Saturday stay in their itinerary in order to take advantage of these lower fares. However, an employee may choose to stay over a Saturday night if the difference between the airfares exceeds the cost of lodging for each extra day added together. For example, if the difference between airfares is \$500 and lodging for that Saturday and Sunday totals \$300, employees have the option of the Saturday night stay. The following

applies when a traveler has opted for a Saturday night stay, but is not conducting City businesses on Saturday or Sunday:

- Supporting documentation comparing airfares is needed to approve Saturday night stay options.
- Cost of lodging and ground transportation to and from the airport/hotel are reimbursable expenses.
- Meals (per diem) are reimbursable at the appropriate rate.

#### • Ground Transportation (Taxis, Public Transportation, Limousine Service)

- o Transportation to and from the airport is included in the ground transportation amount in the reimbursement rate.
- Public transportation is encouraged.
- Ground transportation expense guidelines are provided on the Transportation Reimbursement Rate form.
- o Ground transportation expenses are reimbursable with original receipts at the discretion of the department head.
- o Limousine service may be used if the cost is less than the cost of a taxi service or other means of transportation.
- o Gratuity for ground transportation is the sole responsibility of the traveler.
- Original receipts are required for reimbursement.

#### c. Laundry

- Employees traveling on City business for three or more consecutive days are entitled to reimbursement for laundry expenses up to a maximum of \$10 per three-day period beginning with the fourth day.
- Original receipts are required for reimbursement.

#### d. Lodaina

- The cost of a standard hotel room is reimbursable up to the maximum daily rate for the city group as listed in the "Rates" (page 14) section of this policy, exclusive of applicable taxes.
- The maximum daily rate may be exceeded only if a lower priced room is not available within a reasonable distance, and only if approved by OBM.
- Employees may stay at higher priced hotels, but they will only receive reimbursement up to the maximum daily rate for the applicable city group in the "Rates" section, if a lower priced hotel is available within a reasonable distance.
- Hotel lodging within the Chicago metropolitan area is not a reimbursable expense.
- All personal expenses must be paid for separately or deducted from the lodging bill before it is submitted for reimbursement.
- Original receipts are required for reimbursement.

#### e. Meals

- Employees are entitled to a daily per diem allowance, as outlined in the "Rates" section of this policy, as reimbursement for all meals inclusive of tax and gratuity.
- If meals are included in registration fees, per diem will not be reimbursed for pre-paid meals
- If travel is conducted within the Chicago metropolitan area, meals will be reimbursed at the discretion of the department head and with prior approval from OBM
- Meals on travel days can begin when arriving at the airport or departing the Chicago metropolitan area.

#### f. Telephone Calls

- If the employee has a City-issued cell phone, that phone should be used for all telephone calls (unless there is no service).
- Employees are allowed up to twenty (20) minutes (no more than \$5.00) for reimbursable personal phone calls per day while traveling on City business.
- Business calls may be reimbursed at the discretion of the department head with a maximum reimbursement of \$10 per day.
- When possible, employees should avoid hotel surcharges by using cell phones or phones outside the hotel room for personal and business calls.
- Original receipts are required for reimbursement.

#### g. Additional Expenses

- Original receipts are required to claim reimbursement for incidental expenses not listed above.
- Reimbursement for incidental expenses will be approved at the discretion of the department head.
- Employees are entitled to a daily per diem allowance, as outlined in the "Rates" (see p. 14)section of this policy, as reimbursement for all meals inclusive of tax and gratuity.
- If meals are included in registration fees, per diem will not be reimbursed for pre-paid meals.
- If travel is conducted within the Chicago metropolitan area (page 7), meals will be reimbursed at the discretion of the department head and with prior approval from OBM.
- Meals on travel days can begin when arriving at the airport or departing the Chicago metropolitan area (page 7).

#### h. Travel Expense Advances

Cash advances are not allowed.

#### i. Conference Registration Fees -

- Registration fees may be charged to the department's education and professional development accounts (Account 0169) at the discretion of the department head.
- Meals included in conference registration fees will be charged to Account 0169.
- Every effort should be made to take advantage of early registration discounts.

#### j. Travel by City of Chicago Consultants or Contractors

- Travel by consultants or contractors engaged by the City should adhere to the City of Chicago Travel Policy. Travel expenses should be included in the contract price and billed as required by the contract.
- Travel by non-employees at the invitation of the City (i.e. candidates for employment, speakers) must be approved by the Mayor's Chief of Staff and adhere to the City of Chicago Travel Policy.
- Reimbursement for non-employees will be for actual expenses incurred not any flat per diem.
- Travel by City employees to consultant's location prior to approved contract is prohibited.

#### k. Non-Reimbursable Travel Expenses

Non-reimbursable expenses include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Additional charges for room upgrades or special "club" floors.
- Alcoholic beverages
- Coat check services
- Entertainment, including but not limited to in-room movies
- · Late check-out and guarantee charges
- Parking or moving violation tickets
- Personal services (i.e. barber, shoe shine, health club, massage)
- Spousal expenses
- Toiletries
- Travel accident insurance
- Other expenses of a purely personal nature and not listed as reimbursable in these guidelines.

#### 4. Travel Reimbursement Rates

Reimbursement rates are categorized by relative travel costs associated with certain cities. Group II, III and IV are not all inclusive. For cities not listed, please consult with the Office of Budget and Management for appropriate reimbursement rates.

#### 12.1. TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT RATES

	Group I Cities	Group II Cities	Group III Cities	Group IV Cities
	Boston, MA  New York City and metro areas  Los Angeles, CA  Miami, FL  San Francisco, CA  Washington, DC and metro areas	Atlanta, GA Chicago, IL Houston, TX Philadelphia, PA San Jose, CA	Baltimore, MD Cleveland, OH Cincinnati, OH Columbus, OH Dallas, TX Denver, CO Detroit, MI Indianapolis, IN Las Vegas, NV Memphis, TN Milwaukee, WI Minneapolis/St Paul, MN Nashville, TN New Orleans, LA Orlando, FL Phoenix, AZ Portland, OR San Diego, CA Seattle, WA Tampa, FL	Kansas City, MO Louisville, KY Madison, WI Pittsburgh, PA St Louis, MO Springfield, IL**
GROUND TRANSPORTATION Including parking at point of departure	\$55	\$50	\$40	\$30
TRANSPORTATION AIR: BUS: RAIL: PERSONAL CAR*:	Coach Economy Economy \$.0585/mile	Coach Economy Economy \$.0585/mile	Coach Economy Economy \$.0585/mile	Coach Economy Economy \$.0585/mile
LODGING  Maximum daily rate is exclusive of applicable taxes.  Taxes will be included in the reimbursement.	\$250.00	\$225.00	\$150.00	\$125.00
PER DIEM Including tax and gratuity	\$64	\$59	\$54	\$49

<sup>\*</sup> Mileage reimbursement follows the rate as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, 2008 rate is listed.
\*\* When the Illinois legislature is in session, the Springfield, IL maximum is increased to Group III.

#### 13. PROPOSAL EXECUTION PAGES

#### 13.1. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A CORPORATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete.

Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares or affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid a fixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein.

Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.

NAME OF CORPORATION:	
	(Print or Type)
SIGNATURE OF PRESIDENT*:	(Or Authorized Officer)
TITLE OF SIGNATORY:	(Print or Type)
BUSINESS ADDRESS:	(Print or Type)
	signed by other than the President, attach hereto a certified copy of that attach, such as a resolution by the Board of Directors, which permits the
ATTEST:Corporate Secretary Signature	
State of	(Affix Corporate Seal)
County of	
This instrument was acknowledged bet	fore me on this day of, 20 by
as Presiden	t (or other authorized officer) and as
Secretary of (Corporation	n Name).
Notary Public Signature:	
Commission Expires:	(Seal)

13.2. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A PARTNERSHIP
The undersigned, hereby acknowledges having received <b>Specification No.</b> 89430A containing a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, 1) General Conditions, 2) Special Conditions, 3) Contract Plans or Drawings (in applicable) 4) Detailed Specifications or Scope of Services, Evaluation/Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements (In RFP/RFQ), 5) Proposal Pages, 6) Certifications and 7) Addenda Numbers <b>(none unless indicated here and affirms that the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions and conditions and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the partnership shall be bound by all the terms are considered in the pa</b>
contained in the Contract Documents, regardless of whether a complete set thereof is attached to this proposal, exceptionly to the extent that the partnership has taken express written exception thereto in the sections of this specification designated for that purpose.
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete.
Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares of affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid a fixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein.
Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.
BUSINESS NAME:
(Print or Type)
BUSINESS ADDRESS:
(Print or Type)
If you are operating under an assumed name, provide County registration number hereinunder as provided in the Illinois Revised Statutes 1965 Chapter 96 Sec. 4 et seq.
Registration Number:
SIGNATURES AND ADDRESSES OF ALL MEMBERS OF THE PARTNERSHIP
(If all General Partners do not sign, indicate authority of partner signatories by attaching copy of partnership agreement or other authorizing document):
Partner Signature:
Address:
State of
County of
Subscribed and sworn to before me by each of the foregoing individuals this day of, 20
Notary Public Signature:
Notary i ubile digitature.

Commission Expires:

(Seal)

#### 13.3. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A SOLE PROPRIETOR

13.3. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A SOLE PROPRIETOR
The undersigned, hereby acknowledges having received <b>Specification No.</b> 89430A containing a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, 1) General Conditions, 2) Special Conditions, 3) Contract Plans or Drawings (if applicable) 4) Detailed Specifications or Scope of Services, Evaluation/Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements (If RFP/RFQ), 5) Proposal Pages, 6) Certifications and 7) Addenda Numbers <b>(none unless indicated here)</b> , and affirms that the sole proprietor shall be bound by all the terms and conditions contained in the Contract Documents, regardless of whether a complete set thereof is attached to this proposal, except only to the extent that the sole proprietor has taken express written exception thereto in the sections of this specification designated
for that purpose.
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete.
Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares of affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid a fixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein.
Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.
SIGNATURE OF PROPRIETOR:
(Signature)
DOING BUSINESS AS: (Print or Type)
BUSINESS ADDRESS: (Print or Type)
If you are operating under an assumed name, provide County registration number hereinunder as provided in the Illinois Revised Statutes 1965 Chapter 96 Sec. 4 et seq.
Registration Number:
State of
County of
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of, 20
Notary Public Signature:
, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Commission Expires:

(Seal)

#### 13.4. PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE BY CITY

Funding: <u>011.0740.0402035.04</u>	50 220450.	and various			
City Comptroller	-				
Chief Procurement Officer					
Мауог	-				
Mayor					
Awardad and Ralasse	d on this	dovest	20		

The undersigned, on behalf of the CITY OF CHICAGO, a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, hereby accept the foregoing bid items as identified in the proposal.